
P������� C	

����	� 

A����  

A���� 23, 2020 

 

Commission Members 

David Culbertson 

Joe Foley 

David Jordan 

Bill Mansfield 

David McFadden 

Mark McKechnie 

E. J. McManus 

Jared Pulver 

Jeff Thomas 

City of Medford 

City  Council Chambers 

411 W. Eighth Street, Third Floor 

Medford, OR  97501 

541-774-2380 

Regular Planning Commission 

meetings are held on the second and 

fourth Thursdays of every month 

Meetings begin at 5:30 PM 

Page 1



 

Meeting locations are generally accessible to persons with disabilities. To request interpreters for hearing impaired or other 

accommodations for persons with disabilities, please contact the ADA Coordinator at (541) 774-2074 or ada@cityofmedford.org at 

least three business days prior to the meeting to ensure availability. For TTY, dial 711 or (800) 735-1232. 

April 23, 2020                             

5:30 P.M.        

Medford City Hall, Council Chambers 

411 West 8th Street, Medford, Oregon 
 

 

Virtual Meeting information 

To comply with Governor Brown’s stay at home order, public hearings will be conducted via the 

internet. WRITTEN COMMENTS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED. To join Webinar: 

https://zoom.us/j/544465115, Meeting ID: 544-465-115. For telephone: US: +1 669 900 6833 or +1 

346 248 7799 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 929 205 6099 or +1 253 215 8782. 
 

10. Roll Call 
 

20. Consent Calendar / Written Communications (voice vote).  

20.1 CUP-18-148 Consideration of request for a one-year time extension of the approval of a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow storm water facilities within the Riparian Corridor of Lone Pine 

Creek, located approximately 300 feet from the intersection of Delta Waters Road and Crater Lake 

Highway (HWY 62) 1884-1862 Delta Waters Road (371W18AA TL 1200-1400). Applicant: Delta 

Waters Lenders; Agent; Bill Philp; Planner: Liz Conner. 
 

30. Approval or Correction of the Minutes from March 12, 2020 hearing. 
 

40. Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience 

COMMENTS WILL BE LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES PER INDIVIDUAL OR 5 MINUTES IF REPRESENTING A GROUP OR 

ORGANIZATION.  PLEASE SIGN IN. 
 

50. Public Hearings 

COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO A TOTAL OF 10 MINUTES FOR APPLICANTS AND/OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVES.  YOU 

MAY REQUEST A 5-MINUTE REBUTTAL TIME.  ALL OTHERS WILL BE LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES PER INDIVIDUAL OR 5 

MINUTES IF REPRESENTING A GROUP OR ORGANIZATION.  PLEASE SIGN IN.  
 

Continuance Request 

50.1 PUD-20-032 / LDS-20-100 Consideration of a revised tentative plat and PUD Plan for the 

Springbrook Park Planned Unit Development in order to create nine additional lots at the 

southeast corner of the site.  The subject site is contained within an approximate 1.50 acres of a 

19.6-acre tract of land, and is located along Springbrook Road north of Owen Drive within the SFR-

6 (Single-Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) and MFR-15 (Multiple Family 

Residential, fifteen dwelling units per gross acre) zoning districts. Applicant, Springbrook Park, LLC. 

Agent, Steven Swartsley; Planner, Dustin Severs.  The applicant requests this item be continued to 

the Thursday, May 14, 2020, Planning Commission meeting. 
 

Old Business 

50.2 LDS-20-025 Consideration of tentative plat approval for the Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phase 

4 & 5, a proposed 45-lot residential subdivision on two, contiguous parcels totaling 59.5 acres, 

which includes two tracts of land to be used for storm detention, and a reserve acreage portion. 

The property is located east of Cherry lane, north of Hillcrest Road, and is transected by Roxy Ann 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

AGENDA 

Page 2



Planning Commission Agenda 
April 23, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 2  
 

Road; and is within the SFR-2 (Single-Family Residential, two dwelling units per gross acre) and 

SFR-00 (Single-Family Residential, one dwelling unit per lot) zoning district, and with an RZ 

(Restricted Zoning) Administrative Mapping overlay (371W23DA1500 & 371W23101); Applicant, 

Michael Mahar; Agent, Neathamer Surveying, Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs. 
 

50.3 LDP-20-016 / ZC-20-017 Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot 

land partition of a single parcel totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a change of zone from 

SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four dwelling units per gross acre) to SFR-6 (Single Family 

Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre). The property is located at 2939 Bailey Avenue 

approximately 300 feet south of Delta Waters Road in the SFR-4 Zoning district (371W16BB TL 

15800); Applicant, Richard Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Liz Conner. 
 

50.4 UP-19-003 Consideration of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to adopt an Urbanization 

Plan into the Neighborhood Element for approximately 29.72 acres of property located at the 

northwest corner of South Stage Road and Kings Highway (Planning Unit MD-7c) (382W01AD1000 

and 382W01D100); Applicants, KDA Homes LLC, Lazaro Ayala and Mark Knox; Agent, Scott Sinner, 

Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Carla Angeli Paladino, Principal Planner. 
 

 New Business 

50.5 LDS-20-046 Consideration of tentative plat approval for Buettner Place, a proposed 4-lot 

residential subdivision on a single 0.84-acre parcel located at 1375 Orchard Home Drive in the 

SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district (372W35AD 800); 

Applicant, Barbara Buettner; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs. 
 

50.6 LDS-20-050 / E-20-051 Consideration of tentative plat approval for a six-lot subdivision and an 

Exception pertaining to minimum lot frontage standards on one parcel of land, 22.38 acres in size, 

located at the northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern terminus of Ford Drive 

within the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, 4 to 6 dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-10 (Single-

Family Residential, 6 to 10 dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted 

Zoning) Administrative Mapping Overlay (371W081103); Applicant, Delta Waters Properties LLC; 

Agent, CSA Planning Ltd.; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt.  
 

50.7 DCA-18-112 An amendment to Chapter 10 of the Medford Municipal Code to add standards 

for shared use paths.  Applicant, City of Medford; Planner, Sarah Sousa. 
 

60. Reports 

 60.1 Site Plan and Architectural Commission 

 60.2 Transportation Commission  

 60.3 Planning Department 
 

70. Messages and Papers from the Chair 
 

80. City Attorney Remarks 
 

90. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission 

  

100. Adjournment 

Page 3



 
 
 

 

STAFF REPORT – EXTENSION OF TIME 

Project Delta Waters Self Storage  
 Applicant: Delta Waters Lenders, LLC; Agent: Bill Philp 

File no. CUP-18-148 

To Planning Commission for 04/23/2020 hearing 

From Liz Conner, CFM Planner II 

Date April 16, 2020 

 

Request 

Consideration of request for a one-year time extension of the approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow storm water facilities within the Riparian Corridor of 
Lone Pine Creek, located approximately 300 feet from the intersection of Delta 
Waters Road and Crater Lake Highway (HWY 62) 1884-1862 Delta Waters Road 
(371W18AA TL 1200-1400). 

Background 

The Planning Commission adopted the Final Order granting approval of the project 
on February 14, 2019.  The applicant is requesting an extension of time as allowed 
under Medford Land Development Code (MLDC) Section 10.184(F). 

Project Review 

Per MLDC Section 10.184(F), extensions shall be based on findings that the facts upon 
which the application was first approved have not changed to an extent sufficient to 
warrant refiling of the application.  It can be found that neither the circumstances of 
approval nor applicable site development standards have changed to a degree that 
warrants refiling of the application.  This is the only extension allowed under the 
Medford Land Development Code. 

Recommended Action 

Approve the one-year time extension to February 14, 2021 for CUP-18-148 per the 
Staff Report dated April 16, 2020. 

Page 4



Delta Waters Self Storage Staff Report – Extension of Time 
File no. CUP-18-148  April 16, 2020 

 

Page 2 of 2 

Exhibits 

A Letter requesting extension received January 27, 2020 
B Approved site plan 
 Vicinity Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



1

Kelly Evans

From: Planning Department <planning@cityofmedford.org>
Sent: Monday, January 27, 2020 10:16 AM
To: Kelly Evans
Subject: FW: AC 18-147 (see attachment)
Attachments: Notice of Site Plan and Architectural Commission Action.PDF

From: Legal Department  
Sent: Monday, January 27, 2020 8:32 AM 
To: Eric B. Mitton <Eric.Mitton@cityofmedford.org> 
Cc: Planning Department <planning@cityofmedford.org> 
Subject: FW: AC 18‐147 (see attachment) 

Eric – 

Can you respond to Mr. Huycke? 

Kimberly Boutiette  | Legal Secretary 
City of Medford | Legal Department 
411 W. 8th Street, Medford, OR 97501 
Ph: 541-774-2020 

From: Patrick Huycke [mailto:pathuycke@gmail.com]  
Sent: Saturday, January 25, 2020 11:22 AM 
To: Legal Department <legal@cityofmedford.org>; Planning Department <planning@cityofmedford.org> 
Subject: AC 18‐147 (see attachment) 

<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Be cautious with links and attachments**> 

Hello: 

I apologize if this is duplicative of an email I sent earlier today, but I could not find the earlier email in my Sent 
box.  

I would like to extend the land use approval for one year. I looked in the Code for an ordinance on extension 
requests or a reference to a form to use for this purpose, but I could not find either.  

Please either: a) respond and indicate that the approval is extended for the additional year; or b) advise me of 
the proper procedure for requesting the extension.  

Please communicate with me in this regard at your early convenience. 

Thanks. 

Delta Waters Lenders, LLC 
By: Pat Huycke  

Page 6

KAEvans
Exhibit



Page 7

KAEvans
B



Delta Waters Lenders, LLC
Self Storage

10/10/2018

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:
371W18AA TL 1200-1400

¬«62

C-R

I-L

MFR-15

MFR-20

SFR-4

SFR-6

Pa
lom

a A
ve

Am
er

ica
n W

ay

Bradbury St

Skypark Dr

Delta Waters Rd
Delta Waters Rd

Cr
at e

r L
ak

eA
v e

4

3

2

1

CUP-18-148Vicinity
Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 310155
Feet

Legend
Subject Area
Zoning Districts
Tax Lots

Planning Department
City of Medford

s
Page 8



   
  
   

 

 

 

March 12, 2020      

5:30 P.M.        

Medford City Hall, Council Chambers 

411 West 8th Street, Medford, Oregon 

 

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission was called to order at 5:30 PM in the Medford City 

Hall, Council Chambers, 411 West 8th Street, Medford, Oregon on the above date with the following 

members and staff in attendance:  

Commissioners Present Staff Present 

Mark McKechnie, Chair 

Joe Foley, Vice Chair 

David Culbertson 

Bill Mansfield 

David McFadden 

E.J. McManus 

Jared Pulver 

 

Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Madison Simmons, Senior Assistant City Attorney 

Terri Richards, Recording Secretary 

 

Commissioners Absent  

David Jordan, Excused Absence  

Jeff Thomas, Unexcused Absence  

 

10.     Roll Call 

 

20.    Consent Calendar / Written Communications (voice vote).  

20.1 LDS-19-070 Final Order of tentative plat approval for Stewart Meadows Village – Phases 1-6, a 

proposed  39-lot subdivision on a 110-acre site bounded generally by Stewart Meadows to the north, 

Highway 99 to the east, Myers Lane to the west, and Garfield Avenue to the south; and an 

approximate 30-acre tract on the south side of Garfield. The site is zoned Community Commercial 

(C-C), General Industrial (I-G), Light Industrial (I-L), and SFR-10 (Single-Family residential, ten dwelling 

units per gross acre). (371W31A TL 2802, 2000, 2190, 2200, 2300, 4000, 3900; 371W31D TL 200, 1001, 

2500, 1000, 2501, 2800, 900, 2900, 3000; 371W32C TL 5503, 5400); Applicant, KOGAP Enterprises, 

Inc.; Agent, Maize & Associates Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs. 

 

Motion: The Planning Commission adopted the consent calendar as submitted.             

 

Moved by: Vice Chair Foley  Seconded by: Commissioner McFadden 

 

Voice Vote: Motion passed, 7-0-0. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

MINUTES 

Page 9



Planning Commission Minutes 

March 12, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 2 of 3  
 

 30. Approval or Correction of the Minutes from February 27, 2020 hearing 

 30.1 The minutes for February 27, 2020, were approved as submitted. 

 

40. Oral Requests and Communications from the Public.  None. 

                    

 50. Public Hearings. None. 

 

60.      Reports 

60.1 Site Plan and Architectural Commission.  

Commissioner Culbertson reported that the Site Plan and Architectural Commission met on Friday, 

March 6, 2020.  He deferred the report to Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director since he was not 

in attendance at that meeting.   

 

60.2 Transportation Commission.  

Commissioner Pulver reported that the Transportation Commission met on Wednesday, February 

26, 2020.  The bulk of the meeting was discussion on the Transportation Facility on South Stage 

Road.  They also discussed 20 mile per hour speed limits and funding for the Mega Corridor.  Their 

next meeting will be next Wednesday. 

 

60.3 Planning Department 

Ms. Evans reported that due to the corona virus the City is including language in the public hearing 

notices encouraging people to not attend the meetings but participate in writing.   

 

There is a Planning Commission study session scheduled for Monday, March 23, 2020.  Discussion 

will be on Shared Use Path amendment. 

 

There is business scheduled for Thursday, March 26, 2020, Thursday, April 9, 2020, Thursday, April 

23, 2020 and Thursday, May 14, 2020.  

 

City Council at their last meeting approved the vacation for McDonald’s on Barnett. 

 

At the next City Council meeting they will consider the Transportation Facility on Foothill Road from 

Delta Waters to McAndrews Road and the Transportation Facility on South Stage Road west of North 

Phoenix Road. 

 

This evening at the City Council study session they are discussing the 2020-2024 Consolidated Plan 

that is part of the Community Development Block Grant program and outdoor hemp.  Hemp is not 

statutorily regulated the same as marijuana.  There is discussion on whether or not the City Council 

wanted to address the odor issues that are inherent with hemp and marijuana.   

 

Page 10



Planning Commission Minutes 

March 12, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 3 of 3  
 

Commissioner McFadden asked, is there general regulations that could cover both marijuana and 

hemp?  Ms. Evans responded that industrial hemp is an agricultural product that is treated 

differently statutorily.   

 

The Site Plan and Architectural Commission approved the construction of two multi-family 

apartment buildings located at the corner of Stewart Avenue and S. Columbus for Columbia Care 

Services to house veterans.  They also approved a 10,000 square foot warehouse on Table Rock 

Road south of the airport.          

 

70.      Messages and Papers from the Chair.  None. 

 

80.      City Attorney Remarks.   

80.1 Ms. Simmons reported that with the corona virus precautions the City has been taking 

including the blurb in the public hearing notice encouraging people to submit written testimony 

that the Commission discuss it specifically on the record when making the motion. 

 

This is Ms. Simmons’ last meeting on the Planning Commission.  She thanked the Commission for 

welcoming her and their time.  Chair McKechnie thanked her for being on the Planning Commission 

and keeping them on the straight and narrow.             

 

90.      Propositions and Remarks from the Commission.  None. 

 

100.    Adjournment 

101.  The meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:38 p.m.  The proceedings of this meeting were 

digitally recorded and are filed in the City Recorder’s office. 

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

_____________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Terri L. Richards     Mark McKechnie 

Recording Secretary    Planning Commission Chair 

 

 

Approved: April 23, 2020 

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



 

 

STAFF REPORT  
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: Zone Change and Land Partition 

Project Krebs Partitions  
 Applicant: Richard Kreb; Agent: Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.  

File no. LDP-20-016, ZC-20-017 

To Planning Commission  for April 23, 2020 hearing 

From Liz Conner CFM, Planner II 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date April 16, 2020  

BACKGROUND 

Proposal 

Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot land partition of 
a single parcel totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a change of zone from SFR-
4 (Single Family Residential, four dwelling units per gross acre) to SFR-6 (Single Family 
Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre). The property is located at 2939 Bailey 
Avenue approximately 300 feet south of Delta Waters Road in the SFR-4 Zoning 
district (371W16BB TL 15800).  

Vicinity Map 

  

Page 66



Krebs Partition Staff Report 
LDP-20-016/ ZC-20-017 April 16, 2020 

Page 2 of 9 
 

Subject Site Characteristics 

GLUP UR Urban Residential 
Zoning SFR-4 Single Family Residential  
Overlay A-C Airport Area of Concern   
Use One single family dwelling 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North Zone: SFR-4  
 Use: Single family dwelling  

South Zone: SFR-4  
 Use: Single family dwelling 

East  Zone: SFR-4 
 Use: Single family dwelling 

West Zone: SFR-4 
 Use: Single family dwelling 

Related Projects 

None.   

Applicable Criteria 

ZONE CHANGE APPROVAL CRITERIA – SFR-6 ZONE 
FROM SECTION 10.204(B) OF THE MEDFORD LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

The Planning Commission shall approve a quasi-judicial, minor zone change if it finds 
that the zone change complies with subsections (1) and (2) below: 

(1) The proposed zone is consistent with the Transportation System Plan (TSP) and 
the General Land Use Plan Map designation.  A demonstration of consistency with 
the acknowledged TSP will assure compliance with the Oregon Transportation 
Planning Rule. 

(2) Where applicable, the proposed zone shall also be consistent with the additional 
locational standards of the below sections (2)(a), (2)(b), (2)(c), or (2)(d).  Where a 
special area plan requires a specific zone, any conflicting or additional require-
ments of the plan shall take precedence over the locational criteria below. 

*** 

(f) For zone changes to apply or to remove an overlay zone (Limited Industrial, 
Exclusive Agricultural, Freeway, Southeast, Historic) the criteria can be found 
in the applicable overlay section (Sections 10.345 through 10.413). 

Page 67



Krebs Partition Staff Report 
LDP-20-016/ ZC-20-017 April 16, 2020 

Page 3 of 9 
 

(3) It shall be demonstrated that Category A urban services and facilities are available 
or can and will be provided, as described below, to adequately serve the subject 
property with the permitted uses allowed under the proposed zoning, except as 
provided in subsection (c) below.  The minimum standards for Category A services 
and facilities are contained in Section 10.462 as well as the Public Facilities Ele-
ment and Transportation System Plan in the Comprehensive Plan. 

(a) Storm drainage, sanitary sewer, and water facilities must already be adequate 
in condition, capacity, and location to serve the property or be extended or 
otherwise improved to adequately serve the property at the time of issuance 
of a building permit for vertical construction. 

(b) Adequate streets and street capacity must be provided in one of the following 
ways: 

(i) Streets which serve the subject property, as defined in Section 10.461(2),  
presently exist and have adequate capacity; or  

(ii) Existing and new streets that will serve the subject property will be im-
proved and/or constructed, sufficient to meet the required condition and 
capacity, at the time building permits for vertical construction are issued; 
or 

(iii) If it is determined that a street must be constructed or improved in order 
to provide adequate capacity for more than one proposed or anticipated 
land use, the Planning Commission may find the street to be adequate 
when the improvements needed to make the street adequate are fully 
funded.  A street project is deemed to be fully funded when one of the 
following occurs:  

a. the project is in the City’s adopted capital improvement plan budget, or 
is a programmed project in the first two years of the State’s current STIP 
(State Transportation Improvement Plan), or any other public agencies 
adopted capital improvement plan budget; or  

b.  an applicant funds the improvement through a reimbursement district 
pursuant to the Section 10.432.  The cost of the improvements will be 
either the actual cost of construction, if constructed by the applicant, 
or the estimated cost.  The “estimated cost” shall be 125% of a profes-
sional engineer’s estimated cost that has been approved by the City, 
including the cost of any right-of-way acquisition.  The method de-
scribed in this paragraph shall not be used if the Public Works Depart-
ment determines, for reasons of public safety, that the improvement 
must be constructed prior to issuance of building permits. 

Page 68



Krebs Partition Staff Report 
LDP-20-016/ ZC-20-017 April 16, 2020 

Page 4 of 9 
 

(iv) When a street must be improved under (b)(ii) or (b)(iii) above, the specific 
street improvement(s) needed to make the street adequate must be iden-
tified, and it must be demonstrated by the applicant that the improve-
ment(s) will make the street adequate in condition and capacity.  

(c) In determining the adequacy of Category A facilities, the Planning Commission 
may mitigate potential impacts through the imposition of special development 
conditions, stipulations, or restrictions attached to the zone change request.  
Special development conditions, stipulations, or restrictions shall be estab-
lished by deed restriction or covenant, and must be recorded at the County 
Recorder’s office with proof of recordation returned to the Planning Depart-
ment.  Such special development conditions shall include, but are not limited 
to the following: 

(i) Restricted Zoning is a restriction of uses by type or intensity.   In cases 
where such a restriction is proposed, the Planning Commission must find 
that the resulting development pattern will not preclude future develop-
ment, or intensification of development on the subject property or adja-
cent parcels.  In no case shall residential densities be approved that do not 
meet minimum density standards; 

(ii) Mixed-use, pedestrian-friendly design which qualifies for the trip reduction 
percentage allowed by the Transportation Planning Rule; 

(iii) Transportation Demand Management (TDM) measures which can be rea-
sonably quantified, monitored, and enforced, such as mandatory car/van 
pools. 

PARTITION TENTATIVE PLAT APPROVAL CRITERIA 

FROM SECTION 10.170(D) OF THE MEDFORD LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

The Planning Director shall not approve any tentative partition plat unless they can 
determine that the proposed land partition, together with the provisions for its design 
and improvement: 

(1)  Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, any other applicable specific 
plans thereto, including Neighborhood Circulation Plans, and all applicable de-
sign standards set forth in Article IV and V; 

(2)  Will not prevent development of the remainder of the property under the 
same ownership, if any, or of adjoining land or of access thereto, in accordance 
with this chapter; 

(3)  If it includes the creation of streets or alleys, that such streets or alleys are 
laid out to be consistent with existing and planned streets and alleys and with 
the plats of land divisions already approved for adjoining property, unless the 

Page 69



Krebs Partition Staff Report 
LDP-20-016/ ZC-20-017 April 16, 2020 

Page 5 of 9 
 

approving authority determines it is in the  public interest to modify the street 
pattern; 

(4)  If it has streets or alleys that are proposed to be held for private use, that 
they are distinguished from the public streets or alleys on the tentative plat, 
and reservations or restrictions relating to the private streets or alleys are set 
forth; 

(5)  Will not cause an unmitigated land use conflict between the land partition 
and adjoining agricultural lands within the EFU (Exclusive Farm Use) zoning 
district.  

Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. The Commission is the approving authority under 
MLDC 10.110(D) and MLDC 10.114 Concurrent Land Use Review.  

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Current Condition 

The subject property is a single unit of land of approximately 0.62 gross acres. The 
site fronts Bailey Avenue and is developed with a single family dwelling. The 
applicant’s intent is to demo the existing dwelling once the second single family 
dwelling in lieu of a duplex obtains its Certificate of Occupancy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70



Krebs Partition Staff Report 
LDP-20-016/ ZC-20-017 April 16, 2020 

Page 6 of 9 
 

Zone Change 

The property is currently zoned SFR-4 and is proposed to be rezoned to SFR-6. A 
maximum of two dwelling units may be constructed on this property under the 
current SFR-4 zoning. If approved, the request for a zone change to SFR-6 would allow 
a density range of two to four dwelling units.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CRITERIA COMPLIANCE 

GLUP/TSP Consistency 

The General Land Use Plan (GLUP) map 
designation for the subject parcel is UR 
(Urban Residential), and, according to the 
General Land Use Plan Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan, the SFR-6 zoning 
district is a permitted zone within the UR 
GLUP designation.  

The Transportation System Plan (TSP) 
serves as a blueprint to guide 
transportation decisions as development 
occurs in the City. A traffic Impact Analysis 
(TIA) is required when an application has the 
potential of generating more than 250 net 

Page 71



Krebs Partition Staff Report 
LDP-20-016/ ZC-20-017 April 16, 2020 

Page 7 of 9 
 

Average Daily Trips (ADT) or the Public Works Department has concerns due to 
operations or accident history.   

Public Works determined that a TIA was not required with the subject request. 

Facility Adequacy 

MLDC 10.204(3) requires demonstration that Category A facilities (storm drainage, 
sanitary sewer, water and transportation) must already be adequate in condition, 
capacity and location to serve the property or be extended or otherwise improved to 
adequately serve the property at the time of issuance of a building permit for vertical 
construction.  

The agency comments included in Exhibits F through I demonstrate that Category A 
facilities are adequate to serve the property at the time it is developed, with the 
exception of sanitary sewer. 

The Public Works Department notes capacity constraints downstream at the Terminal 
Spur and contains options, including a stipulation from the applicant that total sewer 
flows will not exceed current zoning limitations. The applicant notes that duplexes 
are permitted outright in the current SFR-4 zone district. The site is currently 
developed with one unit, so three units are permitted under the current zoning. 
Planning staff does not object to the argument. 

Tentative Plat Proposal (Exhibit B) 

The applicant is proposing to 
partition the property into 
three lots equal in size. Each lot 
will have direct access from 
Bailey Avenue. The subject site 
has Flowers Subdivision 
platted in 1995 to the north 
and Delta Park Subdivision Unit 
No. 2 surrounding the 
remainder of the property. No 
new street connections are 
proposed.  

 

  

Page 72



Krebs Partition Staff Report 
LDP-20-016/ ZC-20-017 April 16, 2020 

Page 8 of 9 
 

Density 

As shown on the Density Table above, based on the 0.62 gross acres, the creation of 
three lots falls within the minimum/maximum range permitted for the SFR-6 zoning 
district, as per MLDC 10.710. 

Development Standards 

Detached Single Family Dwellings 

Site Development Table (MLDC 10.710) 

SFR-6 Lot Area 
Minimum Lot 

Width 
(Interior) 

Minimum 
Corner Lot 

Width 

Minimum 
Lot Depth 

Minimum  
Lot 

Frontage 

Required 
4,500 to 
12,500  

50 feet 60 feet 90 feet 30 feet 

Shown 6,998 50 NA 139.6 50 

Facility Adequacy 

Per the agency comments submitted to staff (Exhibits G through M), it can be found 
that there are adequate facilities to serve the future development of the site. 

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from a committee, such as BPAC. 

Public Comments (Exhibits N and O) 

The Planning Department received an email from a neighbor at 2940 Bailey Avenue 
requesting the Planning Commission deny the zone change application. The request 
did not address the applicable criteria for zone change in MLDC 10.204(B). The email 

SFR-6 
Minimum /Maximum 

Density 
Allowed Shown 

4.0 to 6.0 dwelling units per 
gross acre 

2 min – 4 max 3 lots 

Page 73



Krebs Partition Staff Report 
LDP-20-016/ ZC-20-017 April 16, 2020 

Page 9 of 9 
 

states that the density allowed in SFR-6 is not conducive to the existing neighborhood. 
After communicating with the on-site resident, the objection was withdrawn.  

No other issues were identified by staff.  

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s findings and conclusions (Exhibits D and E) and 
recommends the Commission adopt the findings as presented.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and adopt the final orders for approval 
of LDP-20-016 and ZC-20-017 per the staff report dated April 16, 2020, including 
Exhibits A through Q. 

EXHIBITS 

A Conditions of Approval, dated April 16, 2020 
B Tentative Plat Partition submitted January 21, 2020 
C Grading and Drainage Plan submitted January 21, 2020 
D Applicant’s Findings and Conclusions submitted January 21, 2020 – Zone 

Change 
E Applicant’s Findings and Conclusions submitted January 21, 2020 - Partition 
F Applicant’s Single Family Dwelling in Lieu of Duplex Letter submitted 

February 27, 2020 
G Public Works Department Staff Report received February 26, 2020 – Zone 

Change 
H Public Works Department Staff Report received February 26, 2020 - Partition 
I Medford Water Commission memo submitted February 26, 2020 
J Medford Fire Department report submitted February 26, 2020 
K Medford Building Department memo submitted February 26, 2020 
L Jackson County Roads Comments submitted February 18, 2020 
M Oregon Department of Aviation email submitted February 24, 2020 
N Regan Trapp email submitted March 13, 2020 
O Regan Trapp email submitted March 18, 2020 
P Density Calculation for SFR-4 
Q Density Calculation for SFR-6 

Vicinity map  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA: APRIL 23, 2020 
 MARCH 26, 2020  

Page 74



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Krebs Partition and Zone Change 
LDP-20-016/ZC-20-017 
Conditions of Approval 

April 16, 2020 
 

Zone Change 

None. 

Partition 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the approval of the final plat, the applicant shall: 

1. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Public Works Department (Exhibit H) 
2. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit I). 

 

Page 75



Page 76

KAEvans
B



Page 77

KAEvans
C



Page 78

KAEvans
D



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85

KAEvans
E



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



   

4401 San Juan Drive, Suite G 
Medford, Oregon 97504 
 
Phone and Fax 541-772-1494 
Cell 541-601-0917 
Email scottsinner@yahoo.com 

Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc. 
Land Use Planning, Conservation Consulting 

 

 

 

February 27, 2020 
 
 
Liz Conner 
City of Medford Planning Department 
200 S Ivy 
Medford, OR 97501 
 
Re: LDP-20-016 
 
Liz, 
 
I would like to confirm our telephone call today regarding the development on the subject property. 
 
The existing parcel is currently developed with a single family dwelling, occupied by a relative of the owner. The 
proposed lot line between parcels 2 and 3 is under this dwelling. 
 
Mr. Krebs is planning to build a single family dwelling on the proposed Parcel 1 for the relative in the existing 
dwelling. The timing of the demolition and replacement of the dwelling was identified in the Land Development 
Committee meeting for the project. 
 
The current code section 10.713 allows a duplex dwelling on a SFR-4 parcel and also allows two detached single 
family dwellings in lieu of a an attached duplex. The applicant is actively designing a single family detached 
dwelling to comply with all setback standards that would be applicable to development on the proposed Parcel 1 
and will be submitting plans for construction.  
 
Since 10.713 allows for the two single family dwellings on the same parcel, the applicant will be able to be in 
compliance with the code and would be able to proceed with the street improvements to be required with the 
tentative plat approval. 
 
The existing dwelling does not have a paved driveway. Since the existing dwelling will be removed prior to final 
plat, and the future driveway for a dwelling on that parcel is not yet determined, that applicant requests that 
there would be no condition of approval to pave the existing access for the dwelling to be removed. The new 
dwellings on all parcels would, of course, meet all the current codes and standards. 
 
Please feel free to call if you have any questions. 
Regards, 

 
Scott Sinner, President 
Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc. 
  

Page 95

KAEvans
F



 
 

City of Medford 200 South Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 541-774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\ZC-20-017 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 1 of 2 

LD DATE: 2/26/2020 

File Number: ZC-20-017 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 
 

2939 Bailey Avenue (TL 15800) 
SFR-4 to SFR-6 (Krebs) 
 

Project: Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot land 

partition of a single parcel totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a 

change of zone from SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four dwelling units per 

gross acre) to SFR-6 (Single Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross 

acre). 

Location:  The property is located at 2939 Bailey Avenue approximately 300 feet south 

of Delta Waters Road in the SFR-4 Zoning district (371W16BB TL 15800). 

Applicant:  Applicant, Richard Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Liz 

Conner.   
 

 

The Medford Land Development Code (MLDC), Section 10.227 (2) requires a zone change 

application demonstrate Category ‘A’ urban services and facilities are available or can and will 

be provided to adequately serve the subject property.  The Public Works Department reviews 

zone change applications to assure the services and facilities under its jurisdiction meet those 

requirements.  The services and facilities that Public Works Department manages are sanitary 

sewers within the City’s service boundary, storm drains, and the transportation system. 
 

I. Sanitary Sewer Facilities 
 

The proposed zone change has the potential to increase flows to the sanitary sewer 

system.  The downstream sanitary sewer system currently has capacity constraints. Based 

on this information, the Public Works Department recommends this zone change be 

denied, or the applicant stipulate to only develop so the total sewer flows do not exceed 

current zoning limitation, or the Developer make improvements to the downstream 

sanitary sewer system to alleviate capacity constraints, or the Developer provide an 

engineering study of the downstream sewer system to show capacity exists to allow the 

proposed zone change. 
 

Page 96

KAEvans
G



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\ZC-20-017 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 2 of 2 

II. Storm Drainage Facilities  
 

This site may be required to provide stormwater quality and detention at time of 

development in accordance with MLDC, Section 10.729 and/or 10.486. 
 

III. Transportation System 
 

No traffic impact analysis (TIA) will be required for this zone change.  The proposed 

application doesn’t meet the requirements for a TIA, per Medford Municipal Code (MMC), 

Section 10.461 (3). 
 

No conditions pertaining to streets, street capacity, or access are requested by Public 

Works at this time.  
 

Prepared by: Jodi K Cope 

Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above report is based on the information provided with the Zone Change Application submittal and is subject to change 

based on actual conditions, revised plans and documents or other conditions.  A full report with additional details on each item 

as well as miscellaneous requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans (Construction 

Plans), design requirements, phasing, draft and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, pavement 

moratoriums and construction inspection shall be provided with a Development Permit Application. 

Page 97



 
 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx Page 1 of 9 

LD DATE: 2/26/2020 

Revised 3/17/2020 

File Number: LDP-20-016 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 
2939 Bailey Avenue (TL 15800) 
3- Lot Partition (Krebs) 
 

Project: Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot land 

partition of a single parcel totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a 

change of zone from SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four dwelling units per 

gross acre) to SFR-6 (Single Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross 

acre). 

Location:  The property is located at 2939 Bailey Avenue approximately 300 feet south 

of Delta Waters Road in the SFR-4 Zoning district (371W16BB TL 15800). 

Applicant:  Applicant, Richard Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Liz 

Conner.   
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The following items shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective events under 

which they are listed: 
 

 Approval of Final Plat: 

Right-of-way, construction and/or assurance of the public improvements in 

accordance with Medford Land Development Code (MLDC), Section 10.666 & 

10.667 (Items A, B & C) 
 

 Issuance of first building permit for residential construction: 

Construction of public improvements (Items A through E) 

 Issuance of Certificates of Occupancy for individual units: 

Sidewalks (Items A2) 

 

A. STREETS 
 

1. Dedications 
 

Bailey Avenue is considered Legacy Street per Medford Land Development Code (MLDC) 

10.427(D).  Proposed conditions of approval for land use actions which contain legacy 

streets shall be subject to review and recommendation by the City Engineer. The applicant 

shall be required to have a conference with the City Engineer prior to submitting land use 

applications containing legacy streets; the City Engineer shall produce a memorandum 

summarizing the meeting and legacy street standards that would apply to the land use 

Page 98

KAEvans
H



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 2 of 9 

application and this memorandum shall be submitted as an exhibit with the land use 

application. If a deviation from the City Engineer’s recommendation is requested by the 

applicant, the applicant shall provide written findings (see criteria under MLDC 

10.427(D)(1)(a-e). 
 

Bailey Avenue is classified as a Standard Residential Street within the MLDC, Section 

10.430.  The Developer shall dedicate for public right-of-way, sufficient width of land along 

the frontage to comply with the half width of right-of-way, which is 31.5-feet, or as an 

option, may dedicate enough to provide a 24-foot half width as recommended through the 

Legacy Street conference to accommodate a 5-foot curbtight sidewalk.  The Developer’s 

surveyor shall verify the amount of additional right-of-way required. 
 

Public Utility Easements (PUE), 10-feet in width, shall be dedicated along the street frontage 

of all the Lots within this development (MLDC 10.471). 
 

The right-of-way and easement dedications shall be submitted directly to the Engineering 

Division of the Public Works Department.  The submittal shall include: the right-of-way and 

easement dedication, including an exhibit map; a copy of a current Lot Book Report, 

Preliminary Title Report, or Title Policy; a mathematical closure report (if applicable), and 

the Planning Department File Number; for review and City Engineer acceptance signature 

prior to recordation by the applicant. Releases of interest shall be obtained by holders of 

trust deeds or mortgages on the right-of-way and PUE area. 
 

2. Public Improvements 
 

a. Public Streets 
 

Bailey Avenue shall be improved to Standard Residential Street standards in accordance 

with the MLDC, Section 10.430.  The Delta Park Unit II Subdivision and Northfield Estates 

Subdivision, project (P1003D) completed partial improvements to the east half plus 8-feet 

west of centerline to Bailey Avenue along the frontage of this development.  Therefore, the 

Developer shall improve the remaining west half to provide an 18-foot half street width 

along the frontage of this development.  This shall include saw cutting the existing east 

edge of pavement back a minimum of 1-foot to ensure structural integrity and to provide 

cross slopes that meet current standards as required.  As an option, the Developer may 

construct the 5-foot sidewalk curbtight as recommended through the Legacy Street 

conference. 
 

b. Street Lights and Signing 
 

No additional street lights are required. 
 

The Developer shall be responsible for the preservation and re-installation of all signs 

removed during demolition and site preparation work.  The Developer’s contractor shall 

coordinate with the City of Medford Public Works, Maintenance and Operations Division to 

Page 99



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 3 of 9 

remove any existing signs and place new signs provided by the Developer. 
 

c. Pavement Moratoriums 
 

There is a no pavement cutting moratorium currently in effect along this frontage. 
 

The Developer shall be responsible for notifying by certified letter all utility companies, as 

well as all current property owners of parcels which are adjacent to any Public Street being 

constructed or paved as part of this project. The letter shall inform the utility companies 

and property owners of the City's street moratorium policy with respect to pavement 

cutting for future utility services. The utility companies and property owners shall be given 

the opportunity to install utility services within the right-of-way prior to paving and the 

subsequent moratorium. Notifications shall be mailed by the Developer at least 6 months 

before a street is resurfaced or rebuilt per Medford Municipal Code (MMC), Section 3.070. 

Copies of the certifications shall be submitted to the City Engineer with the submittal of the 

preliminary construction drawings. 
 

d.  Soils Report 
 

The Developer’s Engineer shall obtain a soils report to determine if there is shrink-swell 

potential in the underlying soils in this development.  If they are present, they shall be 

accounted for in the roadway and sidewalk design within this Development.  The soils 

report shall be completed by a licensed Geotechnical Engineer in the state of Oregon. 
 

e. Access to Public Street System 
 

Driveways shall comply with MLDC 10.550. 
 

f. Easements 
 

Easements shall be shown on the final plat for all sanitary sewer and storm drain mains or 

laterals, which cross lots, including any common area, other than those being served by said 

lateral.  
 

3. Section 10.668 Analysis 
 

To support a condition of development that an Applicant dedicate land for public use or 

provide a public improvement, the Medford Code requires a nexus and rough 

proportionality analysis which is essentially a codification of the constitutional provisions in 

Nollan and Dolan cases.  
 

10.668 Limitation of Exactions 
 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Chapter 10, an Applicant for a development 

permit shall not be required, as a condition of granting the application, to dedicate land for 

public use or provide public improvements unless: 

Page 100



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 4 of 9 

 

(1) the record shows that there is an essential nexus between the exaction and a legitimate 

government purpose and that there is a rough proportionality between the burden of the 

exaction on the Developer and the burden of the development on public facilities and 

services so that the exaction will not result in a taking of private property for public use, or 
 

(2) a mechanism exists and funds are available to fairly compensate the Applicant for the 

excess burden of the exaction to the extent that it would be a taking. 
 

1. Nexus to a legitimate government purpose 

The purposes for these dedications and improvements are found throughout the 

Medford Code, the Medford Transportation System Plan, and the Statewide Planning 

Rule, and supported by sound public policy.  Those purposes and policies include, but 

are not limited to: development of a balanced transportation system addressing all 

modes of travel, including motor vehicles, transit, bicycles, emergency services and 

pedestrians.  Further, these rights-of-way are used to provide essential services such as 

sanitary sewer, domestic water and storm drains to serve the developed parcels.  It can 

be found that the listed right-of-way dedications and improvements have a nexus to 

these purposes and policies.   
 

2. Rough proportionality between the dedications and improvements, and the 

impacts of development.  

No mathematical formula is required to support the rough proportionality analysis.  

Furthermore, benefits to the development resulting from the dedication and 

improvements when determining “rough proportionality” have been considered, 

including but not limited to: increased property values, intensification of use, as well as 

connections to municipal services and the transportation network. 
 

As set forth below, the dedications and improvements recommended herein can be 

found to be roughly proportional to the impacts reasonably anticipated to be imposed 

by this development. 
 

Bailey Avenue: 
 

Local street right-of-way dedication and construction requirements identified by the Public 

Works Department and required by the City are the minimum required to protect the 

public interest and are necessary for additional or densification of development in the City 

without detracting from the common good enjoyed by existing properties.  Developments 

are required to provide all internal local streets and half-street improvements to abutting 

streets, including associated right-of-way dedications, to ensure that new development and 

density intensification provides the current level of urban services and adequate street 

circulation is maintained. 
 

The benefits of the public right-of-way improvements include: providing access and 

Page 101



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 5 of 9 

transportation connections at urban level of service standards, on street parking, improved 

connectivity reducing all modes of trips generated, decreased emergency response times, 

benefits from using right-of-way to provide public utility services, the additional traffic that 

is being generated by this proposed land division and the necessity to provide connections 

for all modes of trips generated 
 

Dedication of the Public Utility Easement (PUE) will benefit development by providing public 

utility services, which are out of the roadway and more readily available to each lot or 

building being served.  The additional traffic of all modes of travel generated by this 

proposed development supports the dedication and improvements for all modes of travel 

and utilities.  As indicated above, the area required to be dedicated for this development is 

necessary and roughly proportional to that required in similar developments to provide a 

transportation system that meets the needs for urban level services. 

 

B. SANITARY SEWERS 
 

The proposed development is situated within the Medford sewer service area.  The 

Developer shall provide one service lateral to each buildable lot prior to approval of the 

Final Plat.   

 

C. STORM DRAINAGE 
 

1. Drainage Plan 
 

The Developer shall provide a comprehensive drainage plan showing the entire project site 

with sufficient spot elevations to determine direction of runoff to the proposed drainage 

system, and also showing elevations on the proposed drainage system, shall be submitted 

with the first building permit application for approval.   
 

The Developer shall provide copies of either a Joint Use Maintenance Agreement or a 

private stormdrain easement for any stormwater draining onto or from adjacent private 

property. 
 

A Site/Utility Plan shall be submitted with the building permit application to show the 

location of the existing or proposed stormdrain lateral/s for the site. 
 

All private storm drain lines shall be located outside of the public right-of-way and/or any 

public utility easements (PUE). 
 

2. Grading 
 

The Developer shall provide a comprehensive grading plan showing the relationship 

between adjacent property and the proposed development.  Grading on this development 

shall not block drainage from an adjacent property or concentrate drainage onto an 

Page 102



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 6 of 9 

adjacent property without an easement. The Developer shall be responsible that the final 

grading of the development shall be in compliance with the approved grading plan. 
 

3. Detention and Water Quality 
 

Provide stormwater quality and detention facilities in accordance with MLDC Sections 

10.481 and 10.729, and 10.486. 
 

4. Mains and Laterals 
 

All roof drains and foundation drains shall be connected directly to a storm drain 

system.  
 

A storm drain lateral shall be constructed to each parcel prior to approval of the Final 

Plat. Easements shall be shown on the Final Plat for storm drain laterals crossing 

property other than the one being served by the lateral. If a private storm drain system 

is being used to drain this site, the applicant shall provide a joint use maintenance 

agreement. 
 

5. Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control 
 

All development that disturbs 5,000 square feet or greater shall require an Erosion 

Prevention and Sediment Control Plan.  Developments that disturb one acre and greater 

shall require a 1200C permit from the DEQ.  Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control 

Plans shall be submitted to the Building Department with the project plans for 

development.  All disturbed areas shall be covered with vegetation or properly stabilized 

prior to certificate of occupancy. 

 

D. SURVEY MONUMENTATION 
 

All survey monumentation shall be in place, field-checked, and approved by the City 

Surveyor prior to approval of the final plat. 

 

E. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

1. Design Requirements and Construction Drawings 
 

All public improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the “Engineering Design 

Standards for Public Improvements”, adopted by the Medford City Council. Copies of this 

document are available in the Public Works Engineering office. 
 

2. Construction Plans 
 

Construction drawings for any public improvements for this project shall be prepared by a 

professional engineer currently licensed in the State of Oregon, and submitted to the 

Page 103



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 7 of 9 

Engineering Division of Medford Public Works Department for approval. Construction 

drawings for public improvements shall be submitted only for the improvements to be 

constructed with each phase.  Approval shall be obtained prior to beginning construction. 

Only a complete set of construction drawings (3 copies) shall be accepted for review, 

including plans and profiles for all streets, sanitary sewers, storm drains, and street lights 

as required by the governing commission’s Final Order, together with all pertinent details 

and calculations.  A checklist for public improvement plan submittal can be found on the 

City of Medford, Public Works web site 

(http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103).  The Developer shall pay a deposit 

for plan review and construction inspection prior to final plan approval.  Public Works will 

keep track of all costs associated with the project and, upon our acceptance of the 

completed project, will reconcile the accounting and either reimburse the Developer any 

excess deposit or bill the Developer for any additional amount not covered by the deposit. 

The Developer shall pay Public Works within 60 days of the billing date or will be 

automatically turned over for collections. 
 

In order to properly maintain an updated infrastructure data base, the Surveyor of Record 

shall submit an as-built survey prior to the Final Inspection and, the Engineer of Record 

shall submit mylar “as-constructed” drawings to the Engineering Division within sixty (60) 

calendar days of the Final Inspection (walk through).  Also, the engineer shall coordinate 

with the utility companies, and show all final utility locations on the "as built" drawings. 
 

3. Draft of Final Plat 
 

The Developer shall submit 2 copies of the preliminary draft of the final plat at the same 

time the public improvement plans (3 copies) are submitted.  Neither lot number nor lot 

line changes shall be allowed on the plat after that time, unless approved by the City and all 

utility companies. 
 

4. Easements 
 

Easements shall be shown on the Final Plat for all sanitary sewer laterals and storm drainage 

laterals that cross lots other than the one being served by the laterals. 
 

5. Permits 
 

Concrete or block walls built within a PUE, or within sanitary sewer or storm drain 

easements require review and approval from the Engineering Division of Public Works. 

Walls shall require a separate permit from the Building Department and may also require 

certification by a professional engineer. 
 

6. System Development Charges (SDCs) 
 

Buildings in this development are subject to SDC fees. These SDC fees shall be paid at the 

time individual building permits are taken out. 

Page 104

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103


 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 8 of 9 

 

This development is also subject to storm drain system development charges.  The storm 

drain system development charge shall be collected at the time of the approval of the final 

plat. 
 

7. Construction and Inspection 
 

Contractors proposing to do work on public streets (including street lights), sewers, or 

storm drains shall ‘prequalify’ with the Engineering Division prior to starting work.  

Contractors shall work off a set of public improvement drawings that have been approved 

by the City of Medford Engineering Division. 
 

For City of Medford facilities, the Public Works Maintenance Division requires that public 

sanitary sewer and storm drain mains be inspected by video camera prior to acceptance of 

these systems by the City. 
 

Where applicable, the Developer shall bear all expenses resulting from the adjustment of 

manholes to finish grades as a result of changes in the finish street grade. 

 
Prepared by: Jodi K Cope       

Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs 

 

  

Page 105



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 9 of 9 

SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
2939 Bailey Avenue (TL 15800) 
3- Lot Partition                    LDP-20-016 
 

A. Streets 
 

1. Street Dedications to the Public: 

 Bailey Avenue – Dedicate additional right-of-way unless otherwise recommended through 

the Legacy Street conference. 

 Dedicate 10-foot public utility easements (PUE). 
 

2. Improvements: 
 

Public Streets 

 Improve Bailey Avenue west half to Standard Residential Street standards, unless otherwise 

recommended through the Legacy Street conference. 
 

Lighting and Signing 

 No additional street lights are required. 
 

Access to Public Street System 

 Driveways shall comply with MLDC 10.550. 
 

Other 

 No pavement moratorium currently in effect along this frontage. 

 Provide pavement moratorium letters. 

o Provide soils report. 
 

B. Sanitary Sewer: 

 Provide a private lateral to each lot. 

 Provide easements as necessary. 
 

C. Storm Drainage: 

 Provide an investigative drainage report, with future development. 

 Provide a comprehensive grading plan, with future development. 

 Provide water quality and detention facilities, with future development. 

 Provide storm drain laterals to each tax lot, with future development. 
 

D. Survey Monumentation 

 Provide all survey monumentation. 
 

E. General Conditions 

 Building permits will not be issued until after final plat approval. 
 

 

 = City Code Requirement 

o = Discretionary recommendations/comments 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way.  If there is any discrepancy between 

the above list and the full report, the full report shall govern.  Refer to the full report for details on each item as well as miscellaneous 

requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans (Construction Plans), design requirements, phasing, draft 

and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, pavement moratoriums and construction inspection. 

Page 106



  

      BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

                 Staff Memo 
 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\ldp20016-zc20017.docx                           
 Page 1 of 2 

TO: Planning Department, City of Medford 

FROM: Rodney Grehn P.E., Water Commission Staff Engineer 

SUBJECT: LDP-20-016 & ZC-20-017 

PARCEL ID: 371W16BB TL 15800 

PROJECT: Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot land partition of 
a single parcel totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a change of zone from 
SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four dwelling units per gross acre) to SFR-6 
(Single Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre). The property is 
located at 2939 Bailey Avenue approximately 300 feet south of Delta Waters 
Road in the SFR-4 Zoning district (371W16BB TL 15800); Applicant, Richard 
Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Liz Conner. 

DATE: February 26, 2020 

 
I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested.  Conditions for approval and 
comments are as follows: 
 
CONDITIONS 

1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the 
Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and “Standards 
For Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devices.” 

2. All parcels/lots of proposed property divisions will be required to have metered water service 
prior to recordation of final map, unless otherwise arranged with MWC. 

3. Adequate capacity is available to serve this proposed development. 

4. There are two (2) existing water meters that were previously installed to these properties. 
These water meters are required to be abandoned. 

5. Installation of three (3) water services is required; one for each of the proposed Parcels per 
MWC Standards. 

6. If a well is located on this parcel it will be required to be abandoned per State of Oregon water 
Resources Department regulations per Oregon Water Resources Department Chapter 690 
Division 220. 

COMMENTS 

1. Off-site water line installation is not required. 

2. On-site water facility construction is not required. 

Continued to Next Page 

Page 107

KAEvans
I



  

      BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

                 Staff Memo 
 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\ldp20016-zc20017.docx                           
 Page 2 of 2 

Continued from Previous Page 

3. Static water pressure is approximately 78 psi. 

4. MWC-metered water service does exist to this property. There are two (2) existing water 
meters currently installed across the frontage of Bailey Avenue. The locations of these two (2) 
water meters may not work with the Lot configuration. (See Condition 3 above) 

5. Access to MWC water lines is available. There is an existing 8-inch water line in Baily Avenue. 

Page 108



G

G

G

S

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

!R

!R

!R

!4 !4

!4 !4

!4

!4
!4

!4

!4

!4
!4

!4
!4

!4

!4
!4

!4

!4

!4 !4

!4 !4

!4

!4

!4
!4

!4

!4

!4
!4

!4

!4
!4

!4

!4
!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4
!4

!4

!4
!4

!4!4

!4
!4

!4

!4 !4

!4 !4

!4

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.3070
3/4M

3076
3/4M

3050
3/4M

3052
3/4M

3015
3/4M

3030
3/4M

3034
3/4M

3040
3/4M

3048
3/4M

3052
3/4M

3054
3/4M

3053
3/4M

3045
3/4M

3035
3/4M

3031
3/4M

3029
3/4M

3027
3/4M

3025
3/4M

3023
3/4M

3021
3/4M

3018
3/4M

3016
3/4M

2930
3/4M

2940
3/4M

2948
3/4M2956

3/4M

2965
3/4M

M

2964
3/4M

2972
3/4M

2971
3/4M

2980
3/4M

2988
1M

3024
3/4M

2973
3/4M

2987
3/4M

2994
3/4M

2963-67
3/4M

2995
3/4M

2979
3/4M

2912
3/4M

2922
3/4M

2939
OtherM

2911
3/4M

3257
3/4M

3247
3/4M

3274
3/4M

3254
3/4M

3246
3/4M

3056
3/4M

3060
3/4M

3147
3/4M

3153
3/4M

3044
3/4M

Gravity

1'' C

1'' C
1'' C

1'' C
1'' C

1'' C
1'' C

1'' C
1'' C

1'' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'' C

1'' C

1'' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'' C

1'' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'' C

1'
' C

1''
 C 1'

' C
1'
' C

1'' C
1'' C

3040

3018

2922

2995

2930

3052

3053

3050

3015

3056

3044

3030

3247

3060

2980

2988

3023

3070

3254

3027

3034

3246

3035

2912

3257

2940

3021

3029

3048

3016

2973
2965

2971

2956

3025

2967

2939

2964

2972

3052

3031

3024

2987

3054

3045

2948

2979

3076

2911
2909

8
'' 
D
I 
1
9
9
3

8
''

D
I

1
9
8
3

8
'' 
D
I

1
9
8
8

16'' DI 1974

4'' DI 1987

4
'' 
D
I 
1
9
9
3

4
'' 
D
I 
1
9
8
6

8'' DI 1993
H3975
Elev: 1410 ft

H3976
Elev: 1407 ft

H3977
Elev: 1403 ft

H4102
Elev: 1407 ft

4'' TV2121

8'' TV2122

8'' TV2125

6'' GV9711

6'' GV9712

6'' GV9713

8'' GV9714

8'' GV9715
8'' GV9716

6'' GV9971
Station 26

4''
Stub

4''
Stub

4'' Stub

Delta Waters Rd

Br
yso

n

Wy

B
ed

fo
rd

C
ir

Adams Cir

B
ai
le
y 
A
v

This map is based on a digital database compiled by  Medford Water Commission from a
variety of sources. Medford Water Commission cannot accept responsibility for errors,
omissions, or positional accuracy. There are no warranties, expressed or implied.

Legend

Water Mains:

Urban Growth Boundary

City Limits

Tax Lots

!RReservoir

"PPump Station

Control Station;̄C

Sample Station

Air Valve

³ Fire Service

Hydrant

Reducer#

Blow Off

Plugs-Caps

Abandoned Main

Active Main

S

!#A

T"B

G

G!.

Reservoir Drain Pipe

Pressure Zone Line

Boundaries:

MWC Facilities:

Butterfly Valve

Gate Valve

Tapping Valve

&É

! (

!R

Water Valves:

Water Meters:
Active Meter

On Well

Unknown

Vacant

!4

!4

!4

!4

±
Water Facility Map
City of Medford

Planning Application:
LDP-20-016 ZC-20-017
(371W16BB15800)

Feb 26, 2020

Scale:
0 50 10025

Feet

1:1,200

Date: 2/13/2020
Path: \\medfordwater.org\public\File Shares\Departments\GIS\Mapping\Projects\LD Map Maker\LD
Map Maker.aprxPage 109

KAEvans
I



Reviewed By: Kleinberg, Greg Review Date: 2/18/2020
Meeting Date: 2/26/2020

LD File #: LDP20016 Associated File
#1:

ZC20017

Planner: Liz Conner

Applicant: Richard Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.

Site Name: N/A

Project Location: The property is located at 2939 Bailey Avenue approximately 300 feet south of Delta Waters Road.

ProjectDescription: Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot land partition of a single parcel
totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a change of zone from SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four
dwelling units per gross acre) to SFR-6 (Single Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre).

Conditions
Reference Description

Approved Approved as submitted with no additional conditions or requirements.

Development shall comply with access and water supply requirements in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code in affect at
the time of development submittal. Fire apparatus access roads are required to be installed prior to the time of construction.
The approved water supply for fire protection (fire hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when
combustible material arrives at the site.

Specific fire protection systems may be required in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code.
This plan review shall not prevent the correction of errors or violations that are found to exist during construction. This plan
review is based on information provided only.

Design and installation shall meet the Oregon requirements of the International Fire, Building, Mechanicial Codes and
applicable NFPA Standards.

Medford Fire-Rescue Land Development Report

Review/Project Information

Specific Development Requirements for Access & Water Supply

Construction General Information/Requirements

Medford Fire-Rescue, 200 S Ivy St. Rm 180, Medford OR 97501 541-774-2300

www.medfordfirerescue.org

Page 1 of 1          

Page 110

KAEvans
J



 
 

 

City of Medford 200 South Ivy, Medford, OR 97501 541-774-2350 cityofmedford.org 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:  Liz Conner, Planning Department 

From:  Mary Montague, Building Department 

CC:  Richard Krebs, Applicant; Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc., Agent 

Date:  February 26, 2020 

Subject: LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017_2939 Bailey Ave_Krebs Partition Zone Change 

 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT:  
Please Note: This is not a plan review. These are general notes based on general 

information provided. Plans need to be submitted and will be reviewed by a residential 

plans examiner to determine if there are any other requirements for this occupancy type. 

Please contact the front counter for fees. 

General Comments: 

1. For list of applicable Building Codes, please visit the City of Medford website: 

www.ci.medford.or.us  Click on “City Departments” at top of screen; click on “Building”; click 

on “Design Criteria” on left side of screen and select the appropriate design criteria. 

2. All plans are to be submitted electronically. Information on the website: 

www.ci.medford.or.us      Go to “City Departments” at top of screen; click on “Building”; click 

on “ELECTRONIC PLAN REVIEW (ePlans)” for information. 

3. Site Excavation permit required to develop, install utilities. 

4. Demo Permit is required for any buildings being demolished. 

Comments: 

5. Provide a letter to the building official per Section R401.4 indicating if expansive soils are 

present or not. If expansive soils are present then a site specific soils geotech report is 

required by a Geotech Engineer prior to foundation inspections. The report must contain 

information per Section 403.1.10 and on how you will prepare the lot for building and a 

report confirming the lot was prepared per their recommendations. 

Page 111

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/
http://www.ci.medford.or.us/
KAEvans
K



Page 112

KAEvans
L



1

Kelly Evans

From: THOMPSON Seth <Seth.THOMPSON@aviation.state.or.us>
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2020 3:26 PM
To: Liz A. Conner
Subject: ODA No Comment: LDP-20-016/ZC-20-017

 
 
Thank you for providing the opportunity for the Oregon Department of Aviation to comment on LDP‐20‐016/ZC‐20‐017.
The ODA has no comment.  
Best regards, 
Seth Thompson 
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF 
AVIATION 
AVIATION PLANNER 

 

OFFICE 503‐378‐2529 CELL 503‐507‐
6965 
EMAIL 
seth.thompson@aviation.state.or.us  
3040 25TH STREET SE, SALEM, OR 
97302 
WWW.OREGON.GOV/AVIATION 

 

Page 113

KAEvans
M



1

Kelly Evans

From: Planning Department
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2020 8:23 AM
To: Liz A. Conner
Subject: FW: Krebs partition

From: regan trapp [mailto:regan06052002@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, March 11, 2020 9:28 AM 
To: Planning Department  
Subject: Re: Krebs partition 

 
 
 
Hello, 
Could you please confirm receipt of this letter and make sure it is entered into the record. Thank you! 
 
On Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 09:18:41 AM PDT, regan trapp <regan06052002@yahoo.com> wrote:  
 
 
Hello, 
I am writing in regards to the Krebs partition at 2939 Bailey Ave (LDP-20-016/ZC-20-017). Please consider denying the 
zone change to SFR-6. The density of the area is not conducive to SFR-6. I love the idea of that lot getting developed as 
the house has been an eyesore for quite some time but disagree with the density that the SFR-6 would allow. Please 
keep the lot at SFR-4 to allow for only 2 lots.  
 
Thank you for your time, 
 
Regan Trapp 
2940 Bailey Ave 
Medford, OR 97504 
 

Page 114

KAEvans
N



1

Kelly Evans

From: Kelly Evans
Sent: Wednesday, March 18, 2020 4:24 PM
To: Liz A. Conner
Subject: FW: Krebs Partition

 
 
 
Kelly Evans | Assistant Planning Director 
City of Medford, Oregon | Planning Department 
Mailing address: 411 W 8th Street, Medford, Oregon 97501 
Office location: 200 S Ivy Street, Second Floor 
Ph: 541-774-2380 | F: 541-618-1708 
 
From: regan trapp [mailto:regan06052002@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, March 18, 2020 4:14 PM 
To: Kelly Evans <Kelly.Evans@cityofmedford.org> 
Subject: Re: Krebs Partition 

 
<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**> 
 
Thank you Kelly!  I spoke with Gail Gibson, who is living in the house at that address.  I no longer have concerns as she 
stated there will only be a single family home on each lot.  Thank you and totally understood that you are shutting down 
public meetings.  We are doing that here at City of Ashland. We have closed our building to the public as well.   
 
Thank you! 
 
On Wednesday, March 18, 2020, 04:10:19 PM PDT, Kelly Evans <kelly.evans@cityofmedford.org> wrote:  
 
 

Hi there, Regan – 

  

First, thank you for your comments on the Krebs partition. They will be entered into the record and you will have standing 
to appeal should you choose to do so. 

  

I wanted to let you know that we are canceling the March 26 Planning Commission meeting because of COVID-19. We 
will move this item, likely to the April 23 meeting. We will be sending out a new public hearing notice when the date has 
been confirmed. 

  

You do not need to re-send your comments unless you have something new to add. Please let Liz or me know if you have
any questions.  

  

Page 115

KAEvans
O



2

Thanks! 

  

Kelly Evans 

  

Kelly Evans | Assistant Planning Director 

City of Medford, Oregon | Planning Department 

Mailing address: 411 W 8th Street, Medford, Oregon 97501 

Office location: 200 S Ivy Street, Second Floor 

Ph: 541-774-2380 | F: 541-618-1708 

  

Page 116



File No.

SQ FT 6969.6 Planner

AC 0.16 0 Date

Tax Lot Numbers Large Lots for Existing Development AC Zoning District SFR-4

371W16BB15800 0.53            AC Reserved Acreage AC Density Range

AC Other
1

Minimum 2.5

AC AC Maximum 4

AC AC

AC AC No. DU Proposed 

AC AC No. DU Permitted Min. 2            

Existing  ROW to Centerline 0.09            AC AC No. DU Permitted Max. 2            

Minimum 1.54      2            

Gross Acres 0.62            AC Subtracted Acres -             AC Maximum 2.46      2            

Effective Acres (Gross - Subtracted) 0.62 Percentage of Maximum 0.00%

Street Name LF Width SF Acreage

Bailey Ave 150.00        25.00                                              3,750.00      0.09                              

-             -                               

-             -                               

-                                                  -             -                               

3,750.00   0.09                              

EXISTING R-O-W CALCULATION

DENSITY CALCULATION FORM
For all residential LDP, LDS, PUD, and AC Application Files

SUBTRACTED ACREAGEGROSS ACREAGE 

LDP-20-016 ZC-20-017

Liz Conner

March 13, 2020

DENSITY RANGE

1 Such as future ROW dedication, resource protection areas, common open space, other dedication areas, etc. 5/06

Page 117

KAEvans
P



File No.

SQ FT 6969.6 Planner

AC 0.16 0 Date

Tax Lot Numbers Large Lots for Existing Development AC Zoning District SFR-6

371W16BB15800 0.53            AC Reserved Acreage AC Density Range

AC Other
1

Minimum 4

AC AC Maximum 6

AC AC

AC AC No. DU Proposed 

AC AC No. DU Permitted Min. 2            

Existing  ROW to Centerline 0.09            AC AC No. DU Permitted Max. 4            

Minimum 2.46      2            

Gross Acres 0.62            AC Subtracted Acres -             AC Maximum 3.70      4            

Effective Acres (Gross - Subtracted) 0.62 Percentage of Maximum 0.00%

Street Name LF Width SF Acreage

Bailey Ave 150.00        25.00                                              3,750.00      0.09                              

-             -                               

-             -                               

-                                                  -             -                               

3,750.00   0.09                              

EXISTING R-O-W CALCULATION

DENSITY CALCULATION FORM
For all residential LDP, LDS, PUD, and AC Application Files

SUBTRACTED ACREAGEGROSS ACREAGE 

LDP-20-016 ZC-20-017

Liz Conner

March 13, 2020

DENSITY RANGE

1 Such as future ROW dedication, resource protection areas, common open space, other dedication areas, etc. 5/06

Page 118

KAEvans
Q



2939 Bailey Avenue
Krebs Partition &
         Zone Change

1/24/2020

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

Ba
rcl

ay
Ct

Ed
m

on
dW

a y

Sa
nd

be
rg

Ct

Bryson
Way

Hayden
Pl

Stacie Way

Montego
Pl

Prescott
Ct

Mica
h Cir

Jenero Ct

Timothy Ave
No

me
C t B edfor d Cir

Ald
ers

ga
te 

Rd

Jantzer C t

Ba
ile

y A
ve

Le
vi 

Ci
r

Ha
wa

iia
n A

ve

Barclay Rd

Leonard Ave

Clairmont Ct

Pa
ul 

Ci
r

He
ar

tw
oo

d C
t

Mi
lho

an
 D

r

Rosewood St

SheratonCt

Stonebrook Dr

Adams Cir

Wa
te

rfo
r d

Ct

Gary Dr

Delta Waters Rd

Mc
lou

gh
lin

 D
r

4

3

2

1

LDP20-016
ZC20-017

Vicinity
Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 510255 Feet

Legend
Subject Area
Tax Lots s371W16BB TL 15800

Page 119



 

Page 1 of 25   

STAFF REPORT  for a Type IV legislative decision: Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment - Urbanization Plan  

Project Urbanization Plan for Planning Unit MD-7c (NW corner of Kings 
Highway and South Stage Road)   

 

Applicant:  KDA Homes, LLC Lazaro Ayala and Mark Knox 
Agent:  Scott Sinner, Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc.  

 

File no. UP-19-003  

To Planning Commission for 04/23/2020 hearing  

From Carla Angeli Paladino, Principal Planner, Long Range Division  

Reviewer Matt Brinkley, AICP CFM, Planning Director 

Date April 16, 2020 (project originally scheduled for 03/26/2020) 

BACKGROUND 

Proposal  

A legislative amendment to adopt an 
Urbanization Plan into the 
Neighborhood Element  of the 
Comprehensive Plan (See Exhibit B-1) 
for property totaling approximately 
29.72 acres located at the northwest 
corner of Kings Highway and South 
Stage Road (382W01AD 1000 and 
382W01D 100). (See Exhibits A, B, C, and 
D)  

The Urbanization Plan is filed in 
conjunction with an annexation request for the above tax lots plus adjacent 
right-of-way along the street frontages (ANNX-19-002). 

Page 120



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 2 of 25   

     Urbanization Plan Details 

Open Space 
Requirement  

Minimum Residential 
Density 

Street Extensions 

13% or 3.86 acres of 
the total planning 
unit 

106 dwelling units in 
Urban Residential 
GLUP 

Lillian Street 

Unnamed east/west 
Street along Urban 
Residential/Commercial 
GLUP boundary 

 

Subject Site Characteristics 

Planning Unit: MD-7c 

Zoning:  Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) 

GLUP:  Urban Residential (15 acres) and Commercial (14 acres) 

Uses on site: Vacant land 

Acreage:  29.72 acres  

 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North  Zone: City SFR-6 and County Rural Residential-5 
   Use(s): Residential 
 
South  Zone: County Rural Residential- 2.5 
   Use(s): Residential 
 
East  Zone: County Exclusive Farm Use 
   Use(s): Some residences; mostly vacant 
 
West  Zone:  County Rural Residential-5 
   Use(s): Residential    
 

 

       

Page 121



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 3 of 25   

History  

In June 2018, the Department of Land Conservation and Development 
acknowledged the City of Medford’s proposed Urban Growth Boundary 
(UGB) amendment providing for the inclusion of 1,658 acres of buildable 
land to be developed. Following the adoption of the UGB, the City 
established the Urbanization Planning process in order to provide a 
regulatory framework for ensuring specific development goals are met as 
land converts from rural to urban uses.  The land included in the UGB was 
categorized into distinct planning units and coded with a specific 
numbering and lettering system (e.g. MD-7c).  Each planning unit must 
adopt an Urbanization Plan prior to or in conjunction with a proposal for 
annexation.  The Urbanization Plans are high level master plans intended 
to show conformance with the Regional Plan and transportation plan 
requirements.  

Property owners of and within planning units are required to conduct a 
pre-application conference with planning staff and other internal and 
external review agencies to discuss the proposal prior to submitting a 
formal application.  A pre-application review was held for the subject 
property on May 29, 2019.    

In addition, property owners are required to hold a neighborhood meeting 
with surrounding neighbors and property owners in order to provide an 
opportunity to explain the proposal and provide for questions and 
answers.  A neighborhood meeting was held for this project on October 19, 
2019.    

Planning Unit MD-7c was approved with two General Land Use Plan (GLUP) 
designations: Urban Residential and Commercial.  The property is one legal 
parcel identified as two separate tax lots. The property is located in 
southwest Medford and is bordered by Kings Highway on the east and 
South Stage Road on the south. The proposal was initiated by the property 
owner who is the sole owner of the entire planning unit.  

The property owner has requested concurrent annexation of the land. The 
City Council set the hearing date for annexation for May 7, 2020.  The 
review and decision on the Urbanization Plan and Annexation will be held 
on the same evening.    

Page 122



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 4 of 25   

Related projects 

ANNX-19-002: Annexation request for subject parcels and adjacent rights-
of-way 

CP-14-114:  Urban Growth Boundary Amendment  

CP-16-075: Urbanization Planning Comprehensive Plan Amendments   

Authority  

This proposed plan authorization is a Type IV legislative Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment. The Planning Commission is authorized to recommend, 
and the City Council to approve, amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
under Medford Municipal Code §§10.102–10.122, 10.214, and 10.220.  

ANALYSIS 

Planning unit MD-7c was adopted into the City’s Urban Growth Boundary 
in 2016 and acknowledged by the State in 2018 to help accommodate the 
needs of a growing City.  The site is located in southwest Medford and 
provides nearly a 50/50 split of Urban Residential and Commercial land 
uses.  The property is bordered by two minor arterials, Kings Highway on 
the east and South Stage Road on the south.  The site is in close proximity 
to downtown and other nearby commercial centers making it a prime 
location for new urban development.    

The proposal as outlined below meets the plan requirements/criteria for 
incorporation into the Neighborhood Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  
The plan provides the framework for future development of the property 
by establishing the minimum residential units required to be built, the 
percentage of open space to be provided, and the street network to be 
constructed.  All of these elements together help show compliance with the 
goals of the Urban Growth Boundary amendment and Regional Plan 
obligations.  

A letter of support for the Urbanization Plan was submitted by Mark Knox 
on April 15, 2020 (See Exhibit O). 

 

Page 123



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 5 of 25   

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Applicable criteria  

For the applicable criteria the Medford Municipal Code §10.220(B)(4) 
redirects to the criteria in the “Review and Amendments” chapter of the 
Comprehensive Plan. The applicable criteria in this action are those for an 
Urbanization Plan found in Sections 5 and 6 in the Urbanization Planning 
Chapter of the Neighborhood Element.  The criteria are set in italics below; 
findings and conclusions are in roman type.  

The applicant’s project summary and findings of fact address each of the 
criteria in detail and are attached as Exhibit E.   

Section 5 - PLAN CONTENTS 

Criterion 5.1 RPS Density Requirements: Compliance with the Regional Element minimum 
gross density performance measures. The urbanization plan shall include specific zoning 
designations or text that assures development under the minimum densities will meet or 
exceed the density expected to be achieved for the planning unit(s) in the UGB 
Amendment residential land supply analysis. Plan techniques that can be employed to 
achieve this standard include but are not limited to the following:  

5.1.1 Specify residential zoning districts for certain areas.  

5.1.2 Commit to specific quantities of residential development in commercial areas.  

The findings supporting the urbanization plan submittal shall include density calculations 
that explain how the plan complies.  

The text below also includes findings that demonstrate compliance with Goal 10 (Housing). 

Findings 

The Regional Plan Element of the Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 
August 2012 and established the minimum residential densities each of the 
participating jurisdictions agreed to achieve. For Medford, the minimum 
target density is 6.6 dwelling units per gross acre until 2035, then the 
density increases to 7.6 dwelling units per gross acre.  Gross acreage in the 
City of Medford includes the total area of the properties’ boundaries plus 
any adjacent right-of-way measured to the center line multiplied by the 
zoning districts minimum and maximum density factors.   

The subject property has two General Land Use Plan (GLUP) designations: 
Urban Residential and Commercial.  The Urban Residential portion of the 

Page 124



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 6 of 25   

property is approximately 15 acres in size (17.56 approximately including 
the right-of-way).  The Urban Residential General Land Use Plan 
designation accommodates four of the City’s low density residential zoning 
districts.  The lowest density zoning district, SFR-2, is applicable to sites with 
environmental constraints such as steep slopes or flood issues. Because 
such constraints do not exist on the subject property, this zoning 
designation would not be considered for this site. The zoning districts 
include minimum and maximum density factors at the following dwelling 
units per acre (du/acre): 

Zoning  SFR-2 SFR-4 SFR-6 SFR-10 

Minimum Density 0.8  2.5  4.0 6.0 

Maximum Density 2.0 4.0 6.0 10.0 

    
The applicant has indicated in the application that the proposed zoning 
district for the Urban Residential portion of the property will be Single-
Family Residential 10 (SFR-10) which provides for a minimum of six dwelling 
units and a maximum of 10 dwelling units per acre.  Based on 15 acres, the 
applicant has calculated a minimum of 99 dwellings units required using 
6.6 as the minimum factor and 150 dwelling units using 10 as the maximum 
factor. The applicant describes the future housing types as a mix of single 
family detached and single family attached.    

Using a detailed spreadsheet to standardize how residential density is 
calculated for each of the planning units, the Planning Department has 
calculated 106 dwelling units as the minimum number of dwelling units 
needed to meet the minimum committed residential density for the UR-
designated land.  (See Exhibit F for calculation summary) The applicant will 
be required to demonstrate that it can reach this target through future 
zoning and land division applications. 

The Commercial GLUP designation accommodates the City’s Commercial 
zoning districts.  The applicant will seek Community Commercial zoning in 
future applications.  This zone provides for a wide range of commercial and 
office uses as well as multi-family residential.  The applicant does not 
propose any specific residential uses within this zoning district as a means 
to meeting the residential density on the property.  If the applicant decides 

Page 125



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 7 of 25   

to construct residential uses on the commercial designation then 
additional housing units will be provided above the required minimum.          

Conclusions 

Satisfied. The minimum residential density requirement as calculated by 
Planning staff for the Urban Residential portion of the property is 106 
dwelling units (based on 17.56 gross acres). The applicant proposes the 
Single-Family Residential 10 (SFR-10) zoning district to accommodate this 
minimum density calculation.  The re-zoning of the property and future 
development will be required to meet the minimum residential densities 
as an obligation of meeting the Regional Plan elements. The applicant has 
not indicated a need to use the Commercial GLUP designations in order to 
satisfy the minimum residential density. Additional residential units can be 
provided in the Commercial GLUP increasing the overall number of 
dwelling units on the property.     

The City has an adopted Housing Element (2010) that describes the housing 
needs of the City through 2029. The housing mix allocations assumed 
roughly two thirds of the dwelling units to be constructed as single family 
detached homes, single-family attached homes, manufactured homes, and 
two-family attached homes (duplexes).  The remaining one third would 
accommodate multi-family homes (3 or more attached units). The overall 
needed density in the Housing Element was calculated as 6.3 dwellings per 
gross acre.   

The Regional Plan (2012) imposes a density standard that exceeds that 
outlined in the Housing Element at a minimum density of 6.6 dwelling units 
per gross acre. The City has committed to this density until 2035, and then 
the density factor increases to 7.6 dwelling units per gross acre from 2036 
through 2050.  Land use changes made as part of the Urban Growth 
Boundary Phase I (Internal Study Areas 2014) project increased the supply 
of medium and high density residential designations within the City limits 
and reallocated lower density residential into the expansion areas. The 
Urbanization Planning (2018) process was established in order to establish 
minimum residential density standards and track housing production 
within each planning unit as the land develops. This process helps ensure 
land within the Urban Growth Boundary is being used to its maximum 
capacity to ensure needed housing of all types is being constructed. This 
criterion is satisfied.   

Page 126



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 8 of 25   

Criterion 5.2 Transportation Planning: A neighborhood circulation plan map showing:  

5.2.1 Locations of higher-order streets. Locations and alignments of higher order 
streets should be planned in appropriate locations.  

The plan will depict how local streets, alleys and paths could be arranged to comply 
with the City’s applicable street connectivity requirements. Typically, a well-connected 
street grid is desirable both for efficient utilization of urban land and to serve the 
transportation needs of all modes.  

The urbanization plan may seek approval for local street arrangements with less 
connectivity (fewer intersections, longer block lengths, more dead-ends, greater 
potential out-of-direction travel) that is otherwise allowed by the code. Such 
arrangements may be justified on the basis of topographical and other environmental 
or development constraints, access management requirements, and/or the particular 
needs of adjacent land uses and those of the surrounding vicinity.  

Proposed networks with lower vehicular connectivity may also include mitigation 
measures including enhanced pedestrian and other active transportation facilities. An 
example of an active transportation facility may include off-road multi-use paths.  

Maps depicting street functional classifications shall utilize a system that is the same 
as or readily convertible to the City’s adopted Transportation System Plan.  

Findings 

The subject property is bordered by Kings Highway on the east and South 
Stage Road on the south. Kings Highway and South Stage Road are both 
higher order streets and are classified as minor arterial streets.   There are 
no new proposed higher order streets (collectors and arterials) to be 
extended within this property as identified in Figure 18 (Roadway 
Functional Classification) of the 2018 Transportation System Plan.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 127



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 9 of 25   

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The applicant proposes to extend Lillian Street (north/south), a standard 
residential street from its current northern terminus to South Stage Road.  

Two additional east/west 
standard residential streets are 
proposed, one splits the Urban 
Residential and Commercial 
GLUP designations and the other 
bisects the Commercial GLUP 
designation.  Four additional 
minor residential streets, two 
running north/south (one being 
the extension of Veronica Way) 
and two running east/west are 
proposed within the property to 
create a gridded street pattern to 
serve the residential, 
commercial, and open space 
uses.     

Figure 18 from TSP 

Page 128



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 10 of 25   

     Conclusions 

Satisfied.  There are no required higher order street extensions per the 
Transportation System Plan that must be extended within this planning 
unit.  The applicant proposes a gridded street pattern of standard 
residential and local access streets to accommodate future development 
of the land. This criterion is satisfied.     

Criterion 5.3 Compliance with the open space allocation for an urban reserve area. Units 
that contain only Industrial GLUP designations are exempt from this requirement. The 
following classifications count as open space for purposes of fulfilling the RPE 
requirements:  

5.3.1 Parks, both public and private shall be counted as open space. Schools may be 
counted as open space. Where land acquisition is not complete or where specific open 
space dedications were not offered and accepted as part of the UGB process, park and 
school sites may be identified as opportunity areas on maps and the acreage planned 
may be described in text form that explains how the planning unit can satisfy the open 
space requirement. Areas where specific open space dedications were offered and 
accepted as part of the UGB review process shall be depicted and the acreage counted 
toward open space percentages.  

5.3.2 Agricultural buffers. Proposed agricultural buffers within the UGB shall be 
counted as open space. Interim agricultural buffers shall not be counted toward open 
space percentages unless an additional legal or planning mechanism is imposed to 
render such areas as open space even after a future UGB amendment in the 
applicable MD area.  

5.3.3 Riparian corridors shall be counted.  

5.3.4 Areas under an “open space” tax assessment shall be counted.  

5.3.5 Locally significant wetlands and any associated regulatory buffer shall be 
counted.  

5.3.6 Slopes greater than 25 percent  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 129



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 11 of 25   

Findings 

The Regional Plan allocated employment, residential and open space land 
use requirements within each of the planning units.  In MD-7c, 13 percent 
of the land or 3.86 acres must be set aside for open space uses. The 
applicant has acknowledged this requirement and plans to meet this 
obligation.  To date, the applicant proposes meeting the open space 
requirement by working with the Parks and Recreation Department to 
create a neighborhood 
park site on the 
property.  The details 
on this acquisition by 
the City is still pending 
and under discussion 
but the proposed 
location of the park is 
identified below.  Public 
parks are identified as 
acceptable forms of 
meeting the open 
space requirement.   

The use of agricultural 
buffers is not required 
on this property as the 
land to the west, north, 
and east are either already within the city limits or within the Urban Growth 
Boundary.  The properties to the south are within the County and zoned 
Rural Residential – 2.5 (RR-2.5) which also does not require an agricultural 
buffer.   

The site does not contain a mapped riparian corridor and is not subject to 
an open space assessment.  

The State approved the City’s Local Wetlands Inventory for the Urban 
Growth Boundary expansion areas in 2017.  The subject property was not 
identified to contain any locally significant wetlands.  One probable wetland 
location was flagged on the site as noted in the aerial map below.  

Page 130



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 12 of 25   

 

There are no slopes greater than 25 percent that can be counted as open 
space.   

Conclusions 

Satisfied. The owner/applicant is subject to a 13 percent open space 
requirement on the property which equates to 3.86 acres of land. The 
potential for a public park site and the acquisition of the land by the Parks 
and Recreation Department is currently in discussions but is not solidified.  
The applicants acknowledge the requirement for meeting the open space 
requirement in their findings and the requirement will be identified in the 
Comprehensive Plan for this planning unit.  This criterion is satisfied.          

Page 131



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 13 of 25   

Criterion 5.4 Compliance with the requirements of Regional Plan Element, Section 4.1.6, 
for mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly development and any specific land use performance 
obligation. Planning units containing only an Industrial GLUP Map designation are exempt 
from the mixed-use pedestrian friendly development evaluation.  

Findings 

Section 4.1.6 of the Regional Plan Element points to the 2020 benchmark 
targets identified in the most recent Regional Transportation Plan  (RTP-
2017) for number of dwelling units and new employment in mixed-use and 
pedestrian friendly developments or activity centers.  Activity centers are 
defined in the RTP as:  
 Areas of development that contribute to achieving mixed-use, 

pedestrian friendly development;  
 Neighborhood commercial and employment centers, parks, and 

schools;  
 Downtown areas;  
 Transit Oriented Developments; and  
 Development that is vertically or horizontally mixed-use 

The 2020 target for new dwelling units in the RTP is identified as 49 percent 
and for new employment in activity centers is 44 percent.  Data from 2001 
indicated that Medford was already exceeding these targets at 61 percent 
and 48 percent respectfully. The City is required to continue meeting or 
exceeding these targets as required by the Regional Plan.   

The intent of the mix of land uses distributed throughout each of the 
planning units within the Urban Growth Boundary Expansion areas is to 
continue this trend of providing housing, employment, and open space in 
close proximity to one another.  In MD-7c, the mix of residential and 
commercial provides an ideal situation to create housing and 
employment/service opportunities in a new neighborhood setting that is 
close to existing schools, the downtown core, and recreational amenities 
on and off site.   

The applicant is required to meet minimum density requirements (106 
dwelling units) for the Urban Residential portion of the plan.  The 
Commercial portion provides versatility with the type of permitted uses 
including multi-family residential, retail, and office uses that can be 
developed in order to compliment the proposed mix of residential units.  

Page 132



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 14 of 25   

The proposed gridded street pattern provides a transportation connection 
to tie all of the uses together and provide multi-modal access to internal 
and external development.              

Conclusions 

Satisfied. MD-7c has the necessary mix of land uses, proposed 
transportation network, and commercial use flexibility to help meet the 
Regional Plan requirements related to housing and employment in activity 
centers.  This criterion is satisfied.      

Criterion 5.5 Preliminary coordination and discussions with public utility providers, 
including water, sewer, transportation, and irrigation districts.  

5.5.1 Coordination may include identifying any existing infrastructure on or adjacent 
to the site and determining whether it can be maintained or needs to be moved.  

Findings 

The adoption of an urbanization plan provides a framework for the types 
of land uses and street network proposed within the planning unit.  The 
applicant is responsible for coordinating and discussing public utility needs 
and challenges that may exist for the site in order to better prepare for the 
future development of the property.  At this stage, no utilities are being 
extended to serve the property and utility provider comments are 
informational.     

During the Land Development meeting held on February 26, 2020, 
comments were received from Medford Public Works (Exhibit G), Jackson 
County Roads (Exhibit H), Rogue Valley Sewer Services (Exhibit I), and the 
Medford Water Commission (Exhibit J).  Medford Fire-Rescue (Exhibit K) 
provided standard comments but no specific conditions for consideration 
at this time.  The installation of off-site and on-site utilities will be 
coordinated with future development phases of the property.    

Generally, the property can be served by the extension of water and sewer 
facilities based on line sizes and pressure zone requirements.  Gravity 
sewer to the main in South Stage Road is likely not possible due to grade 
differences.   

Jackson County Roads provided comments related to the annexation and 
jurisdictional transfer of the roadways, storm drain management 

Page 133



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 15 of 25   

becoming the responsibility of the City upon annexation, and access 
limitations on South Stage Road.    

Medford Public Works understands that South Stage Road and Kings 
Highway will become the responsibility of the City upon jurisdictional 
transfer of the roadways.  Both streets are minor arterial streets that will 
be upgraded to city standards upon development of the property.  The 
future construction of the internal public roadway system will also be 
maintained by the City.  The applicant’s interior circulation map identifies a 
gridded network of streets.  Future system development charges and utility 
fees will apply as construction occurs and upon annexation.        

Conclusions 

Satisfied. Utility providers have reviewed the urbanization plan and have 
provided preliminary comments that the applicant can use and apply to the 
next stage of development for the property.  This criterion is satisfied.   

Criterion 5.6 Location or extensions of riparian corridors, wetlands, historic buildings or 
resources, and habitat protections and the proposed status of these elements.  

Findings 

The subject property is currently vacant.  The site does not contain any 
identified riparian corridors. The City’s Local Wetlands Inventory shows a 
probable wetland on the south side of the property.  Further investigation 
by a wetland professional is needed to determine the status of this 
probable wetland prior to development of the property.    

Conclusions 

Satisfied. Except for the location of a probable wetland on the south side 
of the property, the site does not contain structures or riparian corridors 
that need to be addressed with the proposal.  This criterion is satisfied.   

Criterion 5.7 Compliance with applicable provisions of the Urban Growth Management 
Agreement.  

Findings 

The property is currently within the Urban Growth Boundary and is subject 
to the provisions in the Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA). 

Page 134



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 16 of 25   

As outlined in the UGMA amended by both the City and County in 2016 and 
2017 respectively, the City agrees to request surrender of South Stage Road 
west of Kings Highway and along Kings Highway abutting both property 
frontages.  Annexation shall occur for the full width of the road right-of-way 
along these segments as outlined in the agreement. In addition, the City 
shall request surrender of jurisdiction of these roadways regardless of 
when and how the road became a County road and transfer is taken 
without compensation or conditions by the City.   

Because of the regional significance of South Stage Road, and the short 
segment of this project, the jurisdictional exchange of this roadway will 
come upon request by the County.  At such request, the City will agree to 
take it over. If the extension of Lillian Street to South Stage Road occurs 
prior to the City taking over jurisdiction of South Stage Road, the County 
will limit movement from Lillian Street to right-in and right-out only.   

The applicant has identified the full width rights-of-way along these street 
frontages to be annexed under a separate annexation application.  The City 
Council will consider annexation at the May 7th public hearing.   

Development of these lands are intended to comply with City requirements 
and the provisions of the Regional Plan.        

Conclusions 

Satisfied. The applicant has proposed annexation of the full width rights-
of-way along South Stage Road and Kings Highway abutting the property 
frontages in accordance with the Urban Growth Management Agreement.  
Development of the property is subject to City regulations and the 
requirements outlined in the Regional Plan.  County review and regulations 
may be applicable depending on when the roadways are transferred. The 
Urbanization Planning process and the proposed annexation are the first 
steps in meeting the requirements of the UGMA.  This criterion is satisfied.     

Criterion 5.8 Compliance with the terms of special agreements between the landowners 
and other public entities that were part of the basis for including an area in the urban 
growth boundary, as detailed in the Urban Growth Management Agreement.  

Findings 

The annexation policies and Urban Growth Management Agreement as 
outlined in the Comprehensive Plan did not include special agreements or 

Page 135



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 17 of 25   

provisions for this planning unit. There were no stipulations included in the 
agreement for the inclusion of MD-7c into the Urban Growth Boundary.    

Conclusions 

Not Applicable. The applicant is not subject to additional requirements as 
outlined in the annexation and Urban Growth Management Agreement 
policies for the inclusion land into the Urban Growth Boundary. This 
criterion is not applicable to this planning unit.   

Criterion 5.9 Coordination with the Parks and Recreation Department for adherence to 
the Leisure Service Plan related to open space acquisition and proposed trail and path 
locations.  

Findings 

As noted under Criterion 5.3 above, the applicant is responsible for 
providing 13 percent open space or 3.86 acres of land as a requirement of 
the Regional Plan.  The applicant has discussed the possibility of the City 
acquiring park land on this property for the development of a future 
neighborhood park. Because the property is located within a park walkshed 
gap, as identified in the City’s Leisure Services Plan, the Parks and 
Recreation Department will consider acquisition of parkland in this area.  

The Parks Department was given a preliminary plan for the park site which 
included using portions of the land for storm water detention. In their 
comments, the Parks Department noted concerns with the applicant’s 
concept proposal to site a storm water detention facility within the park 
site and suggests the applicant explore other ways to manage storm water 
on the site without impacting the developable area of a future park.  The 
applicant followed up with a separate letter acknowledging this concern 
and indicating the park uses and storm water facilities would be separated 
providing for an unrestricted potential park site (See Exhibit N).  The 
applicant and Parks and Recreation Department staff will continue to 
discuss and work through the details of this proposal (See Exhibit L).   

In addition, the Leisure Services Plan indicates a proposed shared-use 
pathway along South Stage Road.  The new arterial cross section adopted 
by the Transportation System Plan provides for off-road bicycle facilities 
which helps achieve the installation of a pathway system along South Stage 
Road and Kings Highway.   

Page 136



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 18 of 25   

The Parks and Recreation Department will be responsible for the 
maintenance of the vegetation located within the planter strips along both 
higher order streets.  The Department will require landscape and irrigation 
plans to be reviewed and approved at future stages of development of this 
property.         

Conclusions 

Satisfied. The applicants are working with the Parks and Recreation 
Department to outline the details for the acquisition of a future park site 
on the property. The applicants understand their responsibility to provide 
for open space on the site and street improvements along South Stage 
Road and Kings Highway.  The adopted cross section for these streets 
provides off road bicycle facilities which can be used to accommodate the 
noted trail system in the Leisure Services Plan along South Stage Road. This 
criterion is satisfied.    

Criterion 5.10 Vicinity map including adjacent planning units and their General Land Use 
Plan designations.  

Findings 

A vicinity map showing adjacent planning units and General Land Use Plan 
(GLUP) designations has been provided by the applicant. Land to the west 
and north have GLUP designations of Urban Residential.  Across Kings 
Highway on the east, is planning unit MD-7b, which has a mix of Urban 
Residential, Commercial, and Service Commercial GLUP designations.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 137



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 19 of 25   

The proposed street circulation for the subject property provides for future 
connectivity to the west and east (see Secondary Streets with Conceptual 
Offsite Circulation Map under criterion 5.2 above).   

Conclusions 

Satisfied. The applicant has provided maps showing the subject property 
in relationship to the adjacent and adjoining properties to the west, north, 
and east.  This criterion is satisfied.   

Criteria 5.11 Property lines for the subject planning unit and adjacent properties, 
particularly where new streets are proposed.  

Findings 

The applicant has provided a map showing the property lines of the subject 
property and topographic survey of the site (See Exhibit M).  The applicant’s 
circulation plan provides for the extension of future streets to serve land 
to the west and align future streets to the east.      

Conclusions 

Satisfied. The information requested has been provided by the applicant.  
This criterion is satisfied.  

Criteria 5.12 Existing easements of record, irrigation canals, and structures.  

Findings 

A topographic survey showing contour lines, 
fence lines, property lines, recorded 
document numbers, and existing utilities was 
submitted with the application. The 
documented easements include a recorded 
access easement on the western side of the 
property that serves four parcels located 
north of South Stage Road.  The applicant 
plans to dedicate and improve the portion of 
the easement on the subject property into a 
future street segment for use by the 
neighboring property owners. Also noted on 
the plan is an easement for well and water 

Page 138



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 20 of 25   

pipe lines, however the location of the well was not found on site.   

Planning staff and the applicant’s agent were invited to discuss the project 
with the property owner (Robert Stahler) at 914 South Stage Road. During 
the site visit, Mr. Stahler identified some existing open water canals 
(running along the northwestern property line) and other water sources 
along the north and south sides of the property to be aware of as future 
development occurs.  Irrigation water is being provided to Mr. Stahler and 
other neighboring properties.  No formal comments have been received 
from the irrigation district regarding this application.        

 

 

Conclusions 

Satisfied. The applicant has provided documentation of existing easements 
on the property.  Discussions with the irrigation district will be needed at 
the next stages of development to address open water sources and access 
to irrigation water. There are no existing structures on the property.  This 
criterion is satisfied. 

Picture of open water flowing on eastern side of 914 South Stage Road 

Page 139



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 21 of 25   

Criterion 5.13 Areas designated as unbuildable per the Urban Growth Boundary City 
Council Report dated August 18, 2016 (Map A-1), and the status of those areas, including 
agricultural buffers.  

Findings 

Below is Map A-1 which is part of the Urban Growth Boundary Amendment 
project report adopted by City Council on August 18, 2016.  The subject 
properties are outlined in the blue boxes below.  The map does not 
reference any unbuildable areas for the subject properties. In addition, no 
agricultural buffers are required as the properties are adjacent to land in 
the Urban Growth Boundary on the west, city limits and Urban Growth 
Boundary on the north, future expansion areas and Urban Growth 
Boundary on the east, and land zoned County Rural Residential 2.5 (RR-2.5) 
on the south.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 140



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 22 of 25   

Conclusions 

Satisfied. There are no identified unbuildable areas or required agricultural 
buffers within MD-7c that must be accounted for as part of the 
urbanization plan for this planning unit.  This criterion is satisfied.     

Criterion 5.14 Contour lines and topography.  

Findings 

The contour lines of the property start at 1,480 feet at the north side and 
increase to 1,506 feet along the southern end of the property at South 
Stage Road.  The applicant has submitted a topographic survey of the site.  
The property has approximately a 2.4 percent slope from north to south 
with South Stage Road rising above the subject property.  

 

Page 141



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 23 of 25   

Conclusions 

Satisfied. The applicant has provided a contour map showing the grade 
changes for the property. There are no identified steep slopes.  South Stage 
Road represents the highest point of the property on the south side. This 
criterion is satisfied.  

Criterion 5.15 In the interest of maintaining clarity and flexibility for both the City of 
Medford and for landowners, no urbanization plan may be submitted with or contain the 
following items, which are only appropriate at the time of development:  

5.15.1 Deviations from Municipal Code provisions, including exceptions to Chapter 10. 
This prohibition does not function to limit specific neighborhood circulation plan 
requirements hereinabove.  

5.15.2 Limitations on development due to facility capacity shortfalls.  

5.15.3 Architectural details.  

5.15.4 Specifics about building types and building placement.  

5.15.5 Access and internal circulation on prospective lots or development sites.  

Findings 

The applicant does not propose any deviations from the code, limitations 
on development due to capacity shortfalls, architectural details, building 
types or placement, or access points.   

Conclusions 

Satisfied.  The proposed urbanization plan does not contain any of the 
above listed deviations or details that are inappropriate at this level of the 
planning stage.  This criterion is satisfied.  

Section 6 - GLUP AMENDMENTS  
Criteria 

6.1.1 Minor Spatial Adjustments: If GLUP map amendments are proposed within the 
planning unit but the total acreage for each GLUP Map designation is not significantly 
changed, the urbanization plan can be the basis for GLUP amendments without the 
need for complex land supply analysis.  

6.1.2 Moderate Spatial Adjustments: If land supply GLUP map amendments are 
proposed that change the spatial arrangement of GLUP designations beyond the 
boundary of a particular planning unit but maintain the total acreage for each GLUP 
Map designation within the applicable MD area that is now inside the UGB, then the 
urbanization plan shall be accompanied by a mapping analysis that explains how the 

Page 142



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 24 of 25   

total land use allocations are maintained by GLUP. Spatial exchanges of land use 
designations such as this shall be coordinated with other planning units in the MD and 
an analysis urban land use value equity shall be provided.  

6.1.3 Complex Spatial Adjustments: More complex GLUP Map amendments that have 
the potential to alter the land supplies in more fundamental ways will typically require 
extensive city-wide and/or regional plan land supply analyses. This analysis shall 
demonstrate that both the urban land needs described in the City’s Housing Element 
and Economy Element will be served and that the resulting amendment will continue 
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Regional Plan for the area specifically 
and the City as a whole. 

Findings 

The approval of the Urban Growth Boundary amendment provided a 
jigsaw configuration of the Urban Residential and Commercial GLUP 
designations on the land within this planning unit. The applicant proposes 
to straighten out the boundary between both of the GLUP designations in 
order to more efficiently develop the property. The change is considered a 
Minor Spatial Adjustment because the acreage of each GLUP designation 
is not significantly changing.  The new alignment does not warrant 
additional analysis to evaluate its impact on the land inventory. Upon 
approval by City Council, the City’s General Land Use Plan map will be 
updated to reflect this modification to the Urban Residential and 
Commercial boundaries.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
GLUP locations per UGB approval Applicant’s Proposed GLUP changes  

  

Page 143



Urbanization Plan for MD-7c Staff report 
UP-19-003 April 16, 2020 

Page 25 of 25   

Conclusions 

Satisfied. The applicant proposes to modify the location of the GLUP 
designations within the planning unit as proposed in the application and 
the above map. The approval of the Urbanization Plan provides for this 
GLUP adjustment without the need for a separate GLUP Amendment 
process.  The changes represent a Minor Spatial Adjustment that the City 
Council can approve with this application. This criterion is satisfied.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Based on the findings and conclusions that all of the applicable criteria are 
satisfied or not applicable, forward a favorable recommendation to the City 
Council per the staff report dated April 16, 2020, including Exhibits A 
through O for approval of UP-19-003, and adopting Exhibit B-1 into the 
Neighborhood Element of the Comprehensive Plan.   

EXHIBITS 

A Current General Land Use Plan (GLUP) Map  
B Proposed GLUP and Primary Circulation Map 

B-1 Comprehensive Plan – Neighborhood Element Amendments 
C Proposed Secondary Streets with conceptual offsite circulation Map 
D Proposed Open Space opportunity area 
E Applicant’s Project Summary and Findings of Fact 
F Residential Density Spreadsheet Calculator 
G Public Works Comments dated 2/26/2020 
H Jackson County Roads Comments dated 2/4/2020 
I Rogue Valley Sewer Services Comments dated 2/3/2020 
J Medford Water Commission Comments dated 2/26/2020 
K Medford Fire-Rescue Comments dated 2/19/2020 
L Parks and Recreation Department Comments dated 2/26/2020 
M Topographic Map and Site Plan 
N Letter dated 03/09/2020 from Scott Sinner Consulting regarding 

park site 
O Letter from Mark Knox dated April 15, 2020 

Vicinity map  

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA:   APRIL 23, 2020 

Page 144



Exhibit A
UP-19-003Page 145



Exhibit B
UP-19-003Page 146



p. 10–1

Medford Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 10 

Neighborhood Element 

Introduction 
The divisions of this chapter are special area plans that have been adopted by the 

Council. Two plans are incorporated by reference; three others are incorporated into 

this document.  

Contents 

Introduction ........................................................................................................................ 1 

10.1 Southeast Plan ........................................................................................................ 2 

10.2 Southeast Circulation Plan .................................................................................... 17 

10.3 Bear Creek Master Plan ........................................................................................ 40 

10.4 Urbanization Planning ........................................................................................... 41 

10.5 Liberty Park Neighborhood Plan ........................................................................... 52 

10.6 Adopted Urbanization Plans 

1. Planning Unit MD-7c (NW corner of South Stage Road and Kings Highway)

Exhibit B-1
UP-19-003

Page 147



City of Medford Comprehensive Plan  

Chapter 10. NEIGHBORHOODS 

Division 6. Adopted Urbanization Plans 

p. 10–53

Section 10.6 

ADOPTED URBANIZATION PLANS 

Page 148



City of Medford Comprehensive Plan  

Chapter 10. NEIGHBORHOODS 

Division 5. Liberty Park Neighborhood Plan 

p. 10–54 

URBANIZATION PLAN FOR PLANNING UNIT MD-7c  

 

PROJECT DETAILS:  

The planning unit is approximately 29.72 acres in size located at the northwest 

corner of South Stage Road and Kings Highway.  The property has a General 

Land Use Plan (GLUP) Designation of approximately 15 acres of Urban 

Residential (UR) and 14 acres of Commercial (CM).  The open space 

requirement for the planning unit is 13 percent.  The minimum residential 

density to be met in the Urban Residential GLUP is 106 dwelling units.  Two 

standard residential streets are planned to bisect the planning unit, one is the 

north-south extension of Lillian Street and the other is an unnamed east-west 

street to be located along the Commercial and Urban Residential GLUP 

boundary.    

Page 149



Exhibit C
UP-19-003

Page 150



Exhibit D
UP-19-003Page 151



Exhibit E
UP-19-003

Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Results Page 1

Urbanization Plan Density Calculator 3/19/2020

Urbanization Plan Name:__Ayala __________ MD-_7c_____

SCENARIO RESULTS Dwelling Units

Supply of Dwelling Units for the Planning Area from the UGB 

Process from UGB_DUscalcs sheet
68

Minimum Number of Dwelling Units Regulatorily Required by the 

Urbanization Plan from UrbanizationPlanDUcalcs sheet
106

Density Compliance expressed as Dwelling Unit Difference 

(Subtract Row 3 from Row 4)
38

Urbanization Plan Density Compliance - Criterion 5.1?   Yes

Exhibit F
UP-19-003

Page 187



Exhibit G 
UP-19-003

Page 188



Page 189



Exhibit H
UP-19-003

Page 190



Page 191



Exhibit I
UP-19-003Page 192



Exhibit J
UP-19-003

Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Exhibit K
UP-19-003

Page 198



Exhibit L
UP-19-003

Page 199



M Exhibit M
UP-19-003

Page 200



Page 201



4401 San Juan Drive, Suite G 
Medford, Oregon 97504 

Phone and Fax 541-772-1494 
Cell 541-601-0917 
Email scottsinner@yahoo.com 

Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc. 
Land Use Planning, Conservation Consulting 

March 9, 2020 

Haley Cox 
Medford Parks Department 
701 N Columbus Avenue 
Medford, OR 97501 

Haley, 

Thank you for your time today to meet to discuss the potential of a park design that would 
also provide some stormwater component. 

It is clear to us the best procedure to consider the 3 acre block for a potential neighborhood 
park is the separate the storm water component and move the process forward as an 
unrestricted property for the park. 

As we are developing a neighborhood on this site, we have a vested interest in the design of 
the park and look forward to the opportunity to be involved in the design process. 

We would like to move the process forward and let me know what you would need to continue 
with the acquisition process. 

Thank you and feel free to call if you have any questions. 

Regards, 

Scott Sinner, President 
Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc. 

Exhibit N
UP-19-003

Page 202



Exhibit O
UP-19-003Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



 

 

STAFF REPORT  
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: Subdivision & Exception 

Project Delta Waters Properties Subdivision  

 Applicant: Delta Waters Properties LLC 

Agent: CSA Planning Ltd. 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 

To Planning Commission for 04/23/2020 hearing 

From Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date April 16, 2020  

BACKGROUND 

Proposal 

Consideration of tentative plat approval for a six-lot subdivision and an Exception 

pertaining to minimum lot frontage standards on one parcel of land, 22.38 acres in 

size, located at the northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern terminus 

of Ford Drive within the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, 4 to 6 dwelling units per 

gross acre) and SFR-10 (Single-Family Residential, 6 to 10 dwelling units per gross 

acre) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted Zoning) Administrative Mapping 

Overlay (371W081103) 

Vicinity Map 

  

Page 242



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 2 of 11 

 

Subject Site Characteristics 

GLUP UR Urban Residential 

Zoning SFR-10 Single-family residential – 6 to 10 dwelling units per gross 

acre 

 SFR-6 Single-family residential – 4 to 6 dwelling units per gross acre 

Overlay R-Z Restricted Zoning 

 A-C Airport Area of Concern   

Use Vacant 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North Zone: SFR-6 & Jackson County EFU (Exclusive Farm Use) zoning  

 Use: Agricultural land 

South Zone: SFR-4 

 Use: Abraham Lincoln Elementary School 

East  Zone: EFU County Zoning 

 Use: Agricultural Land 

West Zone: SFR-6 

 Use: Delta Estates Subdivision 

Related Projects 

ZC-10-078  Zone Change 

PLA-17-072  Property Line Adjustment 

LDP-18-023  3-lot Partition 

LDS-19-009  Delta Estates Subdivision Phases 6 to 9 including 166 lots 

ZC-19-010  Zone Change for Phases 6 to 8 from SFR-10 to SFR-6 

E-19-011  Exception to intersection distance requirement  

Applicable Criteria 

MLDC 10.202(E): Land Division Criteria 

The approving authority (Planning Commission) shall not approve any tentative plat 

unless it first finds that, the proposed land division together with the provisions for 

its design and improvement: 

(1) Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, any other applicable specific plans 

thereto, including Neighborhood Circulation Plans, and all applicable design 

standards set forth in Article IV and V; 

Page 243



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 3 of 11 

 

(2) Will not prevent development of the remainder of the property under the same 

ownership, if any, or of adjoining land or of access thereto, in accordance with this 

chapter; 

(3) Bears a name that has been approved by the approving authority and does not 

use a word which is the same as, similar to, or pronounced the same as a word in 

the name of any other subdivision in the City of Medford; except for the words 

"town", "city", "place", "court", "addition", or similar words; unless the land platted 

is contiguous to and platted by the same applicant that platted the land division 

bearing that name; or unless the applicant files and records the consent of the 

party who platted the land division bearing that name and the block numbers 

continue those of the plat of the same name last filed; 

(4) If it includes the creation of streets or alleys, that such streets or alleys are laid out 

to be consistent with existing and planned streets and alleys and with the plats of 

land divisions already approved for adjoining property unless the approving 

authority determines it is in the public interest to modify the street pattern; 

(5) If it has streets or alleys that are proposed to be held for private use, that they are 

distinguished from the public streets or alleys on the tentative plat, and 

reservations or restrictions relating to the private streets or alleys are set forth; 

(6) Will not cause an unmitigated land use conflict between the land division and 

adjoining agricultural lands within the EFU (Exclusive Farm Use) zoning district. 

MLDC 10.186(B) – Exception Criteria 

No exception, in the strict application of the provisions of this chapter, shall be 

granted by the approving authority having jurisdiction over the land use review unless 

it finds that all of the following criteria and standards are satisfied. The power to 

authorize an exception from the terms of this code shall be sparingly exercised. 

Findings must indicate that: 

(1) The granting of the exception shall be in harmony with the general purpose and 

intent of the regulations imposed by this code for the zoning district in which the 

exception request is located, and shall not be injurious to the general area or 

otherwise detrimental to the health, safety, and general welfare or adjacent 

natural resources. The approving authority shall have the authority to impose 

conditions to assure that this criterion is met. 

(2) The granting of an exception will not permit the establishment of a use which is 

not permitted in the zoning district within which the exception is located. 

(3) There are unique or unusual circumstances which apply to this site which do not 

typically apply elsewhere in the City, and that the strict application of the 

Page 244



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 4 of 11 

 

standard(s) for which an exception is being requested would result in peculiar, 

exceptional, and undue hardship on the owner. 

(4) The need for the exception is not the result of an illegal act nor can it be 

established on this basis by one who purchases the land or building with or 

without knowledge of the standards of this code. It must result from the 

application of this chapter, and it must be suffered directly by the property in 

question. 

Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. The Planning Commission is the approving 

authority under MLDC 10.110(D). 

Corporate Names 

James Root is listed as the Registered Agent, Member & Manager for Delta Waters 

Properties LLC according to the Oregon Secretary of State. 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Project Summary 

Site History 

File # Description 

ZC-10-078 Zone change for 65.5 acre parcel 

LDP-13-086 Final Plat Approval for Delta Estates 
Phase 1, 2 & 3 

CUP-16-084 
Conditional Use Permit approval for new wireless 
cell tower in northeastern corner of subject 
property 

ZC-16-089, LDS-16-090 
& E-16-091 

Final Plat Approval for Delta Estates 
Phases 4 & 5, and zone change for Phases 2 
through 5 to SFR-6. 

PLA-17-072 Reconfigured Parcels 2 and 3 from LDP-13-086 

LDP-18-023 Final Plat approval for a 3-lot partition including 
the subject site 

  

Page 245



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 5 of 11 

 

File # Description 

LDS-19-008, ZC-19-009 
& E-19-010 

Tentative Plat approval for Delta Estates 
Phases 6 to 9 including Zone Change from SFR-10 
to SFR-6 for Phase 6 to 8 and Exception to 
intersection distance requirement 

PLA-19-075 Adjusted boundaries between Parcels 2 and 3 to 
correspond with Phases 6 to 9 of LDS-16-090 

The subject site consists of one parcel totaling 22.38 acres, located on the edge of City 

limits, and is part of the larger Delta Estates subdivision. 

Current Proposal 

The applicant is requesting to create six parcels from a 22.38 parcel including five 

residential ‘reserve acreage’ lots and one non-residential lot containing an existing 

cell-tower facility. 

 
Figure 1 - Proposed 6-lot subdivision 

Page 246



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 6 of 11 

 

As mentioned above, the subject property received tentative plat approval in 2019 for 

125 lots included in Phases 7A, 7B, 8B, and 9 of the Delta Estates subdivision (File No. 

LDS-19-008). The proposed new lot lines are aligned with the previously approved 

phases. In addition, Lot 5 (Phase 8B) is proposed to be divided into two lots in order 

to create a separate lot around the existing cell tower (Lot 6).  

Per the applicant, the purpose of the subdivision is for business and estate planning 

purposes only and no development will result from approval of this application.  

Development Standards 
 

Single Family Residential Site Development Table (MLDC 10.710) 

SFR-6  & 

SFR-10 

Lot Area 

(Square 

Feet) 

Minimum 

Lot Width 

(Interior) 

Minimum 

Corner 

Lot Width 

Minimum 

Lot Depth 

Minimum  

Lot 

Frontage 

Required 

4,500 to 

12,500 

(SFR-6) 

3,600 to 

8,125 (SFR-

10) 

50 feet  

(SFR-6) 

40 feet  

(SFR-10) 

60 feet 

(SFR-6) 

50 feet 

(SFR-10) 

90 feet 

(SFR-6 & 

SFR-10) 

30 feet (SFR-

6 & SFR-10) 

Shown 
189,277 to 

234,630 

All lots 

comply 

All lots 

comply 

All lots 

comply 

Lot 1, 2 and 

4 comply (55 

to 79.82 feet) 

Exception 

required for 

lots 3, 5 & 6 

 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the proposed 

reserve acreage lots on the tentative plat meet most dimensional standards for both 

the SFR-6 and SFR-10 zoning district.  

Lots 1 through 5 do exceed the maximum lot size; however, reserve acreage lots are 

allowed to exceed the maximum lot size if they can be separately developed at a later 

time. In this case, all proposed parcels will eventually meet the required lot sizes as 

part of future development as the subject site already has tentative plat approval for 

the development of 166 lots.  

An Exception is requested for the street frontage requirements for Lots 3, 5 and 6. It 

can also be found that the cell-tower lot (Lot 6) does meet all dimensional standards 

as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development Code.  

Page 247



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 7 of 11 

 

Cell Tower (Lot 6) 

The cell tower was approved with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP-16-084) in 2017 and 

was constructed in 2019. No setbacks were required at the time of approval as there 

were no surrounding structures existing and the land was still zoned EFU at the time.  

The proposed Lot 6 aligns with the tentatively approved boundaries of Lot 223 from 

Phase 8B of the Delta Estates Subdivision.  

 
Figure 2 - Tentatively approved Lot 223    Figure 3 - Proposed Lot 6 

Per the applicant, the distance of the cell tower to the nearest residential property 

line is 61.8 feet (41.8 feet plus 20-foot future accessway) to the South, 15.2 feet to the 

West. The distance to the nearest subject property boundary line is 39.8 feet plus 63-

foot right-of-way to the North, and 39.8 feet plus 54.8–foot right-of-way. The design 

criteria found in MLDC10.824 – Wireless Communication facilities are not applicable, 

as this is not a new cell tower. 

Agricultural Buffering 

MLDC 10.801(B) – Applicability of Agricultural Buffering in Non-Urban Reserve Areas 

states that only the first application of a development which requires City approval 

shall be required to demonstrate compliance with the provisions of Chapter 10.801. 

As pointed out by the applicant, this is the fifth application for land division for the 

subject property and the agricultural buffering standards and mitigation measures 

were approved with File No. LDS-19-008. This application is in compliance with MLDC 

10.801.  

 

Page 248



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 8 of 11 

 

Exception Request 

As stated above, the applicant is seeking an exception to minimum lot frontage 

requirements for Lots 3, 5 and 6 which will not have frontage on a public street at the 

time they are created.  

 
Figure 2 - Proposed lots with street frontage, reservations and easements 

  Existing Street Frontages2 

  Proposed Extinguishable Reservation #1 

  Proposed Extinguishable Reservation #2 

  Existing access easement 

 

Page 249



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 9 of 11 

 

The applicant is proposing to utilize extinguishable reservations and an existing 

access easement to provide access and frontage to the new lots. 

The reservations will encompass the street areas approved under LDS-19-008 which 

are to be dedicated for the future extension of McLoughlin Drive (Reservation No. 1) 

and Ford Drive (Reservation No. 2) as part of Delta Estates subdivision Phase 9. 

Per the applicant, the reservations will be extinguished one the intervening phases 

(Phases 8A or 9B) are platted and each lot has legal street frontage. The Lot 6 

easement will remain in place until the McLoughlin Drive frontage has been 

improved. 

Other Agency Comments 

Department of State Lands 

The Department of State Lands submitted commented (Exhibits W and X) that any 

future fill, removal or movement of material on these lots, in excess of 50 cubic yards, 

for the purpose of site development, would likely trigger the need for permit 

consultation with, and permit issuance from the Department of State Lands. 

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from a committee, such as BPAC.  

No other issues were identified by staff.  

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Land Division 

Staff finds the subdivision plat consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and all 

applicable design standards set forth in Article IV and V. Furthermore, the subdivision 

will not prevent development of the remainder of the property under the same 

ownership or of adjoining land; and the subdivision will not cause an unmitigated 

land use conflict between the land division and adjoining agricultural lands within the 

EFU zoning district; Criteria 3, 4 & 5 are not applicable. 

 

Exception 

Staff finds that the approval of the exception is in harmony with the general purpose 

and intent of the SFR-6 and SFR-10 zoning districts, and will not be injurious to the 

general area or otherwise detrimental to the health, safety, and general welfare or 

adjacent natural resources; will not permit the establishment of a use which is not 

permitted in the SFR-6 or SFR-10 zoning districts; requiring right-of-way dedications 

Page 250



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 10 of 11 

 

for the rights to simply create economic units of land which will ultimately develop 

represents a peculiar, exception and undue hardship; and the need for the exception 

is not the result of an illegal act. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the final order 

for approval of LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 per the staff report dated April 16, 2020 

including: 

- Exhibits A through X; 

- Adoption of the applicant’s stipulations as stated in the submitted Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions of Law (Exhibit O). 

EXHIBITS 

A Conditions of Approval, dated April 16, 2020 

B Tentative Plat, received February 25, 2020 

C Approved Tentative Plat, received February 25, 2020 

D Map of Survey, received February 25, 2020 

E Cover Sheet, received February 25, 2020 

F Grading Plans, received February 25, 2020 

G Utility Plans, received February 25, 2020 

H Zoning Map, received February 25, 2020 

I GLUP Map, received February 25, 2020 

J Circulation Plan, received February 25, 2020 

K Hydrological Features Plan, received February 25, 2020 

L Assessor Map, received February 25, 2020 

M Cell Tower Site, received February 25, 2020 

N Site Photos, received February 25, 2020 

O Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, received February 25, 2020 

P Public Works Staff Report, dated April 1, 2020 

Q Medford Water Commission Report, dated April 1, 2020 

R Building Department Report, dated March 30, 2020 

S Fire Department Report, dated March 24, 2020 

T Jackson County Road Letter, dated March 23, 2020 

U Parks & Recreation Department Memo, dated April 1, 2020 

V Rogue Valley Sewer Services Memo, dated March 13, 2020 

W Wetland Land Use Notification Response, received March 27, 2020 

X Follow-up email for WLUN, received March 30, 2020 

Vicinity map 

Page 251



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision Staff Report 

File no. LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 April 16, 2020 

Page 11 of 11 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA: APRIL 23, 2020 
  
 

Page 252



EXHIBIT A 
 

Delta Estates 
LDS-20-050 & E-20-051 
Conditions of Approval 

April 16, 2020 
 

DISCRETIONARY CONDITIONS 

1. The Commission accepts the applicant’s stipulations as stated in the submitted Findings 

of Fact and Conclusions of Law (Exhibit O), and applies them as conditions. The 

stipulations are as follows: 

a. To record as part of the final plat an extinguishable access reservation covering 

the entire width of McLoughlin Drive where it is crossing Delta Water Estate 

Subdivision Phase 9 as approved on the tentative plat to benefit Lot 5 of this 

application; 

b. To record as part of the final plat an extinguishable access reservation covering 

the entire width of Ford Drive where it is crossing Delta Waters Estates Subdivision 

Phase 9 as approved on the tentative plat to benefit Lot 3 of this application; 

c. To record a deed restriction requiring the owner of Lot 5 to install street frontage 

improvements on the north and east side of Lot 6 to match the standards required 

of the developer of Delta Waters Estate Subdivision Phase 8B. 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the approval of the final plat, the applicant shall: 

2. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Public Works Department (Exhibit P) 
3. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit Q). 
4. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit S). 

5. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Parks Department (Exhibit U). 

6. Comply with all requirement of the Oregon Department of State Lands (Exhibit W). 

 

Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-

LD.docx Page 1 of 12 

LD DATE: 4/1/2020 

File Number: LDS-20-050/E-20-051 

Reference: LDP-18-023 and LDS-19-008/ZC-19-009/E-19-010 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 
Delta Estates Properties Subdivision Reserve Acreage & Non-Residential Lots 
6 Lots 

Project: Consideration of tentative plat approval for a six-lot subdivision and an 

Exception pertaining to minimum lot frontage standards on one parcel of land, 

22.38 acres in size. 

Location: Located at the northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern terminus 

of Ford Drive within the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, 4 to 6  dwelling  units  

per gross acre) and SFR-10 (Single-Family Residential, 6 to 10 dwelling units per 

gross acre) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted Zoning) Administrative 

Mapping Overlay (371W081103). 

Applicant: Applicant, Delta Waters Properties LLC; Agent, CSA Planning Ltd.; Planner, Steffen 

Roennfeldt. 

Applicability:  The Medford Public Works Department’s conditions of Approval for Delta Estates 

Subdivision were adopted by Order of the Medford Planning Commission (LDP-18-023 and LDS-19-

008/ZC-19-009/E-19-010 Phases 6-9) on May 20th, 2018 and April 25th, 2019 respectively.  The 

adopted conditions of this action which have not expired shall remain in full force as originally 

adopted except as amended or added to below. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The following items shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective events under 

which they are listed: 

 Approval of Final Plat:

Right-of-way, construction and/or assurance of the public improvements in 

accordance with Medford Land Development Code (MLDC), Section 10.666 & 

10.667 (Items A, B & C) 

 Issuance of first building permit for residential construction:

Construction of public improvements (Items A through E) 

 Issuance of Certificates of Occupancy for individual units:

Sidewalks (Items A2) 

Page 292



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 2 of 12 

A. STREETS

1. Dedications

An exception request has been submitted requesting to allow extinguishable right-of-way 

reservations and an existing easement to provide temporary access and frontage until such 

a time as the streets approved under LDS-19-008 are platted and constructed. If the 

exception request is denied, dedications shall be submitted as outlined below for 

McLoughlin Drive, Owen Drive and Ford Drive. 

McLoughlin Drive (along the frontage of Lots 4, 5 and 6) is classified as a Major Collector 

street within the Medford Land Development Code (MLDC) 10.428.  The Developer shall 

dedicate for public right-of-way, sufficient width of land along the frontage to comply with 

the half width (37-feet) of right-of-way plus 13-feet or more as needed to provide for the 

proposed street as shown on the tentative plat for Delta Estates Phases 6-9, LDS-19-008.  

The proposed centerline alignment at the southerly end of this street shall transition to the 

existing right-of-way in accordance with AASHTO standards. 

Owen Drive (along the frontage of Lot 6) is classified as a Minor Arterial street within the 

MLDC, Section 10.428.  The Developer shall dedicate for public right-of-way, sufficient width 

of land along this portion of Owen Drive to comply with the width needed to construct the 

full improvements except the planter strip and sidewalk to the north side.  This area shall 

include any additional width necessary to accommodate any cut or fill slopes. The 

Developer’s surveyor shall verify the amount of additional right-of-way required. 

Ford Drive (along the frontage of Lot 4) is proposed as Minor Residential streets 

within the MLDC 10.430.  The Developer shall dedicate for public right-of-way, 

sufficient width of land along the respective frontages to comply with the full width 

of right-of-way, which is 55-feet. 

The Developer will receive SSDC (Street System Development Charge) credits for the public 

right-of-way dedication on McLoughlin Drive and Owen Drive only along the portion 

fronting the future alignment, per the methodology established by the MLDC 3.815.  

Should the Developer elect to have the value of the land be determined by an appraisal, a 

letter to that effect must be submitted to the City Engineer within sixty (60) calendar days 

of the date of the Final Order of the Planning Commission. The City will then select an 

appraiser, and a cash deposit will be required as stated in Section 3.815.

Corner radii shall be provided at the right-of-way lines of all intersecting streets per MLDC 

10.445. 

Streets, as shown on the Tentative Plat, in which any portion terminates to a boundary line 

of the Development shall be dedicated to within one foot of the boundary line, and the 

Page 293



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 3 of 12 

remaining one foot shall be granted in fee simple, as a non-access reserve strip to the City 

of Medford.  Upon approved dedication of the extension of said streets, the one-foot 

reserve strip shall automatically be dedicated to the public use as part of said street 

without any further action by the City of Medford (MLDC 10.439). 

Public Utility Easements (PUE), 10-feet in width, shall be dedicated along the any right-of-

way dedications within this development (MLDC 10.471). 

The right-of-way and easement dedications shall be submitted directly to the Engineering 

Division of the Public Works Department.  The submittal shall include: the right-of-way and 

easement dedication, including an exhibit map; a copy of a current Lot Book Report, 

Preliminary Title Report, or Title Policy; a mathematical closure report (if applicable), and 

the Planning Department File Number; for review and City Engineer acceptance signature 

prior to recordation by the applicant. Releases of interest shall be obtained by holders of 

trust deeds or mortgages on the right-of-way and PUE area. 

2. Public Improvements

a. Public Streets

An exception request has been submitted as noted above.  If the exception request is 

denied, McLoughlin Drive and Owen Drive shall be constructed as outlined below including 

street lights.  If the exception request is approved then no additional improvements will be 

required at this time. 

McLoughlin Drive (along the frontage of Lots 4 and 5) shall be improved to Major Collector 

street structural standards. The Developer shall improve a 22-foot wide paved section.  

This includes the portion where McLoughlin Drive is not improved along the northeast 

corner of 371W08-1400.  

McLoughlin Drive (along the frontage of Lots 6) shall be improved to Major Collector street 

standards in accordance with MLDC 10.428. The Developer shall improve the west half plus 

8-feet east of the centerline, as requested, as it is practical to require additional dedication

and improvements from the adjacent property as it is within the Urban Growth Boundary

and is undeveloped.

Owen Drive (along the frontage of Lot 6) shall be improved to Minor Arterial street 

standards, along the frontage of this development, in accordance with MLDC 10.428.  The 

developer shall improve the south half plus the north 22-feet including the curb & gutter.  

This shall provide the full paved section curb to curb and the south planter and sidewalk. 

The Developer shall receive Street System Development Charge credits for the public 

improvements on McLoughlin Drive and Owen Drive along the portion fronting lot 6 per the 

Page 294



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 4 of 12 

value established by the Medford Municipal Code, Section 3.815. 

b. Street Lights and Signing

The Developer shall provide and install in compliance with Section 10.495 of the 

Medford Municipal Code (MMC).  Based on the preliminary plan submitted, the 

following number of street lights and signage will be required: 

Street Lighting – Developer Provided & Installed: 

A. 1 – Type C-250 (LED)

Traffic Signs and Devices – City Installed, paid by the Developer: 

A. 2 – Dead End Barricades

B. 2 – Stop Signs

C. 2 – Street Name Signs

Numbers are subject to change if changes are made to the plans.  All street lights 

shall be installed per City standards and be shown on the public improvement 

plans.  Public Works will provide preliminary street light locations upon request.  All 

street lights shall be operating and turned on at the time of the final “walk through” 

inspection by the Public Works Department. 

The Developer shall pay for City installed signage required by the development.  City 

installed signs include, but are not limited to, street name signs, stop signs, speed signs, 

school signs, dead end signs, and dead end barricades.  Sign design and placement shall be 

per the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).  All signs shall be shown on 

the public improvement plans and labeled as City installed. 

The Developer shall be responsible for the preservation and re-installation of all signs 

removed during demolition and site preparation work.  The Developer’s contractor shall 

coordinate with the City of Medford Public Works, Maintenance and Operations Division to 

remove any existing signs and place new signs provided the Developer. 

c. Pavement Moratoriums

There is a no pavement cutting moratorium currently in effect along the developments 

respective frontages. 

The Developer shall be responsible for notifying by certified letter all utility companies, as 

well as all current property owners of parcels which are adjacent to any Public Street being 

constructed or paved as part of this project. The letter shall inform the utility companies 

and property owners of the City's street moratorium policy with respect to pavement 

cutting for future utility services. The utility companies and property owners shall be given 

Page 295



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 5 of 12 

the opportunity to install utility services within the right-of-way prior to paving and the 

subsequent moratorium. Notifications shall be mailed by the Developer at least 6 months 

before a street is resurfaced or rebuilt per Medford Municipal Code (MMC), Section 3.070. 

Copies of the certifications shall be submitted to the City Engineer with the submittal of the 

preliminary construction drawings. 

d. Soils Report

The Developer’s Engineer shall obtain a soils report to determine if there is shrink-swell 

potential in the underlying soils in this development.  If they are present, they shall be 

accounted for in the roadway and sidewalk design within this Development.  The soils 

report shall be completed by a licensed Geotechnical Engineer in the state of Oregon. 

e. Access and Circulation

Driveway access shall be per MLDC 10.550. 

f. Easements

All public sanitary sewer or storm drain mains shall be located in paved public streets or 

within easements.  A 12-foot wide paved access shall be provided to any public manholes 

or other structures which are not constructed within the street section, in these locations 

the paved access shall be located within a 15-foot easement. 

Easements shall be shown on the final plat and the public improvement plans for all 

sanitary sewer and storm drain mains or laterals which cross lots, including any common 

area, other than those being served by said lateral.  The City requires that easement(s) do 

not run down the middle of two tax lot lines, but rather are fully contained within one tax 

lot. 

3. Section 10.668 Analysis

To support a condition of development that an applicant dedicate land for public use or 

provide a public improvement, the Medford Code requires a nexus and rough 

proportionality analysis which is essentially a codification of the constitutional provisions in 

Nollan and Dolan cases.  

10.668 Limitation of Exactions 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Chapter 10, an applicant for a development 

permit shall not be required, as a condition of granting the application, to dedicate land for 

public use or provide public improvements unless: 

Page 296



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 6 of 12 

(1) the record shows that there is an essential nexus between the exaction and a legitimate 

government purpose and that there is a rough proportionality between the burden of the 

exaction on the developer and the burden of the development on public facilities and 

services so that the exaction will not result in a taking of private property for public use, or 

(2) a mechanism exists and funds are available to fairly compensate the applicant for the 

excess burden of the exaction to the extent that it would be a taking. 

1. Nexus to a legitimate government purpose

The purposes for these dedications and improvements are found throughout the Medford 

Code, the Medford Transportation System Plan, and the Statewide Planning Rule, and 

supported by sound public policy.  Those purposes and policies include, but are not limited 

to: development of a balanced transportation system addressing all modes of travel, 

including motor vehicles, transit, bicycles, and pedestrians.  It can be found that the listed 

right-of-way dedications and improvements have a nexus to these purposes and policies.   

2. Rough proportionality between the dedications and improvements, and the impacts of

development.   

No mathematical formula is required to support the rough proportionality analysis.  It has 

been described as comparing apples to oranges.  Further, we are allowed to consider the 

benefits to the development from the dedication and improvements when determining 

“rough proportionality.”   

As set forth below, the dedications and improvements recommended herein can be found 

to be roughly proportional to the impacts reasonably anticipated to be imposed by this 

development.    

McLoughlin Drive is classified as a Major Collector and Owen Drive is classified as a Minor 

Arterial street per the adopted Circulation Plan.  McLoughlin Drive is the primary connector 

between Owen Drive and Delta Waters Road.  Owen Drive is the primary connector 

between future McLoughlin Drive and Torrent Street.  As a Major Collector and a Minor 

Arterial, McLoughlin Drive and Owen Drive will have one travel lane in each direction, a 

center-turn median, bike lanes in each direction, and sidewalks.  It will provide safe travel 

for vehicles, bicycles, and pedestrians.   

As a higher order street, it is eligible for street SDC credits for both the right-of-way and 

roadway improvements, per MMC, Section 3.815 (5). Street SDCs credits offset costs to the 

developer and is the mechanism provided by the City of Medford to fairly compensate the 

applicant for the excess burden of dedicating for and constructing higher order streets. 

Ford Drive 

Page 297



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 7 of 12 

a. Dedication will ensure that new development and density intensification provides

the current level of urban services.

b. Dedication will ensure adequate future street circulation is maintained.  The street

layout and connectivity proposed in this development will provide alternate route

choices for the residents that will live in this neighborhood.  This will decrease

emergency vehicle response times and will decrease overall vehicle miles traveled.

c. Dedication will provide for future access and transportation connections at urban

level of service standards for this development.  The connections proposed in this

development will enhance the connectivity for all modes of transportation and

reduce trip lengths.  As trip lengths are reduced, it increases the potential for other

modes of travel including walking and cycling.

d. Dedication of PUE will benefit development by providing public utility services,

which are out of the roadway and more readily available to each Lot being served.

The additional traffic of all modes of travel generated by this proposed development 

supports the dedication and improvements for all modes of travel and utilities.  As 

indicated above, the area required to be dedicated and improved for this development is 

necessary and roughly proportional to that required in previous developments in the 

vicinity to provide a transportation system that meets the needs for urban level services. 

B. SANITARY SEWERS

The proposed development is situated within the Medford sewer service area.  The 

Developer shall provide one service lateral to each buildable lot prior to approval of the 

Final Plat. If the exception request is approved then no additional improvements will be 

required at this time. 

If street improvements are required, then public sanitary sewer mains shall be extended 

on their courses to the limits of the street improvements, such that future development 

can extend service without having to excavate back into the improvements provided by this 

subdivision. 

C. STORM DRAINAGE

1. Hydrology

If street improvements are required, Then the Design Engineer shall provide an 

investigative report of the off-site drainage on the subdivision perimeter, a distance not 

less than 100 feet in all directions.  All off-site drainage affecting the subdivision shall be 

addressed on the subdivision drainage plan. A hydrology map depicting the amount of 

Page 298



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 8 of 12 

area the subdivision will be draining shall be submitted with hydrology and hydraulic 

calculations. The opening of each curb inlet shall be sized in accordance with ODOT design 

standards. These calculations and maps shall be submitted with the public improvement 

plans for approval by the Engineering Division.  

2. Stormwater Detention and Water Quality Treatment

If street improvements are required, then this development shall provide stormwater 

detention in accordance with MLDC, Section 10.486, and water quality treatment in 

accordance with the Rogue Valley Stormwater Quality Manual per MLDC, Section 10.481. 

Prior to acceptance of the public improvements, the developer’s design engineer shall 

provide verification that the stormwater quality and detention system is constructed per 

plan.  Verification shall be provided to the Engineering Division on a form provided by the 

Engineering Division.  

The City is responsible for operational maintenance of the public storm water 

facility.  Irrigation and maintenance of landscape components shall be the responsibility of 

the Developer during the three year vegetation establishment period.  The Developer shall 

establish vegetation per the Rogue Valley Stormwater Quality Design Manual. The 

Developer’s engineer shall submit a draft agreement to this effect (provided by the City or 

in a form acceptable to the City) during plan review and shall execute the agreement prior 

to final plat. 

3. Grading

If street improvements are required, then a comprehensive grading plan showing the 

relationship between adjacent property and the proposed subdivision will be submitted 

with the public improvement plans for approval. Grading on this development shall not 

block drainage from an adjacent property or concentrate drainage onto an adjacent 

property without an easement.  The Developer shall be responsible that the final grading of 

the development shall be in compliance with the approved grading plan. 

4. Mains and Laterals

If street improvements are required, then the Developer shall show all existing and 

proposed Storm Drain mains, channels, culverts, outfalls and easements on the Conceptual 

Grading and Drainage Plan and the final Construction Plans. 

In the event the lot drainage should drain to the back of the lot, the developer shall be 

responsible for constructing a private drain line, including a tee at the low point of each lot 

to provide a storm drain connection. All roof drains and foundation drains shall be 

connected directly to a storm drain system.  

Page 299



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 9 of 12 

If street improvements are required, then a storm drain lateral shall be constructed to lot 6 

prior to approval of the Final Plat.  Easements shall be shown on the Final Plat for storm 

drain laterals crossing lots other than the one being served by the lateral. 

5. Erosion Control

If street improvements are required, then subdivisions of one acre and greater require a run-

off and erosion control permit from DEQ. The approved permit must be submitted to the 

Engineering Division prior to public improvement plan approval. The erosion prevention and 

sediment control plan shall be included as part of the plan set.  All disturbed areas shall have 

vegetation cover prior to final inspection/"walk-through" for this subdivision. 

D. SURVEY MONUMENTATION

All survey monumentation shall be in place, field-checked, and approved by the City 

Surveyor prior to approval of the final plat. 

E. GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. Design Requirements and Construction Drawings

All public improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the “Engineering Design 

Standards for Public Improvements”, adopted by the Medford City Council. Copies of this 

document are available in the Public Works Engineering office. 

2. Construction Plans

If street improvements are required, then construction drawings for any public 

improvements for this project shall be prepared by a professional engineer currently 

licensed in the State of Oregon, and submitted to the Engineering Division of Medford 

Public Works Department for approval. Construction drawings for public improvements 

shall be submitted only for the improvements to be constructed with each phase.  Approval 

shall be obtained prior to beginning construction. Only a complete set of construction 

drawings (3 copies) shall be accepted for review, including plans and profiles for all streets, 

minimum access drives, sanitary sewers, storm drains, and street lights as required by the 

governing commission’s Final Order, together with all pertinent details and calculations.  A 

checklist for public improvement plan submittal can be found on the City of Medford, 

Public Works web site (http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103).  The Developer 

shall pay a deposit for plan review and construction inspection prior to final plan approval.  

Public Works will keep track of all costs associated with the project and, upon our 

acceptance of the completed project, will reconcile the accounting and either reimburse 

the Developer any excess deposit or bill the Developer for any additional amount not 

Page 300

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 10 of 12 

covered by the deposit. The Developer shall pay Public Works within 60 days of the billing 

date or will be automatically turned over for collections. 

Please Note: If Project includes one or more Minor Residential streets, an additional Site 

Plan shall be submitted, noting and illustrating, one of the following design options to 

ensure fire apparatus access per MLDC 10.430(2): 

 Clustered driveways,

 Building to have sprinklers, or

 33-foot paved width.

In order to properly maintain an updated infrastructure data base, the Surveyor of Record 

shall submit an as-built survey prior to the Final Inspection and, the Engineer of Record 

shall submit mylar “as-constructed” drawings to the Engineering Division within sixty (60) 

calendar days of the Final Inspection (walk through).  Also, the engineer shall coordinate 

with the utility companies, and show all final utility locations on the "as built" drawings. 

3. Phasing

The proposed plans do not show any phasing. 

4. Draft of Final Plat

The Developer shall submit 2 copies of the preliminary draft of the final plat at the same 

time the public improvement plans (3 copies) are submitted.  Neither lot number nor lot 

line changes shall be allowed on the plat after that time, unless approved by the City and all 

utility companies. 

5. Permits

Building Permit applications for vertical construction shall not be accepted by the Building 

Department until the Final Plat has been recorded, and a “walk through” inspection has 

been conducted and approval of all public improvements as required by the Planning 

Commission has been obtained for this development. 

Concrete or block walls built within a PUE, or within sanitary sewer or storm drain 

easements require review and approval from the Engineering Division of Public Works. 

Walls shall require a separate permit from the Building Department and may also require 

certification by a professional engineer. 

6. System Development Charges (SDCs)

Buildings in this development are subject to SDC fees. These SDC fees shall be paid at the 

time individual building permits are taken out. 

Page 301



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 11 of 12 

This development is also subject to storm drain system development charges, the 

Developer is eligible for storm drain system development charge credits for the installation 

of storm drain pipe which is 24-inches in diameter or larger and is not used for storm drain 

detention in accordance with Medford Municipal Code (MMC), Section 3.891.  The storm 

drain system development charge shall be collected at the time of the approval of the final 

plat. 

7. Construction and Inspection

Contractors proposing to do work on public streets (including street lights), sewers, or 

storm drains shall ‘prequalify’ with the Engineering Division prior to starting work.  

Contractors shall work off a set of public improvement drawings that have been approved 

by the City of Medford Engineering Division. Any work within the County right-of-way shall 

require a separately issued permit from the County. 

For City of Medford facilities, the Public Works Maintenance Division requires that public 

sanitary sewer and storm drain mains be inspected by video camera prior to acceptance of 

these systems by the City. 

Where applicable, the Developer shall bear all expenses resulting from the adjustment of 

manholes to finish grades as a result of changes in the finish street grade. 

Prepared by: Jodi K Cope 

Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs 

Page 302



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-050_E-20-051 Delta Waters Properties Subdivision (TL 1103) 5-Reserve Acreage Lots\LDS-20-050_E-50-051 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 12 of 12 

SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Delta Estates Properties Subdivision Reserve Acreage & Non-Residential Lots 
6 Lots         LDS-20-050/E-20 

A. Streets

1. Street Dedications to the Public:
 Dedicate right-of-way on McLoughlin Drive, Owen Drive and Ford Drive unless otherwise approved with the

requested exception.

 Dedicate 10-foot public utility easements (PUE) if right-of-way is dedicated. 

2. Improvements:

Public Streets

 Construct Owen Drive to Minor Arterial street standards, unless otherwise approved with the requested exception.

 Construct McLoughlin Drive to Major Collector street standards, unless otherwise approved with the requested 

exception.

Lighting and Signing 

 Developer supplies and installs all street lights at own expense. 

 City installs traffic signs and devices at Developer’s expense. 

Access and Circulation 

 Comply with access and circulation conditions outlined above.

Other 

 No pavement moratorium currently in effect along this developments respective frontages. 

 Provide pavement moratorium letters if street construction is required. 

o Provide soils report if street construction is required. 

B. Sanitary Sewer:
 Provide a private lateral to lot 6 if street construction is required. 

 Provide easements as necessary.

C. Storm Drainage:
 Provide an investigative drainage report if street construction is required. 

 Provide water quality and detention facilities if street construction is required. 

 Provide Engineers verification of stormwater facility construction if street construction is required. 

 Provide a comprehensive grading plan if street construction is required. 

 Provide storm drain laterals to lot 6 if street construction is required. 

 Provide Erosion Control Permit from DEQ if street construction is required. 

D. Survey Monumentation
 Provide all survey monumentation.

E. General Conditions
 Provide public improvement plans and drafts of the final plat if street construction is required. 

 = City Code Requirement

o = Discretionary recommendations/comments

The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way.  If there is any discrepancy between 

the above list and the full report, the full report shall govern.  Refer to the full report for details on each item as well as miscellaneous 

requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans (Construction Plans), design requirements, phasing, draft 

and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, pavement moratoriums and construction inspection. 

Page 303



 BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

 Staff Memo 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\lds20050-e20051.docx  
Page 1 of 1 

TO: Planning Department, City of Medford

FROM: Rodney Grehn P.E., Water Commission Staff Engineer

SUBJECT: LDS-20-050 & E-20-051

PARCEL ID: 371W08 TL 1103

PROJECT: Consideration of tentative plat approval for a six-lot subdivision and an Exception 
pertaining to minimum lot frontage standards on one parcel of land, 22.38 acres in 
size, located at the northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern 
terminus of Ford Drive within the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, 4 to 6 dwelling 
units per gross acre) and SFR-10 (Single-Family Residential, 6 to 10 dwelling 
units per gross acre) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted Zoning) 
Administrative Mapping Overlay (371W081103); Applicant, Delta Waters 
Properties LLC; Agent, CSA Planning Ltd.; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt.

DATE: April 1, 2020 

I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested.  Conditions for approval and 
comments are as follows: 

CONDITIONS 

1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the
Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and “Standards
For Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devices.”

2. All parcels/lots of proposed property divisions will be required to have metered water service
prior to recordation of final map, unless otherwise arranged with MWC.

3. Please refer to City of Medford Water Commission Staff Memo for LDS-19-008, ZC-19-009,
and E-19-010 dated February 27, 2019 for Conditions of Development.

COMMENTS

1. No additional comments.

Page 304



G

G

G

G

G

G

G

#

!#A

!#A

!#A

!#A
&É &É

&É

&É

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! ( ! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.
G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.
G!.

G!.

!4
!4

!4
!4

!4

!4

!4
!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4

!4

!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4 !4!4

!4 !4!4

!4!4

!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4 !4!4

!4!4 !4

!4

!4

!4!4

!4
!4

!4

!4

!4!4 !4!4 !4

!4!4

!4!4 !4 !4

!4!4

!4!4 !4!4

!4
!4

!4!4

14
00

13
90

13
80

1390

1380

13
70

1400

1400

1400

1370

1390

1390

1370

137
0

3635

3520

3252

3558

3533

2913

3591

3059

3515 3270

3640

3248

3283

3604

3241

3617

3232

3043

3267

3239

3647

32763577

3616

3538

3242

3558

3533

3610

3618

3220

3251

3559

3202

3215

3016

3071

3264

3628

3549

3234

3539

3564

3579

3271

3253

3653

3503

3630
3594

3565

3250

3245

3035

3260

3606

3019

3576

3517

3546

3521

3570

3256

3247
3605

3619
3595

3233

3068

3623

3238

3532

3227

3547

3251

3583

3537 3629

3259

3582

3552

3607

3580

3599

3103

3624

3225

3531

3526

3258

3622

3214

3555

3564

3293

3524

3585

3269

3646

3277

3509

3598

3247

3233

3589

3022

3275

3641

3027

3268

3540

3063

3536

3570

3571

3532 3612

3523

3527

3567

3611

3255

3221

3226

3352

3553

3522

3051

3008

3543

3546

3226

3552
3514

3254

3573

3521

3634

3613

3265

3627

3588

3038

3244

3259

8
'' 
D
I 
2
0
1
8

1
2
'' 
D
I 
1
9
9
7

12'' DI 2018

12'' DI 2019

4
'' D

I 2
0
1
8

8'' DI 2018

8'' DI 2019

8'' DI 2018

8
'' 
D
I 
2
0
1
9

6'' DI 1993

8
'' 
D
I 
2
0
1
8

8'' DI 2018

3063
3/4M

3071
3/4M

3068
3/4M

3038
3/4M

3101
1 1/2M

3022
3/4M3016

3/4M

3008
3/4M

3059
3/4M

3051
3/4M

3043
3/4M

3035
3/4M

3027
3/4M

3019
3/4M

3524
3/4M

3536
3/4M

3214
3/4M

3215
3/4M

3221
3/4M

3220
3/4M

3226
3/4M

3227
3/4M

3233
3/4M

3232
3/4M

3238
3/4M

3239
3/4M

3245
3/4M

3244
3/4M

3250
3/4M

3517
3/4M3523

3/4M 3531
3/4M

3543
3/4M

3537
3/4M

3540
3/4M3546

3/4M

3552
3/4M

3549
3/4M 3555

3/4M

3564
3/4M

3265
3/4M

3271
3/4M

3277
3/4M

3283
3/4M

3503
3/4M

3509
3/4M

3514
3/4M

3520
3/4M

3515
3/4M

3521
3/4M

3527
3/4M

3526
3/4M

3532
3/4M 3538

3/4M

3533
3/4M

3546
3/4M

3547
3/4M3539

3/4M

3251
3/4M

3558
3/4M

3567
3/4M

M
M M M M

M

M M M
M

M M

M

M

M M M M

M

M

M
M

Owen Dr

M
cl
o
u
g
h
lin

D
r

Ford Dr

DurstSt

M
et
o
liu

s 
S
t

Carnelian St

M
cC

lo
u
d
 S
t

Edgew
ood

D
r

±

!R
"P
;̄C

This map is based on a digital database compiled by  Medford Water Commission from a
variety of sources. Medford Water Commission cannot accept responsibility for errors,
omissions, or positional accuracy. There are no warrantees, expressed or implied.

Legend

Water Mains:

Urban Growth Boundary

City Limits

Tax Lots

!RReservoir

"PPump Station

Control Station;̄C

Sample Station

Air Valve

³ Fire Service

Hydrant

Reducer#

Blow Off

Plugs-Caps

Abandoned Main

Active Main

S

!#A

T"B

G

G!.

Reservoir Drain Pipe

Pressure Zone Line

Boundaries:

MWC Facilities:

Butterfly Valve

Gate Valve

Tapping Valve

&É

! (

!R

Water Valves:

Water Meters:
Active Meter

On Well

Unknown

Vacant

!4

!4

!4

!4

Path: R:\Departments\GIS\MXDs\Rods MXDs\Rods ArcGIS Pro - Multi-Layout - 3-13-20.aprx

Date: 3/31/2020

0 100 20050
Feet

±
Scale: 1"= 200'

 Water Facility Map
        for

  LDS-20-050
  & E-20-051

Page 305



City of Medford 200 South Ivy, Medford, OR 97501 541-774-2350 cityofmedford.org 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Steffen Roennfeldt, Planning Department 

From: Mary Montague, Building Department 

CC: Delta Wates Properties, LLC, Applicant; CSA Planning Ltd, Agent 

Date: March 30, 2020 

Subject: LDS-20-050_E-20-051_Delta Waters Properties Subdivision McLoughlin Dr. 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT: 
Please Note: This is not a plan review. These are general notes based on general 

information provided. Plans need to be submitted and will be reviewed by a 

residential plans examiner to determine if there are any other requirements for this 

occupancy type. Please contact the front counter for fees. 

General Comments: 

1. For list of applicable Building Codes, please visit the City of Medford website:

www.ci.medford.or.us  Click on “City Departments” at top of screen; click on “Building”; click

on “Design Criteria” on left side of screen and select the appropriate design criteria.

2. All plans are to be submitted electronically. Information on the website:

www.ci.medford.or.us      Go to “City Departments” at top of screen; click on “Building”; click

on “ELECTRONIC PLAN REVIEW (ePlans)” for information.

3. Site Excavation permit from the building department required to develop, install utilities

prior to final plat. (Attached)

4. Demo Permit is required for any buildings being demolished.

Comments: 

5. Minimum access signs for lots per addressing and fire department. (Attached)

6. Provide a letter to the building official per Section R401.4 indicating if expansive soils are

present or not. If expansive soils are present then a site specific soils geotech report is

required by a Geotech Engineer prior to foundation inspections. The report must contain

Page 306

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/
http://www.ci.medford.or.us/


City of Medford 200 South Ivy, Medford, OR 97501 541-774-2350 cityofmedford.org 

information per Section 403.1.10 and on how you will prepare the lot for building and a 

report confirming the lot was prepared per their recommendations. 

7. This area is in the Hillside Ordinance area. Must follow guidelines as set forth in the

Municipal code Section 10.929 – 10.933.

8. Water pressure is over 80 psi per water department. A separate ‘pressure reducing valve’

permit is required.

Page 307



Install sign at the junction of the provider street and the minimum 
access street/driveway.
Locate sign at the back of sidewalk (as much as is practical) and 
outside the right of way if sidewalk does not exist. 
Sign shall be installed to the City of Medford Operations Division 
standards, and utility companies shall be notified 48 hours before 
digging by calling Rogue Basin Utilities at: 1-800-332-2344.

Galvanized steel square post, pre-punched, 2” square by 10’0” long.

Square 2 1/8” by 30” long galvanized steel square, pre-punched 
with 3/8” holes on 1” centers, anchor inserted into a 2 ¼” by 18” 
long square, pre-punched, galvanized steel sleeve forming a 
two piece anchor. The sleeve and the breakaway anchor are 
driven into the ground so that only 1- 2” of the top is sticking out 
of the ground. The sleeve and breakaway anchor are then 
driven into the ground with a sledgehammer. A 3/8" bolt is used 
to secure post to sleeve.

Two sign faces (each minimum 0.080" thick aluminum) of 
engineering grade reflectivity, sandwiching the post 
facing perpendicular to the direction of traffic. The sign 
face shall have a white rounded border ½” wide centered 
¾” from the sign edge. 

Mounting holes shall be 3/8” diameter located along the 
vertical axis, and centered 1 ½” from the top and bottom 
edge. Bolts shall be 3/8” diameter with sufficient length to 
properly secure signs to the posts. Properly sized steel 
rivets may be substituted for bolts. 

SIGN:

BOLTS:

LOCATION of SIGN:

POST:

SLEEVE:

Numbers shall be white on green; numbers shall be four 
inches (4”) as specified by the Federal Highway Administration 
(HTO-20). The message shall be centered on a 12” x 24” sign 
blank and shall be oriented with the long axis vertical. There 
shall be a maximum of four (4) digits horizontally. Multiple 
addresses shall be placed vertically on the sign.

NUMBERS:

min. 7' 0"

Medford Fire-Rescue, 200 S. Ivy Street Room #257, Medford, OR   Phone: (541) 774-2300; Fax (541) 774-2514 
Page 308



CITY OF MEDFORD
LAUSMANN ANNEX 

200 SOUTH IVY STREET 
MEDFORD, OREGON 97501 

BUILDING SAFETY DEPARTMENT 
ROOM 277 
www.ci.medford.or.us 

TELEPHONE (541) 774-2350 
FAX  (541) 774-2575 
E-MAIL: bldmed@ci.medford.or.us

WHEN GRADING PERMITS ARE REQUIRED 

An Excavation and Grading Permit is required if your project is: 

• An excavation that:  (1) is more than 2 feet in depth or (2) creates a cut slope
greater that 5 feet in height and steeper than 1 unit vertical in 1 ½ units horizontal.

• A fill more than 1 foot in depth and placed on natural terrain with a slope steeper
than 1 unit vertical in 5 units horizontal.

• A fill more than 3 feet in depth.
• A fill intended to support structures.
• A fill that exceeds 50 cubic yards on any lot.
• The fill obstructs a drainage course.
• Grading in an area that may create a danger to private or public property.
• Clearing and Grading: Clearing and Grading Permits are required if changes to

the topography and landscaping are completed prior to the review and issuance of
building permits.

REQUIRED ELEMENTS OF REGULAR GRADING 

Grading of less than 5,000 cubic yards that it is determined by the Building Official not 
to have special conditions and unusual hazards shall be considered “regular grading.” 

Each application for a grading permit shall be accompanied by a plan in sufficient clarity 
to indicate the nature and extent of the work.  The plans shall give the location of the 
work, the name of the owner and the name of the person who prepared the plan.  The plan 
shall include the following information: 

• General vicinity of the proposed site.
• Limiting dimensions and depth of cut and fill.
• Location of any building or structures where work is to be performed, and the

location of any buildings or structures within 15 feet of the proposed grading.

The building official may require professional inspection and testing by a soils engineer.  
When the building official has cause to believe that geologic factors may be involved, the 
grading will be required to conform to “engineered grading.” 

Page 309



REQUIRED ELEMENTS OF ENGINEERED GRADING 

Grading in excess of 5,000 cubic yards shall be performed in accordance with the 
approved grading plans prepared by a civil engineer, and shall be designated as 
“engineered grading.”  

You will need 2 copies of the grading plan. The following must be included on the plan.  

Note: A certified land surveyor, certified architect, or professional civil engineer licensed 
in the State of Oregon is required to prepare and seal the grading plan. The plan sheet size 
must be 18" X 24" min. and the scale must be 1"=50' or larger.

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

• Site plan
• Site utility plan
• Grading plan
• Erosion control plan
• Utility vault location and details

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

• Geotechnical/soil engineer report
• Storm water calculations
• Site retaining wall structural detail and calculations
• Assurance of compliance with environmental rules
• Floodplain limits, if present
• Signature and seal of the licensed professional (land surveyor, engineer, or

architect)

Page 310



Reviewed By: Kleinberg, Greg Review Date: 3/24/2020
Meeting Date: 4/1/2020

LD File #: LDS20050 Associated File
#1:

E20051

Planner: Steffen Roennfeldt

Applicant: Delta Waters Properties LLC

Site Name: n/a

Project Location: Northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern terminus of Ford Drive

ProjectDescription: Consideration of tentative plat approval for a six-lot subdivision and an Exception pertaining to minimum
lot frontage standards on one parcel of land, 22.38 acres in
size, located at the northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern terminus of Ford Drive
within the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, 4 to 6 dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-10 (Single-
Family Residential, 6 to 10 dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted
Zoning) Administrative Mapping Overlay(371W081103);

Conditions
Reference Comments Description

OFC
508.5

When the streets
are improved, fire
hydrants shall be
provided.

When fire hydrants are required, the approved water supply for fire protection
(hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when combustible material
arrives at the site. In addition, blue reflective fire hydrant markers are required to be
installed on the road surface to identify fire hydrant locations at night. 

Plans and specifications for fire hydrant system shall be submitted to Medford Fire-
Rescue for review and approval prior to construction. Submittal shall include a copy of
this review (OFC 501.3).

Medford Fire-Rescue Land Development Report

Review/Project Information

Specific Development Requirements for Access & Water Supply

Page 1 of 2          

Page 311



MMC
10.430

When the streets
are improved, the
developer shall
choose on of the
options for 28'
wide residential
streets.

In order to ensure that there is at least twenty (20) feet of unobstructed clearance for
fire apparatus on 28 feet wide minor residential streets, the developer shall choose
from one of the following design options outlined in Medford Code section 10.430:

(a) Clustered, offset (staggered) driveways, and fire hydrants located at intersections
with the maximum fire hydrant spacing along the street of 250-feet.

(b) All dwellings that front and take access from minor residential streets to be
equipped with a residential (NFPA 13D) fire sprinkler system, and fire hydrants located
at intersection with the maximum fire hydrant spacing along the street of 500-feet.

(c) Total paved width of 33-feet with five-and-a-half (5 ½) foot planter strips.

The developer shall choose one of the three options prior to the final plat. If the
clustered-offset driveway option is chosen, submitted civil plans are required to show
driveway locations which will be reviewed by the Fire Department and Engineering
Department prior to development. If the fire sprinkler option is chosen, the developer
shall notify the Fire Department prior to final plat.

The Fire Department reserves the right to require parking restrictions with no parking
signs in areas where the clustered-offset driveway option breaks down for short
distances. Parking restrictions shall not be deemed as a separate option to the overall
layout of the subdivision. If the developer by preference does not design the
clustered/offset driveways into the overall design of the minor residential street, option
(b) or (c) must be chosen.

The Oregon Fire Code requires; "Fire apparatus access roads shall have an
unobstructed width of not less than 20 feet and unobstructed vertical clearance of not
less than 13 feet 6 inches" (OFC 503.2.1). "The required width of a fire apparatus
access road shall not be obstructed in any manner, including parking of vehicles.
Minimum required widths and clearances established in Section 503.2.1, shall be
maintained at all times." (OFC 503.4).

Development shall comply with access and water supply requirements in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code in affect at
the time of development submittal. Fire apparatus access roads are required to be installed prior to the time of construction.
The approved water supply for fire protection (fire hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when
combustible material arrives at the site.

Specific fire protection systems may be required in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code.
This plan review shall not prevent the correction of errors or violations that are found to exist during construction. This plan
review is based on information provided only.

Design and installation shall meet the Oregon requirements of the International Fire, Building, Mechanicial Codes and
applicable NFPA Standards.

Construction General Information/Requirements

Medford Fire-Rescue, 200 S Ivy St. Rm 180, Medford OR 97501 541-774-2300

www.medfordfirerescue.org

Page 2 of 2          

Page 312



Page 313



TO:  Steffen Roennfeldt - Planning Department 
FROM:  Haley Cox – Parks Planner  
SUBJECT: Delta Waters Subdivision 
DATE: April 1, 2020 

The Parks Department has reviewed the proposal for the Delta Waters Subdivision and has the 
following comments: 

Owen Drive is classified as a Minor Arterial street, and the code requires construction of a five- 
to ten-foot planter strip between the curb and sidewalk. McLoughlin Drive is classified as a 
Major Collector street, but is currently improved with 10- foot sidewalks and 5-foot planters, an 
exception to the standard cross-section. The Parks Department would support continuing with 
the reduced planter strip and widened sidewalk on McLoughlin, which is within close proximity 
to a school. 

Planter strips on these higher-order streets will be maintained by the Parks Department in 
residential areas, so the developer must submit landscaping and irrigation plans that are 
consistent with the Parks Department Landscape and Irrigation Specifications and the City 
Approved Street Tree List. Plans must be approved by the Parks Department and Medford 
Water Commission prior to installation, and the Department encourages collaboration with City 
staff throughout development of the plans. 

Page 314



Page 315



Wetland Land Use Notice Response 

Response Page 

Department of State Lands (DSL) WN#* 

WN2020-0203 

Responsible Jurisdiction 

Staff Contact 

Steffen Roennfeldt 

Local case file #

LDS-20-50 

Activity Location 

Jurisdiction Type 

City 

County 

Jackson 

Municipality 

Medford 

Township 

37S 

Range 

01W 

Section 

08 

QQ section 

Street Address 

3292 Mcloughlin Dr 

Address Line 2 

Oty 

Medford 

Fbstal / Zip Qx:le 

97504 

Latitude 

42.366 

State I A-ovince / R3gion 

OR 

Coontry 

Jackson 

Longitude 

-122.838

Wetland/Waterway/Other Water Features 

Tax Lot(s) 

1103 

P' There are/may be wetlands, waterways or other water features on the property that are subject to the State 

Removal-Fill Law based upon a review of wetland maps, the county soil survey and other available 

information. 

P' The National Wetlands Inventory shows wetland, waterway or other water features on the property 

P' Local Wetlands Inventory shows wetland, waterway or other water features on the property 

P' The county soil survey shows hydric (wet) soils on the property. Hydric soils indicate that there may be 

wetlands. 

Your Activity 
Page 316



Page 317



1

Steffen K. Roennfeldt

From: WOLF Grey <grey.wolf@state.or.us>
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2020 8:43 AM
To: 'Jay Harland'
Cc: Steffen K. Roennfeldt
Subject: RE: WN2020-0203 Response to Local Case File #LDS-20-50

Importance: High

<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**> 

Good morning Jay, 

Thank you for the information. It is understood that physical land development was not authorized under the current 
submittal. However, a permit would be required from DSL for any impacts equal to or greater than 50 cubic yards to the 
mapped jurisdictional pond and ditch on proposed Parcels 1 & 2 .  

Best, 
Grey 

Grey F. Wolf, M.En. 
Jurisdictional Coordinator 
Aquatic Resource Management Program 
Oregon Department of State Lands | 775 Summer Street, NE, Ste. 100, Salem, Oregon 97301-4844 
503.986.5321  | Grey.Wolf@state.or.us  

From: Jay Harland <jay@csaplanning.net>  
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2020 2:12 PM 
To: WOLF Grey <Grey.Wolf@dsl.state.or.us> 
Cc: Steffen K. Roennfeldt <Steffen.Roennfeldt@cityofmedford.org> 
Subject: RE: WN2020-0203 Response to Local Case File #LDS-20-50 

Mr. Wolf, 

Just an FYI – this subdivision just creates future “development lots” that are reserve acreage.  It does not actually allow 
any physical development to occur. 

Physical subdivision development was approved through a prior land use application for this site though. 

Jay Harland 

Page 318



2

President 
CSA Planning Ltd. 
4497 Brownridge, Suite 101 
Medford, Oregon 97504 
(541) 779-0569

From: grey.wolf@state.or.us <grey.wolf@state.or.us>  
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2020 2:08 PM 
To: Jay Harland <jay@csaplanning.net> 
Subject: WN2020-0203 Response to Local Case File #LDS-20-50 

We have completed our review of the Wetland Land Use Notification that was prepared for Properties LLC Delta Waters 
- Properties LLC Delta Waters The WLUN form was submitted to the Department for review/response and given the file
number WN2020-0203

The results and conclusions from that review are explained in the attached pdf documents. If the attached documents 
are illegible or difficult to open, you may contact the Department and request paper copies. Otherwise, please review 
the attachments carefully and direct any questions or comments to Jurisdiction Coordinator, Grey Wolf at 503-986-5321 
or Grey.Wolf@dsl.state.or.us. Thank you for your interest in the project. 

Additional resources that may be helpful: 
DSL Coordinator List 

R/F Fee Schedule 

Aquatic Resource Management Program 
Oregon Department of State Lands 
775 Summer St. NE, Ste. 100 
Salem, OR 97301-1279 
Fax: (503) 378-4844 
www.oregon.gov/dsl 

Page 319



Delta Waters Properties Subdivision
McLoughlin Drive

2/24/2020

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

Po ppyWoo ds Dr

Rosewood St

Pheasant
Ln

Stonebrook Dr

Durst St

Barc
lay

Ct

Ha
rp

er
Wa

y

TempleDr

Robin
Way

Bla
c k

t ho
r n

Dr

Ford Dr

Ed
mo

n d
W

ay

Upper
Dr

Bryson W a y

Mo
nty

 St

Prescott
Ct

Micah
Cir

Pom ona
W ay

Jenero
Ct

Hollyhock
Dr

Somerset
Pl

To
rre

nt
St

B a r clay R d

Strasburg
St

Farmington A ve

Monarch Ln
No

me Ct

Shasta Dr

Bedford
Cir

Bronte
Cir

Sienna
Ct

Aldersga te Rd

Ba
lsu

m
Wa

y

Sil verPalm Cir

Blackthorn W ay

Ko
on

ce
St

Me
to l

i us
S t

Spicewood
Ct

Mc
Cl

ou
d S

t

Dragon Tail Pl

Sharman
W ay

Dearborn
Ln

Tahitian
Ave

Prov i ncialS t

ColonialA ve

Ca rne lia n
St

Ha
wa

iia
n A

ve

Delmar
Way

Saint
Charles Way

Ea ton
Dr

Tif
fan

y S
t

Ta
hi t

ia n
Av

e

Timothy Ave

Ar
de

nC
ir

Southport
Way

Leonard A ve
Stacie
Way

Jantze r Ct Ba
ile

y A
ve

Waverly
Way

Le
vi Ci
r

Be ll Ct

Ar
ro

wh
ea

d
Dr

Clairmont
Ct

Co
dy

 S
t

Luxor
Ln

Hondeleau Ln

Nellie

Ettinger Ln

Pa
ul Ci
r

Br
on Ci
r

He
ar

tw
oo

d
Ct

Be
ve

rly
Dr

Cheltenham
W

ay

Montego
Pl

Ba
nn

er
Ct

Saint
Thomas Way

Hayden
Pl

Windermere Dr

Mi
lho

an
 D

r

V iewpointDr

Sparta
Way

WinslowParkDr

Co
rd

en
Ln

Woodbria r Dr
Sn

ow
cre

st
Dr

M a
lla

rd
Ln

Husker
Butte Dr

Northb ro
ok

Ci r

Pearl Eye Ln

Ada

msCir

Ne
tti

e
Wa

y

Saint Augustine Dr

Wa
te

rf o
rd

Ct

Wel l in
gt

onDr

Silve r
Pa lm Dr

Cascara St

GaryDr

Fair fax St

EdgewoodDr

Wheat
Ridge Dr

Coker Butte Rd

Delta Waters Rd

Mc
lou

gh
lin

 D
r

Sp ringbrook Rd

Owen Dr
Owen Dr

N
Fo

oth
ill

Rd

4

3

2

1

LDS-20-050
E-20-051

Vicinity
Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 1,500750 Feet

Legend
Subject Area
Tax Lots s371W08 TL 1103

Page 320



STAFF REPORT for a Type-IV legislative decision:  Development Code
Amendment

Project Shared-Use Path Amendment 

File no. DCA-18-112 

To Planning Commission for 04/23/2020 hearing 

From Sarah Sousa, Planner IV 

Reviewer Carla Angeli Paladino, Principal Planner 

Date April 16, 2020 

BACKGROUND 

Proposal 

A legislative code amendment to Chapter 10 of the Medford Municipal Code to add 
standards for shared-use paths. 

History 

On March 17, 2017, the Planning Commission initiated a code amendment to create 
new development code language to address shared use paths.   The Parks and 
Recreation Facilities Department hired a planning firm to work on draft language to 
accommodate this amendment.  Once this draft was complete, Planning and Parks 
Department staff began revising the standards to be consistent with the language of 
the Code, City policies, and other regulations.  The proposed amendment was 
discussed with both the Planning Commission and City Council.  

Authority 

This proposed plan authorization is a Type IV legislative Code Amendment. The 
Planning Commission is authorized to recommend, and the City Council to approve, 
amendments to the Medford Municipal Code per Sections 10.214 and 10.218.  

Page 321



Shared-Use Path Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-18-112 April 16, 2020 

Page 2 of 6 

ANALYSIS 

The City has a system of paths and trails identified in the Comprehensive Plan within 
the Parks Leisure Services Plan and also the Transportation System Plan.  Currently, 
there are special design standards in the Code for greenways within the Southeast 
Overlay only.  The proposed changes incorporate standards for paths city-wide.  
These paths are currently required to be installed as part of development projects. 
The new regulations clarify what is necessary to be installed.   

Project Summary 

The new regulations provide clear and objective standards relating to the following. 

• Definition – A definition of shared use paths has been created.

• Public Improvement Standards and Plans – Shared use paths have been
added to the list of public improvements.  Construction drawing requirements
have been included requiring that the drawings are consistent with the
associated land use review and specifying that an Oregon licensed landscape
architect must prepare the landscape and irrigation plans.

• Design Standards – Standards have been included that integrate: connections
between pathways, safety features, maintenance and emergency vehicle
access, and designs appropriate for the geotechnical conditions and terrain.

• Construction Specifications – Specifications have been added that detail the
path base and materials, and clarify the location in proximity to waterways.

• Cross Sections – New cross sections are included that visually detail typical
and riparian pathways.

• Sidewalks in lieu of pathways – Language is incorporated to describe when
sidewalks may be installed in the street right-of-way in lieu of a pathway in an
exclusive corridor due to topography or other physical constraints.

• Landscaping Standards – Landscaping standards have been added that
specify the requirement of trees for typical greenways and native vegetation
for riparian greenways.  This section also clarifies that trees are required to
be installed in the park strips for shared-use path sidewalks, which must be
chosen from the Official List of City of Medford Approved Street Trees.  The

Page 322



Shared-Use Path Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-18-112 April 16, 2020 

Page 3 of 6 
 

timing of the landscape installation is based upon the type of land use review 
associated with the shared-use path.    

 
• Riparian Corridor Pathways – The Riparian Corridor section of the Code is 

amended to clarify that shared-use paths do not require a conditional use 
permit when associated with another land use review.   

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Applicable criteria  

The applicable criteria for Land Development Code Amendments is found in Medford 
Municipal Code Section 10.218.  The criteria are set in italics below; findings and con-
clusions are in roman type. 

Land Development Code Amendment.  The Planning Commission shall base its rec-
ommendation and the City Council its decision on the following criteria: 

Section 10.218(A) Explanation of the public benefit of the amendment.   

Findings 

As stated in the city’s Leisure Services Plan, “paths, trails, and greenways provide 
recreational opportunities and links in Medford’s transportation system.” This system 
provides healthy outdoor recreation while also connecting people to the places they 
need to go.   The system is an important benefit to the public.  Making sure these 
pathways get built is a vital part of the city’s review at the time of development.  This 
amendment creates standards by which these pathways should be built to serve the 
public.    

The proposed code amendment also helps to improve the Land Development Code 
by clarifying the requirements for shared-use path amendments.  Clear and objective 
standards make it easier for the development community to understand and plan for 
necessary public improvements including shared-use paths.  The existing code 
language only covers paths when within the Southeast area of Medford.  The new 
language will cover all of the city.  It specifies public improvement plans standards, 
design standards, construction specifications, and landscape requirements.  The 
proposal gives the option for wider sidewalks in the street right-of-way when site 
conditions do not allow for a typical pathway.  It also changes the procedure for 
allowing shared-use paths in riparian areas via most land use reviews without the 
need for an additional conditional use permit.  

 

 

Page 323



Shared-Use Path Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-18-112 April 16, 2020 

Page 4 of 6 

Conclusions 

Requiring shared-use path installation with development is not a new City 
requirement.  Most of the developments with shared-use paths have been in the 
Southeast area of town.  The Code language has been established for shared-use 
paths in that area since 2004.  However, the City’s Transportation Plan and the City’s 
Parks and Leisure Services Plan shows a grid of existing and proposed trails and paths 
throughout the entire city.  The proposed code amendment clarifies what the 
installation requirements are for the development community for the whole city, not 
just in the Southeast area.   

These pathways are built to serve the public.  Creating standards ensure these get 
built to City specifications for use by the public.  This criterion is found to be satisfied. 

10.218(B) The justification for the amendment with respect to the following factors: 

1. Conformity with goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan considered relevant 
to the decision. 

Findings 

The goal and policy within the Public Facilities Element – Parks, Recreation, and 
Leisure Services section below support the proposed code amendment. 

Goal 3: To provide recreational opportunities within parks and connectivity to parks 
through a path and trail system that is well integrated with the community.  

Policy 3-A-2. Integrate the siting of proposed path and trail segments into the 
development review process; require development projects along designated routes 
to be designed to incorporate path and trail segments as part of the project. 

As part of development review, staff identifies paths that are shown on the maps of 
both the Parks and Leisure Services Plan and the Transportation System Plan. Once 
this is determined, the installation of a shared-use path becomes a condition of land 
use approval.  If such property is outside of the Southeast Area of Medford, there are 
no specific standards to apply.  In those situations the Parks and Recreation 
Department staff has to provide requirements on a case-by-case scenario.  The 
proposed code amendment provides clarity and consistency so that it is clear what 
standards will be applied for all required shared-use paths.   

Conclusions 

This amendment conforms to Comprehensive Plan Goal 3 and Policy 3-A-2 by setting 
standards for shared-use paths that can be applied during the development review 
process.  This criterion is found to be satisfied.       

Page 324



Shared-Use Path Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-18-112 April 16, 2020 

Page 5 of 6 

2. Comments from applicable referral agencies regarding applicable statutes or
regulations. 

Findings 

The proposed code amendment has been reviewed by representatives from multiple 
city departments and outside agencies.  The language was sent out to the City’s Land 
Development Committee and reviewed at a meeting on March 11, 2020.   

The Fire Department, Building Department, Public Works Department, and Medford 
Water Commission provided official “no comments” for the record.   

Conclusions 

No concerns from applicable referral agencies have been brought up in regards to 
the proposed code amendment.  This criterion is found to be satisfied.    

3. Public Comments 

Findings 

The members of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) reviewed the 
proposed amendment at a meeting on March 9, 2020.  The group did not have any 
specific objections to the proposal.   

The proposal was made available to the planning firm that originally worked on the 
draft.  The only concern brought up from that was regarding the conditional use 
permit process for paths in the riparian areas.  The previous draft kept the regulation 
in place that if a path was to be placed within a riparian area, a conditional use permit 
would be required.  Based upon the feedback from the planning firm, the draft has 
been modified to eliminate the conditional use permit requirement for riparian 
pathways when reviewed in conjunction with another land use review.  This prevents 
a duplicate review.   

The code amendment will be available on the city’s website under the Planning 
Commission’s agenda packet for the upcoming meeting on April 23, 2020.  The public 
will also have a chance to review the amendment and report on the website as part 
of the City Council’s agenda packet for a meeting in May 2020.  As a result, there may 
be more public comments. 

Conclusions 

The code amendment has been made available to the public via the public hearing 
notice in the newspaper, to the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee, and to 
members of a local planning firm.  Comments have been addressed.  This criterion is 
found to be satisfied.   

Page 325



Shared-Use Path Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-18-112 April 16, 2020 

Page 6 of 6 

4.  Applicable governmental agreements. 

Findings 

There are no governmental agreements that apply to the proposed amendment.  

Conclusions 

This criterion is not applicable to the proposed amendment.     

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Based on the findings and conclusions that all of the applicable criteria are satisfied 
or not applicable, forward a favorable recommendation for approval of DCA-18-112 
to the City Council per the staff report dated April 16, 2020, including Exhibits A.   

EXHIBITS 

A Proposed Code Language 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA: APRIL 23, 2020 

Page 326



1 Draft Eight 
4/10/2020 

SHARED USE PATH STANDARDS AMENDMENT (DCA-18-112) 

(Blue lettering = proposed addition / Red strikeout = words to be removed) 

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

10.012  Definitions, Specific. 

Shared-Use Path.  A facility designed for travel and recreation by non-motorized users that is 
improved with a hard surface and separated from motor vehicle traffic. 

ARTICLE II – PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

10.185 Park Development Review. 

In order to ensure a harmonious transition between parkland and surrounding uses, a Park 
Development Review is required for new and expanded parks, trails, and paths within the Public 
Parks zone.  All park facilities, including paths and trails within the Public Parks zone, previously 
approved under a Conditional Use Permit, are subject to the Park Development Review process as 
described in this section.   

The following uses are subject to a Conditional Use Permit: 

1. New or expanded parks, trails, and paths outside of the Public Parks zone

2. New or expanded trails and paths within a riparian corridor

Outside of the Public Parks Zone, the following is required. 

(1) New or expanded parks outside of the Public Parks zone require a Conditional Use Permit.
(2) New or expanded trails or shared-use paths outside of the Public Parks zone may be

reviewed in conjunction with another land use review, such as a Land Division, Site Plan
& Architectural Commission Review, Traffic Facility, or Planned Unit Development.  If
the trail or path is a standalone project, outside of the Public Park zone, a Conditional Use
Permit is required.

ARTICLE IV -- PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS AND CRITERIA 

10.421 General Development Design Standards and Criteria. 

The developer shall design and improve all required public right-of-way elements, including 
streets, bicycle facilities lanes, sidewalks, planter strips, street lights, alleys, storm drains, sanitary 
sewers, waterlines, accessways, shared-use paths, and public easements which are a part of the 
development.. and tThose off-site public improvements necessary to serve the development 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan or any specific plan thereof, and such other public 

Exhibit APage 327



2 Draft Eight 
4/10/2020 

improvements as required by this chapter in accord with the standards and criteria set forth herein 
and shall thereafter warrant the materials and workmanship of said improvements for a period of 
one (1) year from the date of completion.  Such improvements as set forth herein shall be 
considered necessary for the general use of the property owner(s) of the development, the local 
neighborhood and the city's traffic and drainage needs including without limitation grading and 
surfacing of streets and accessways, installation of facilities to supply domestic water, construction 
of storm and sanitary drainage and treatment facilities, all other improvement work as hereafter 
set forth.  All improvement work shall be at the sole cost and expense of the developer unless 
otherwise specifically provided herein. 

10.482 Public Improvement Plan Requirements. 

A. Prior to the issuance of a development permit and prior to commencement of improvement
work, plans and specifications for all public improvements shall be prepared by a professional
engineer registered in the State of Oregon in accordance with the design and improvement
standards of this Code, and shall be submitted to and reviewed by the City Engineer,; water system
plans which shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Medford Water Commission.

B. All public improvements shall be constructed and completed under the inspection of and with
the approval of the City Engineer.

C. Without limiting the foregoing, and using City data, public improvement plans shall include
typical cross sections and proposed finished grades of all streets together with a profile showing
the relationship between finished grade and existing ground elevations, and the lengths, sizes,
grades, and type of all pipes, culverts, and other structures.

D. Public improvement plans and specifications shall contain performance data reviewed by the
developer's engineer demonstrating compliance with all design requirements of this Code.  City
and Water Commission personnel who check and/or approve public improvement plans and
specifications are authorized to accept such performance data at face value without independently
verifying the accuracy thereof.

E. Public improvement plans and specifications for shared-use paths shall also include the location
of the centerline of the path on the final construction drawings that is substantially consistent with
the location approved in the land use review.  A landscape and irrigation plan, if applicable, shall
be prepared by an Oregon licensed landscape architect and submitted with the final construction
drawings.  In the case of a City-initiated shared-use path, the landscape plan may be prepared by
Parks Recreation and Facilities Department staff.

10.503 Shared-Use Paths 

Shared-Use Paths shall be required of new developments located on sites that are identified for a 
planned path within the City’s Comprehensive Plan including, but not limited to, the Parks and 
Recreation Leisure Services Plan, Transportation System Plan, Neighborhood Plan or other 
adopted special area plan.  Where there is a difference between standards, the requirements in an 
adopted special area plan shall apply. 

Page 328



3 Draft Eight 
4/10/2020 

Land intended for shared-use paths shall be dedicated for public use and/or ownership following 
the installation of the required improvements.  However, the City, at its sole discretion, may permit 
the dedication of easements in lieu of fee-simple land dedication. 

(A) Shared-Use Path Design Standards

Shared-use paths shall:

(1) Integrate connections with existing and planned path and trail networks and accessways;
(2) Incorporate safety features at street intersections and at mid-block pathway crossings;
(3) Maintain grades at no more than five percent and cross slopes at no more than two percent

unless otherwise approved by the Parks Recreation and Facilities Director or designee;
(4) Maintain a minimum vertical clearance of 10 feet;
(5) Allow for maintenance and emergency vehicles, including turning radiuses;
(6) Provide a design in accordance with the latest addition of the American Association of

State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Guide for the Development of
Bicycle Facilities with an appropriate design speed for the terrain;

(7) Provide a paved width of at least 10 feet with 2 foot shoulders, unless otherwise
recommended by the Parks Recreation and Facilities Director (wider paths may be needed
where higher volume use is anticipated).

(B) Shared-Use Path Construction Specifications, Non-Street Right-of-Way.

Shared-use paths shall be constructed in accordance with the following specifications.

(1) Materials: Shared use pathways shall be constructed with asphalt concrete according to the
Parks Department standard specification. Other surfaces, including concrete, bricks, flagstones, or
compacted aggregate may be approved by the Parks Recreation and Facilities Director.

(2) Construction Details:  The asphalt concrete surface shall be a minimum of 2 ½ inches thick,
placed upon a 12 inch layer of compacted ¾ inch minus base with geotechnical fabric. If
constructed in concrete or other materials, the structural section must provide compression strength
equal to or better than standard sidewalks.

(3) Location: Shared-use paths shall be sited to provide non-motorized connectivity as shown in
the Comprehensive Plan.  The approving authority may approve paths to deviate from such
locations if the new location will provide the equivalent connectivity and functionality.  The
following typologies apply to shared-use pathways.

(a) Pathways within a riparian corridor: Shared use pathways shall be constructed a
minimum of 25 feet from top of bank as per Section 10.503C(1).  The approving
authority may approve an alternate location based upon site conditions.

(b) Pathways, other: Shared use pathway corridors outside a riparian area, shall be a
minimum of 20 feet in width as per Section 10.503C(2).

(c) Special Circumstances:  Where shared use pathways provide access to storm
drainage facilities or other public facilities, additional conditions may be required
by the utility provider.

Page 329



4 Draft Eight 
4/10/2020 

(C) Shared-Use Path Cross Sections, Non-Street Right-of-Way

(1) Typical Section, Riparian Shared-Use Path

Page 330



5 Draft Eight 
4/10/2020 

(2) Typical Section, Other Shared-Use Path

(D) Sidewalks, in lieu of pathways, within Street Right-of-Way

Where it is not feasible to designate a dedicated corridor due to topography or other constraints, 
sidewalks may be installed within the public right-of-way, in lieu of a standard pathway, if 
approved by the Parks and Recreation Department and the Public Works Department.  Sidewalks 
in lieu of pathways shall also be considered where an adopted City plan shows a path parallel to a 
public street.  They shall not be used where there are frequent driveway crossings. 

Sidewalks, in lieu of pathways, shall be built as per the Public Works Department specifications 
and require signage and/or striping to be installed indicating the shared-use function by both 
bicycles and pedestrians.   

Shared-use paths on arterial streets shall follow the cross-sections with separated bicycle facilities 
in Section 10.428(1), unless modified by the approving authority.  On all other streets, the planter 

Page 331



6 Draft Eight 
4/10/2020 

strip may be reduced on one or both sides of the street in order to accommodate a 10-foot wide 
sidewalk, if approved by the approving authority.    

(E) Shared-Use Path Installation and Timing

Shared-use paths shall be installed in accordance with the approved plan prior to final plat for land 
division approvals, prior to issuance of the certificate of occupancy for building permits for Site 
Plan & Architectural Commission approvals, and prior to certificate of occupancy for building 
permits or the commencement of use for Conditional Use Permits and Park Development Reviews 
unless otherwise approved by the approving authority. 

The City will accept the dedication and maintenance of the shared-use path upon the satisfactory 
completion of the installation of the path and required landscaping per the approved construction 
drawings and landscape plan.  

(F) Shared-Use Path Landscaping Design and Improvement

(1) Landscaping requirements for shared-use paths shall be in accordance with the following
requirements.

(a) Riparian Greenways:  A plan shall be submitted demonstrating protection of native vegetation,
along with restoration and enhancement plantings.  Such plan shall be submitted to the Oregon
Department of Fish & Wildlife for review and approval.  Landscaping and irrigation shall be
required along both sides of a shared-use path unless the approving authority determines it is not
necessary due to topography, existing vegetation, or other existing conditions.

(b) Shared-use pathway, other:  Trees offset at 50-foot intervals shall be required on both sides of
the shared-use path to provide adequate shading.  Enhanced landscaping is not required but may
be approved if a maintenance agreement is accepted by the Parks Recreation and Facilities
Director.  Landscaping and irrigation shall be required along both sides of a shared-use path unless
the approving authority determines it is not necessary due to topography, existing vegetation, or
other existing conditions.

(c) Sidewalk in lieu of pathway:  Trees and irrigation shall be required within the adjacent planter
strip next to the sidewalk.  For residential zoning districts, trees shall be installed to provide not
less than 100 percent canopy cover over the sidewalk at the time of tree maturity.  Street trees
within all the other zoning districts shall be installed to provide not less than 70 percent canopy
cover over the sidewalk at tree maturity.  Canopy cover shall be based upon tree maturity and
growth habit data provided in the Official List of City of Medford Approved Street Trees, a copy
of which is on file in the City of Medford Parks Department.  Street trees shall not be located
within 50 feet of the corner of an intersection of two streets measured at the curb line.

(2) Landscape Installation and Timing

(a) Landscaping shall be installed in accordance with the approved landscape plan prior to final
plat for land division approvals, prior to issuance of the certificate of occupancy for building
permits for Site Plan & Architectural Commission approvals, and prior to  certificate of occupancy

Page 332



7 Draft Eight 
4/10/2020 

for building permits or the commencement of use for Conditional Use Permits and Park 
Development Reviews.  The developer shall record a maintenance agreement, reviewed and 
approved by the City Parks Department, ensuring an 85 percent survival of all new landscaping 
within a two year period after the installation of landscaping.   

(G) Shared-Use Path, Short Segments

Where a section of a planned shared-use path is 300 feet or less through a development, the City 
may delay the installation of the path. Dedication of the land for the shared-use path shall be shown 
on the final plat or recorded separately as part of another land use review application. In those 
cases, the City shall require security for future construction of the shared-use path and associated 
landscaping.  The security may be in the form of a bond or other method acceptable to the City.  
The amount of the security shall be 125 percent of the engineer’s cost estimate of the shared-use 
path construction and 125 percent of a landscape architect’s cost estimate for landscape 
installation, including irrigation.   The 300-foot length for implementation of this section shall not 
apply to individual phases of a larger development.   

10.924  Permitted Activities within Riparian Corridors. 

A. Any use, sign, or structure, and the maintenance thereof, lawfully existing on the date of
adoption of the provisions herein, is permitted within a riparian corridor.  Such use, sign, or
structure may continue at a similar level and manner as existed on the date of adoption of the
provisions herein.  The maintenance and alteration of pre-existing ornamental landscaping is
permitted within a riparian corridor as long as no additional riparian vegetation is disturbed.  The
provisions of this section shall not be affected by any change in ownership of properties
containing a riparian corridor.

B. The following activities, and maintenance thereof, are permitted within a riparian corridor,
subject to obtaining applicable permits, if any, from the Oregon Department of State Lands and
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  All plans for development and/or improvements within a
riparian corridor shall be submitted to the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife for a habitat
mitigation recommendation pursuant to O.A.R. 635-415 “Fish and Wildlife Habitat Mitigation
Policy.”

(1) Waterway restoration and rehabilitation activities such as channel widening,
realignment to add meanders, bank grading, terracing, reconstruction of road crossings,
or water flow improvements.

(2) Restoration and enhancement of native vegetation, including the addition of canopy
trees; cutting of trees which pose a hazard due to threat of falling if  the tree is left in the
riparian area after felling; or removal of non-native vegetation if replaced with native
plant species at the same amount of coverage or density.

(3) Normal farm practices, other than structures, in existence at the date of adoption of
the provisions herein, on land zoned for Exclusive Farm Use.

Page 333



8 Draft Eight 
4/10/2020 

(4) Normal flood control channel maintenance practices within a waterway, other than
structures, necessary to maintain flow.

(5) Replacement of a permanent legal nonconforming structure in existence at the date of
adoption of the provisions herein with a structure in the same location, if it does not
disturb additional riparian area, and in accordance with the provisions of Sections 10.032
through 10.037 “Non-Conformities.”

(6) Expansion of a permanent legal nonconforming structure in existence at the date of
adoption of the provisions herein, if the area of the expansion is not within the riparian
corridor, and in accordance with the provisions of Sections 10.032 through 10.037 “Non-
Conformities.”

(7) Perimeter mowing and other cutting necessary for hazard prevention.

(8) Improvements to, and maintenance of, the Medford International Airport and its
runway protection zone, to meet the Federal Aviation Administration’s regulations,
advisory circulars, and guidelines.

(9) Shared-use pathways or greenways, accessways, trails, picnic areas, interpretive and
educational displays and overlooks, including benches and outdoor furniture, may be
permitted when reviewed in conjunction with a land use review, such as a Park
Development Review, Land Division, Site Plan & Architectural Commission review,
Traffic Facility, or Planned Unit Development.

C. New fencing may be permitted subject to consideration by the Planning Director or designee
in consultation with the Director of Public Works and applicable state and federal agencies.  An
application for new fencing within a riparian corridor shall contain a to-scale drawing that clearly
delineates the top-of-bank and riparian corridor boundary on the entire parcel or parcels, and
shall indicate why the proposal is necessary and how it minimizes intrusion into the riparian
corridor.

10.925   Conditional Uses within Riparian Corridors. 

The following activities, and maintenance thereof, are allowed within a riparian corridor if 
compatible with Section 10.920, “Riparian Corridors, Purposes,” and if designed to minimize 
intrusion.  Such activities shall be subject to approval of a Conditional Use Permit which may be 
considered separately or in conjunction with another land use review.  The approving authority 
must determine that the proposal complies with at least one of the Conditional Use Permit criteria. 
Applicable permits, if any, from the Oregon Department of State Lands and the U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers shall subsequently be obtained.  All development and improvement plans shall be 
submitted to the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife for a habitat mitigation recommendation 
pursuant to O.A.R. 635-415 “Fish and Wildlife Habitat Mitigation Policy.” 

(1) Water-related or water-dependent uses, such as drainage facilities and irrigation pumps.

(2) Utilities or other public improvements.

Page 334



9 Draft Eight 
4/10/2020 

(3) Streets, roads, or bridges where necessary for access or crossings.

(4) Multi-use pathsShared-use paths, accessways, trails, picnic areas, or interpretive and
educational displays and overlooks, including benches and outdoor furniture.  A conditional use
permit shall not be required for these items when reviewed in conjunction with a land use review,
such as a Park Development Review, Land Division, Site Plan & Architectural Commission
Review, Traffic Facility, or Planned Unit Development.

Page 335


	Agenda Cover Sheet (page 1)
	04-23-20 Agenda (pages 2-3) 
	20.1 CUP-18-148
	20.1 CUP-18-148 CUP Time Extension Staff Report pages 4-5)
	Exhibit A - Extension Request (page 6)
	Exhibit B - Approved Site Plan (page 7)
	Vicinity Map (page 8)

	30.1 03-12-20 PC DRAFT Minutes (pages 9-11) 
	50.1 PUD-20-032
	50.1 PUD-20-032 / LDS-20-100 - Staff Report (pages 12-13)  
	Exhibit A - Continuance Request (page 14) 
	Vicinity Map (page 15) 
	Recommended Action (page 13)

	50.2 LDS-20-025
	50.2 LDS-20-025 - Staff Report (pages 16-25) 
	Exhibit A - Conditions of Approval (page 26)
	Exhibit B - Tentative Plat (2) (pages 27-28) 
	Exhibit C - Conceptual Grading and Drainage Plan (page 29) 
	Exhibit D - Conceptual Road Sections (page 30)
	Exhibit E - Conceptual Utility Plan (page 31) 
	Exhibit F - Applicant's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (pages 32-39)
	Exhibit G - Applicant's Slope Analysis (page 40)
	Exhibit H - Public Works Staff Report (pages 41-52)
	Exhibit I - Medford Water Commission Memo and associated map (pages 53-55)
	Exhibit J - Medford Fire Department Report (pages 56-60)
	Exhibit K - Jackson County Roads letter (pages 61-62)
	Exhibit L - City Address Technician Memo (page 63)
	Exhibit M - Parks Department Memo (page 64)
	Vicinity Map (page 65)
	Recommended Action (pages 24-25) 

	50.3 LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017t
	LDP-20-016 / ZC-20-017 Staff Report (pages 66-74)
	Exhibit A - Conditions of Approval (page 75)
	Exhibit B - Tentative Plat Partition (page 76)
	Exhibit C - Grading and Drainage Plan (page 77)
	Exhibit D - Applicant's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law - Zone Change (pages 78-84)
	Exhibit E - Applicant's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law - Partition (pages 85-94) 
	Exhibit F - Applicant's Single Family Dwelling in Lieu of Duplex Letter (page 95)
	Exhibit G - Public Works Department Staff Report - Zone Change (pages 96-97)
	Exhibit H -  Public Works Department Staff Report - Partition (pages 98-106)
	Exhibit I - Medford Water Commission Memo and associated map (pages 107-109)
	Exhibit J - Medford Fire Department Report (page 110)
	Exhibit K - Medford Building Department Memo (page 111)
	Exhibit L - Jackson County Roads Comments (page 112)
	Exhibit M - Oregon Department of Aviation email (page 113)
	Exhibit N - ReganTrapp email (page 114)
	Exhibit O - Regan Trapp email (pages 115-116)
	Exhibit P - SFR-4 Density Calculation (page 117)
	Exhibit Q - SFR-6 Density Calculation (page 118)
	Vicinity Map (page 119)  
	Recommended Action (page 74) 

	50.4 UP-19-003
	50.4 UP-19-003 Staff Report (pages 120-144)
	Exhibit A - Current GLUP (page 145)
	Exhibit B - GLUP with Circulation Map (page 146)
	Exhibit B-1 - Neighborhood Element Amendments (pages 147-149)
	Exhibit C - Secondary Circulation (page 150)
	Exhibit D - Open Space Map (page 151)
	Exhibit E - Applicant's Findings (pages 152-186) 
	Exhibit F - Density Calculator (page 187)
	Results

	Exhibit G - Public Works Comments (pages 188-189)
	Exhibit H - Jackson County Roads Comments (pages 190-191)
	Exhibit I - Rogue Valley Sewer Services Comments (page 192)
	Exhibit J - Medford Water Commission  Memo (pages 193-195)
	Exhibit K - Fire Rescue Comments (page 198)
	Exhibit L - Parks Department Comments (page 199)
	Exhibit M - Topographic Survey (page 200)
	Exhibit N - Scott Sinner Letter (page 202)
	Exhibit O - Letter from Mark Knox (pages 203-204) 
	Recommended Action (page 144)

	50.5 LDS-20-046
	50.5 LDS-20-046 - Staff Report (pages 205-212)
	Exhibit A - Conditions of Approval (page 213)
	Exhibit B - Tentative Plat (page 214)
	Exhibit C - Conceptual Grading & Drainage Plan (page 215) 
	Exhibit D - Applicant's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (pages 216-225)
	Exhibit E - Public Works Staff Report (pages 226-233)
	Exhibit F - Medford Water Commission Memo and associated map (pages 234-235) 
	Exhibit G - Medford Fire Department Report (pages 236-237)
	Exhibit H - Rogue Valley Sewer Services Report (page 238)
	Exhibit I - Jackson County Roads Report (pages 239-240) 
	Vicinity Map (page 241)
	Recommended Action (page 211) 

	50.6 LDS-20-050 E-20-051
	LDS-20-050 / E-20-051 - Staff Report (pages 242-252)
	Exhibit A - Conditions of Approval (page 253)
	Exhibit B - Tentative Plat (page 254)
	Exhibit C - Approved Tentative Plat (page 255)
	Exhibit D - Map of Survey (page 256) 
	Exhibit E - Cover Sheet (page 257)
	Exhibit F - Grading Plans (3 ) (pages 258-260)
	Exhibit G - Utility Plans (3) (pages 261-263)
	Exhibit H - Zoning on Aerial Map (page 264) 
	Exhibit I - GLUP Map (page 265)
	Exhibit J - Circulation Plan (page 266) 
	Exhibit K - Hydrological Feature Plan (page 267)
	Exhibit L - Assessor Map (page 268)
	Exhibit M - Cell Tower Site (page 269)
	Exhibit N - Site Photo Key Map and Photos (pages 270-272)  
	Exhibit O - Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (pages 273-291)
	Exhibit P - Public Works Staff Report (pages 292-303)
	Exhibit Q - Medford Water Commission Report (pages 304-305) 
	Exhibit R - Building Department Report (pages 306-307)
	Exhibit S - Fire Department Report (pages 311-312) 
	Exhibit T - Jackson County Roads Letter (page 313) 
	Exhibit U - Parks and Recreation Department Memo (page 314)
	Exhibit V - Rogue Valley Sewer Services Memo (page 315)  
	Exhibit W - Wetland Land Use Notification Response (pages 316-317)
	Exhibit X - Follow-up email for Wetland Land Use Notification (page 318) 
	Vicinity Map (page 319) 
	Recommended Action (page 251) 

	50.7 DCA-18-112
	50.7 DCA-18-113 Staff Report (pages 321-326)
	Exhibit A - Proposed Code Language (pages 327-335)
	Recommended Action (page 326)





 
 
 


EXHIBIT A 
 


Krebs Partition and Zone Change 
LDP-20-016/ZC-20-017 
Conditions of Approval 


April 16, 2020 
 


Zone Change 


None. 


Partition 


CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 


Prior to the approval of the final plat, the applicant shall: 


1. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Public Works Department (Exhibit H) 
2. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit I). 


 
























































































   


4401 San Juan Drive, Suite G 
Medford, Oregon 97504 
 
Phone and Fax 541-772-1494 
Cell 541-601-0917 
Email scottsinner@yahoo.com 


Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc. 
Land Use Planning, Conservation Consulting 


 


 


 


February 27, 2020 
 
 
Liz Conner 
City of Medford Planning Department 
200 S Ivy 
Medford, OR 97501 
 
Re: LDP-20-016 
 
Liz, 
 
I would like to confirm our telephone call today regarding the development on the subject property. 
 
The existing parcel is currently developed with a single family dwelling, occupied by a relative of the owner. The 
proposed lot line between parcels 2 and 3 is under this dwelling. 
 
Mr. Krebs is planning to build a single family dwelling on the proposed Parcel 1 for the relative in the existing 
dwelling. The timing of the demolition and replacement of the dwelling was identified in the Land Development 
Committee meeting for the project. 
 
The current code section 10.713 allows a duplex dwelling on a SFR-4 parcel and also allows two detached single 
family dwellings in lieu of a an attached duplex. The applicant is actively designing a single family detached 
dwelling to comply with all setback standards that would be applicable to development on the proposed Parcel 1 
and will be submitting plans for construction.  
 
Since 10.713 allows for the two single family dwellings on the same parcel, the applicant will be able to be in 
compliance with the code and would be able to proceed with the street improvements to be required with the 
tentative plat approval. 
 
The existing dwelling does not have a paved driveway. Since the existing dwelling will be removed prior to final 
plat, and the future driveway for a dwelling on that parcel is not yet determined, that applicant requests that 
there would be no condition of approval to pave the existing access for the dwelling to be removed. The new 
dwellings on all parcels would, of course, meet all the current codes and standards. 
 
Please feel free to call if you have any questions. 
Regards, 


 
Scott Sinner, President 
Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc. 
  








 
 


City of Medford 200 South Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 541-774-2100 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\ZC-20-017 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 1 of 2 


LD DATE: 2/26/2020 


File Number: ZC-20-017 


 


PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 
 


2939 Bailey Avenue (TL 15800) 
SFR-4 to SFR-6 (Krebs) 
 


Project: Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot land 


partition of a single parcel totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a 


change of zone from SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four dwelling units per 


gross acre) to SFR-6 (Single Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross 


acre). 


Location:  The property is located at 2939 Bailey Avenue approximately 300 feet south 


of Delta Waters Road in the SFR-4 Zoning district (371W16BB TL 15800). 


Applicant:  Applicant, Richard Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Liz 


Conner.   
 


 


The Medford Land Development Code (MLDC), Section 10.227 (2) requires a zone change 


application demonstrate Category ‘A’ urban services and facilities are available or can and will 


be provided to adequately serve the subject property.  The Public Works Department reviews 


zone change applications to assure the services and facilities under its jurisdiction meet those 


requirements.  The services and facilities that Public Works Department manages are sanitary 


sewers within the City’s service boundary, storm drains, and the transportation system. 
 


I. Sanitary Sewer Facilities 
 


The proposed zone change has the potential to increase flows to the sanitary sewer 


system.  The downstream sanitary sewer system currently has capacity constraints. Based 


on this information, the Public Works Department recommends this zone change be 


denied, or the applicant stipulate to only develop so the total sewer flows do not exceed 


current zoning limitation, or the Developer make improvements to the downstream 


sanitary sewer system to alleviate capacity constraints, or the Developer provide an 


engineering study of the downstream sewer system to show capacity exists to allow the 


proposed zone change. 
 







 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\ZC-20-017 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 2 of 2 


II. Storm Drainage Facilities  
 


This site may be required to provide stormwater quality and detention at time of 


development in accordance with MLDC, Section 10.729 and/or 10.486. 
 


III. Transportation System 
 


No traffic impact analysis (TIA) will be required for this zone change.  The proposed 


application doesn’t meet the requirements for a TIA, per Medford Municipal Code (MMC), 


Section 10.461 (3). 
 


No conditions pertaining to streets, street capacity, or access are requested by Public 


Works at this time.  
 


Prepared by: Jodi K Cope 


Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


The above report is based on the information provided with the Zone Change Application submittal and is subject to change 


based on actual conditions, revised plans and documents or other conditions.  A full report with additional details on each item 


as well as miscellaneous requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans (Construction 


Plans), design requirements, phasing, draft and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, pavement 


moratoriums and construction inspection shall be provided with a Development Permit Application. 








 
 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx Page 1 of 9 


LD DATE: 2/26/2020 


Revised 3/17/2020 


File Number: LDP-20-016 


 


PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 
2939 Bailey Avenue (TL 15800) 
3- Lot Partition (Krebs) 
 


Project: Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot land 


partition of a single parcel totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a 


change of zone from SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four dwelling units per 


gross acre) to SFR-6 (Single Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross 


acre). 


Location:  The property is located at 2939 Bailey Avenue approximately 300 feet south 


of Delta Waters Road in the SFR-4 Zoning district (371W16BB TL 15800). 


Applicant:  Applicant, Richard Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Liz 


Conner.   
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


The following items shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective events under 


which they are listed: 
 


 Approval of Final Plat: 


Right-of-way, construction and/or assurance of the public improvements in 


accordance with Medford Land Development Code (MLDC), Section 10.666 & 


10.667 (Items A, B & C) 
 


 Issuance of first building permit for residential construction: 


Construction of public improvements (Items A through E) 


 Issuance of Certificates of Occupancy for individual units: 


Sidewalks (Items A2) 


 


A. STREETS 
 


1. Dedications 
 


Bailey Avenue is considered Legacy Street per Medford Land Development Code (MLDC) 


10.427(D).  Proposed conditions of approval for land use actions which contain legacy 


streets shall be subject to review and recommendation by the City Engineer. The applicant 


shall be required to have a conference with the City Engineer prior to submitting land use 


applications containing legacy streets; the City Engineer shall produce a memorandum 


summarizing the meeting and legacy street standards that would apply to the land use 







 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 2 of 9 


application and this memorandum shall be submitted as an exhibit with the land use 


application. If a deviation from the City Engineer’s recommendation is requested by the 


applicant, the applicant shall provide written findings (see criteria under MLDC 


10.427(D)(1)(a-e). 
 


Bailey Avenue is classified as a Standard Residential Street within the MLDC, Section 


10.430.  The Developer shall dedicate for public right-of-way, sufficient width of land along 


the frontage to comply with the half width of right-of-way, which is 31.5-feet, or as an 


option, may dedicate enough to provide a 24-foot half width as recommended through the 


Legacy Street conference to accommodate a 5-foot curbtight sidewalk.  The Developer’s 


surveyor shall verify the amount of additional right-of-way required. 
 


Public Utility Easements (PUE), 10-feet in width, shall be dedicated along the street frontage 


of all the Lots within this development (MLDC 10.471). 
 


The right-of-way and easement dedications shall be submitted directly to the Engineering 


Division of the Public Works Department.  The submittal shall include: the right-of-way and 


easement dedication, including an exhibit map; a copy of a current Lot Book Report, 


Preliminary Title Report, or Title Policy; a mathematical closure report (if applicable), and 


the Planning Department File Number; for review and City Engineer acceptance signature 


prior to recordation by the applicant. Releases of interest shall be obtained by holders of 


trust deeds or mortgages on the right-of-way and PUE area. 
 


2. Public Improvements 
 


a. Public Streets 
 


Bailey Avenue shall be improved to Standard Residential Street standards in accordance 


with the MLDC, Section 10.430.  The Delta Park Unit II Subdivision and Northfield Estates 


Subdivision, project (P1003D) completed partial improvements to the east half plus 8-feet 


west of centerline to Bailey Avenue along the frontage of this development.  Therefore, the 


Developer shall improve the remaining west half to provide an 18-foot half street width 


along the frontage of this development.  This shall include saw cutting the existing east 


edge of pavement back a minimum of 1-foot to ensure structural integrity and to provide 


cross slopes that meet current standards as required.  As an option, the Developer may 


construct the 5-foot sidewalk curbtight as recommended through the Legacy Street 


conference. 
 


b. Street Lights and Signing 
 


No additional street lights are required. 
 


The Developer shall be responsible for the preservation and re-installation of all signs 


removed during demolition and site preparation work.  The Developer’s contractor shall 


coordinate with the City of Medford Public Works, Maintenance and Operations Division to 







 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 3 of 9 


remove any existing signs and place new signs provided by the Developer. 
 


c. Pavement Moratoriums 
 


There is a no pavement cutting moratorium currently in effect along this frontage. 
 


The Developer shall be responsible for notifying by certified letter all utility companies, as 


well as all current property owners of parcels which are adjacent to any Public Street being 


constructed or paved as part of this project. The letter shall inform the utility companies 


and property owners of the City's street moratorium policy with respect to pavement 


cutting for future utility services. The utility companies and property owners shall be given 


the opportunity to install utility services within the right-of-way prior to paving and the 


subsequent moratorium. Notifications shall be mailed by the Developer at least 6 months 


before a street is resurfaced or rebuilt per Medford Municipal Code (MMC), Section 3.070. 


Copies of the certifications shall be submitted to the City Engineer with the submittal of the 


preliminary construction drawings. 
 


d.  Soils Report 
 


The Developer’s Engineer shall obtain a soils report to determine if there is shrink-swell 


potential in the underlying soils in this development.  If they are present, they shall be 


accounted for in the roadway and sidewalk design within this Development.  The soils 


report shall be completed by a licensed Geotechnical Engineer in the state of Oregon. 
 


e. Access to Public Street System 
 


Driveways shall comply with MLDC 10.550. 
 


f. Easements 
 


Easements shall be shown on the final plat for all sanitary sewer and storm drain mains or 


laterals, which cross lots, including any common area, other than those being served by said 


lateral.  
 


3. Section 10.668 Analysis 
 


To support a condition of development that an Applicant dedicate land for public use or 


provide a public improvement, the Medford Code requires a nexus and rough 


proportionality analysis which is essentially a codification of the constitutional provisions in 


Nollan and Dolan cases.  
 


10.668 Limitation of Exactions 
 


Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Chapter 10, an Applicant for a development 


permit shall not be required, as a condition of granting the application, to dedicate land for 


public use or provide public improvements unless: 







 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 4 of 9 


 


(1) the record shows that there is an essential nexus between the exaction and a legitimate 


government purpose and that there is a rough proportionality between the burden of the 


exaction on the Developer and the burden of the development on public facilities and 


services so that the exaction will not result in a taking of private property for public use, or 
 


(2) a mechanism exists and funds are available to fairly compensate the Applicant for the 


excess burden of the exaction to the extent that it would be a taking. 
 


1. Nexus to a legitimate government purpose 


The purposes for these dedications and improvements are found throughout the 


Medford Code, the Medford Transportation System Plan, and the Statewide Planning 


Rule, and supported by sound public policy.  Those purposes and policies include, but 


are not limited to: development of a balanced transportation system addressing all 


modes of travel, including motor vehicles, transit, bicycles, emergency services and 


pedestrians.  Further, these rights-of-way are used to provide essential services such as 


sanitary sewer, domestic water and storm drains to serve the developed parcels.  It can 


be found that the listed right-of-way dedications and improvements have a nexus to 


these purposes and policies.   
 


2. Rough proportionality between the dedications and improvements, and the 


impacts of development.  


No mathematical formula is required to support the rough proportionality analysis.  


Furthermore, benefits to the development resulting from the dedication and 


improvements when determining “rough proportionality” have been considered, 


including but not limited to: increased property values, intensification of use, as well as 


connections to municipal services and the transportation network. 
 


As set forth below, the dedications and improvements recommended herein can be 


found to be roughly proportional to the impacts reasonably anticipated to be imposed 


by this development. 
 


Bailey Avenue: 
 


Local street right-of-way dedication and construction requirements identified by the Public 


Works Department and required by the City are the minimum required to protect the 


public interest and are necessary for additional or densification of development in the City 


without detracting from the common good enjoyed by existing properties.  Developments 


are required to provide all internal local streets and half-street improvements to abutting 


streets, including associated right-of-way dedications, to ensure that new development and 


density intensification provides the current level of urban services and adequate street 


circulation is maintained. 
 


The benefits of the public right-of-way improvements include: providing access and 







 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 5 of 9 


transportation connections at urban level of service standards, on street parking, improved 


connectivity reducing all modes of trips generated, decreased emergency response times, 


benefits from using right-of-way to provide public utility services, the additional traffic that 


is being generated by this proposed land division and the necessity to provide connections 


for all modes of trips generated 
 


Dedication of the Public Utility Easement (PUE) will benefit development by providing public 


utility services, which are out of the roadway and more readily available to each lot or 


building being served.  The additional traffic of all modes of travel generated by this 


proposed development supports the dedication and improvements for all modes of travel 


and utilities.  As indicated above, the area required to be dedicated for this development is 


necessary and roughly proportional to that required in similar developments to provide a 


transportation system that meets the needs for urban level services. 


 


B. SANITARY SEWERS 
 


The proposed development is situated within the Medford sewer service area.  The 


Developer shall provide one service lateral to each buildable lot prior to approval of the 


Final Plat.   


 


C. STORM DRAINAGE 
 


1. Drainage Plan 
 


The Developer shall provide a comprehensive drainage plan showing the entire project site 


with sufficient spot elevations to determine direction of runoff to the proposed drainage 


system, and also showing elevations on the proposed drainage system, shall be submitted 


with the first building permit application for approval.   
 


The Developer shall provide copies of either a Joint Use Maintenance Agreement or a 


private stormdrain easement for any stormwater draining onto or from adjacent private 


property. 
 


A Site/Utility Plan shall be submitted with the building permit application to show the 


location of the existing or proposed stormdrain lateral/s for the site. 
 


All private storm drain lines shall be located outside of the public right-of-way and/or any 


public utility easements (PUE). 
 


2. Grading 
 


The Developer shall provide a comprehensive grading plan showing the relationship 


between adjacent property and the proposed development.  Grading on this development 


shall not block drainage from an adjacent property or concentrate drainage onto an 







 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 6 of 9 


adjacent property without an easement. The Developer shall be responsible that the final 


grading of the development shall be in compliance with the approved grading plan. 
 


3. Detention and Water Quality 
 


Provide stormwater quality and detention facilities in accordance with MLDC Sections 


10.481 and 10.729, and 10.486. 
 


4. Mains and Laterals 
 


All roof drains and foundation drains shall be connected directly to a storm drain 


system.  
 


A storm drain lateral shall be constructed to each parcel prior to approval of the Final 


Plat. Easements shall be shown on the Final Plat for storm drain laterals crossing 


property other than the one being served by the lateral. If a private storm drain system 


is being used to drain this site, the applicant shall provide a joint use maintenance 


agreement. 
 


5. Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control 
 


All development that disturbs 5,000 square feet or greater shall require an Erosion 


Prevention and Sediment Control Plan.  Developments that disturb one acre and greater 


shall require a 1200C permit from the DEQ.  Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control 


Plans shall be submitted to the Building Department with the project plans for 


development.  All disturbed areas shall be covered with vegetation or properly stabilized 


prior to certificate of occupancy. 


 


D. SURVEY MONUMENTATION 
 


All survey monumentation shall be in place, field-checked, and approved by the City 


Surveyor prior to approval of the final plat. 


 


E. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 


1. Design Requirements and Construction Drawings 
 


All public improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the “Engineering Design 


Standards for Public Improvements”, adopted by the Medford City Council. Copies of this 


document are available in the Public Works Engineering office. 
 


2. Construction Plans 
 


Construction drawings for any public improvements for this project shall be prepared by a 


professional engineer currently licensed in the State of Oregon, and submitted to the 







 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 7 of 9 


Engineering Division of Medford Public Works Department for approval. Construction 


drawings for public improvements shall be submitted only for the improvements to be 


constructed with each phase.  Approval shall be obtained prior to beginning construction. 


Only a complete set of construction drawings (3 copies) shall be accepted for review, 


including plans and profiles for all streets, sanitary sewers, storm drains, and street lights 


as required by the governing commission’s Final Order, together with all pertinent details 


and calculations.  A checklist for public improvement plan submittal can be found on the 


City of Medford, Public Works web site 


(http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103).  The Developer shall pay a deposit 


for plan review and construction inspection prior to final plan approval.  Public Works will 


keep track of all costs associated with the project and, upon our acceptance of the 


completed project, will reconcile the accounting and either reimburse the Developer any 


excess deposit or bill the Developer for any additional amount not covered by the deposit. 


The Developer shall pay Public Works within 60 days of the billing date or will be 


automatically turned over for collections. 
 


In order to properly maintain an updated infrastructure data base, the Surveyor of Record 


shall submit an as-built survey prior to the Final Inspection and, the Engineer of Record 


shall submit mylar “as-constructed” drawings to the Engineering Division within sixty (60) 


calendar days of the Final Inspection (walk through).  Also, the engineer shall coordinate 


with the utility companies, and show all final utility locations on the "as built" drawings. 
 


3. Draft of Final Plat 
 


The Developer shall submit 2 copies of the preliminary draft of the final plat at the same 


time the public improvement plans (3 copies) are submitted.  Neither lot number nor lot 


line changes shall be allowed on the plat after that time, unless approved by the City and all 


utility companies. 
 


4. Easements 
 


Easements shall be shown on the Final Plat for all sanitary sewer laterals and storm drainage 


laterals that cross lots other than the one being served by the laterals. 
 


5. Permits 
 


Concrete or block walls built within a PUE, or within sanitary sewer or storm drain 


easements require review and approval from the Engineering Division of Public Works. 


Walls shall require a separate permit from the Building Department and may also require 


certification by a professional engineer. 
 


6. System Development Charges (SDCs) 
 


Buildings in this development are subject to SDC fees. These SDC fees shall be paid at the 


time individual building permits are taken out. 



http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103





 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 8 of 9 


 


This development is also subject to storm drain system development charges.  The storm 


drain system development charge shall be collected at the time of the approval of the final 


plat. 
 


7. Construction and Inspection 
 


Contractors proposing to do work on public streets (including street lights), sewers, or 


storm drains shall ‘prequalify’ with the Engineering Division prior to starting work.  


Contractors shall work off a set of public improvement drawings that have been approved 


by the City of Medford Engineering Division. 
 


For City of Medford facilities, the Public Works Maintenance Division requires that public 


sanitary sewer and storm drain mains be inspected by video camera prior to acceptance of 


these systems by the City. 
 


Where applicable, the Developer shall bear all expenses resulting from the adjustment of 


manholes to finish grades as a result of changes in the finish street grade. 


 
Prepared by: Jodi K Cope       


Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs 


 


  







 


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 


P:\Staff Reports\LDP\2020\LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017 2939 Bailey Ave (TL 15800) 3-Lot Partition & ZC\LDP-20-016 Staff Report-Rev.docx  Page 9 of 9 


SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
2939 Bailey Avenue (TL 15800) 
3- Lot Partition                    LDP-20-016 
 


A. Streets 
 


1. Street Dedications to the Public: 


 Bailey Avenue – Dedicate additional right-of-way unless otherwise recommended through 


the Legacy Street conference. 


 Dedicate 10-foot public utility easements (PUE). 
 


2. Improvements: 
 


Public Streets 


 Improve Bailey Avenue west half to Standard Residential Street standards, unless otherwise 


recommended through the Legacy Street conference. 
 


Lighting and Signing 


 No additional street lights are required. 
 


Access to Public Street System 


 Driveways shall comply with MLDC 10.550. 
 


Other 


 No pavement moratorium currently in effect along this frontage. 


 Provide pavement moratorium letters. 


o Provide soils report. 
 


B. Sanitary Sewer: 


 Provide a private lateral to each lot. 


 Provide easements as necessary. 
 


C. Storm Drainage: 


 Provide an investigative drainage report, with future development. 


 Provide a comprehensive grading plan, with future development. 


 Provide water quality and detention facilities, with future development. 


 Provide storm drain laterals to each tax lot, with future development. 
 


D. Survey Monumentation 


 Provide all survey monumentation. 
 


E. General Conditions 


 Building permits will not be issued until after final plat approval. 
 


 


 = City Code Requirement 


o = Discretionary recommendations/comments 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way.  If there is any discrepancy between 


the above list and the full report, the full report shall govern.  Refer to the full report for details on each item as well as miscellaneous 


requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans (Construction Plans), design requirements, phasing, draft 


and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, pavement moratoriums and construction inspection. 








  


      BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 


                 Staff Memo 
 


R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\ldp20016-zc20017.docx                           
 Page 1 of 2 


TO: Planning Department, City of Medford 


FROM: Rodney Grehn P.E., Water Commission Staff Engineer 


SUBJECT: LDP-20-016 & ZC-20-017 


PARCEL ID: 371W16BB TL 15800 


PROJECT: Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot land partition of 
a single parcel totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a change of zone from 
SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four dwelling units per gross acre) to SFR-6 
(Single Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre). The property is 
located at 2939 Bailey Avenue approximately 300 feet south of Delta Waters 
Road in the SFR-4 Zoning district (371W16BB TL 15800); Applicant, Richard 
Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Liz Conner. 


DATE: February 26, 2020 


 
I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested.  Conditions for approval and 
comments are as follows: 
 
CONDITIONS 


1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the 
Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and “Standards 
For Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devices.” 


2. All parcels/lots of proposed property divisions will be required to have metered water service 
prior to recordation of final map, unless otherwise arranged with MWC. 


3. Adequate capacity is available to serve this proposed development. 


4. There are two (2) existing water meters that were previously installed to these properties. 
These water meters are required to be abandoned. 


5. Installation of three (3) water services is required; one for each of the proposed Parcels per 
MWC Standards. 


6. If a well is located on this parcel it will be required to be abandoned per State of Oregon water 
Resources Department regulations per Oregon Water Resources Department Chapter 690 
Division 220. 


COMMENTS 


1. Off-site water line installation is not required. 


2. On-site water facility construction is not required. 


Continued to Next Page 







  


      BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 


                 Staff Memo 
 


R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\ldp20016-zc20017.docx                           
 Page 2 of 2 


Continued from Previous Page 


3. Static water pressure is approximately 78 psi. 


4. MWC-metered water service does exist to this property. There are two (2) existing water 
meters currently installed across the frontage of Bailey Avenue. The locations of these two (2) 
water meters may not work with the Lot configuration. (See Condition 3 above) 


5. Access to MWC water lines is available. There is an existing 8-inch water line in Baily Avenue. 








G


G


G


S


! (


! (


! (


! (


! (


! (


! (


!R


!R


!R


!4 !4


!4 !4


!4


!4
!4


!4


!4


!4
!4


!4
!4


!4


!4
!4


!4


!4


!4 !4


!4 !4


!4


!4


!4
!4


!4


!4


!4
!4


!4


!4
!4


!4


!4
!4


!4


!4


!4


!4


!4
!4


!4


!4
!4


!4!4


!4
!4


!4


!4 !4


!4 !4


!4


G!.


G!.


G!.


G!.3070
3/4M


3076
3/4M


3050
3/4M


3052
3/4M


3015
3/4M


3030
3/4M


3034
3/4M


3040
3/4M


3048
3/4M


3052
3/4M


3054
3/4M


3053
3/4M


3045
3/4M


3035
3/4M


3031
3/4M


3029
3/4M


3027
3/4M


3025
3/4M


3023
3/4M


3021
3/4M


3018
3/4M


3016
3/4M


2930
3/4M


2940
3/4M


2948
3/4M2956


3/4M


2965
3/4M


M


2964
3/4M


2972
3/4M


2971
3/4M


2980
3/4M


2988
1M


3024
3/4M


2973
3/4M


2987
3/4M


2994
3/4M


2963-67
3/4M


2995
3/4M


2979
3/4M


2912
3/4M


2922
3/4M


2939
OtherM


2911
3/4M


3257
3/4M


3247
3/4M


3274
3/4M


3254
3/4M


3246
3/4M


3056
3/4M


3060
3/4M


3147
3/4M


3153
3/4M


3044
3/4M


Gravity


1'' C


1'' C
1'' C


1'' C
1'' C


1'' C
1'' C


1'' C
1'' C


1'' C


1'
' C


1'
' C


1'' C


1'' C


1'' C


1'
' C


1'
' C


1'
' C


1'
' C


1'
' C


1'' C


1'' C


1'
' C


1'
' C


1'' C


1'
' C


1''
 C 1'


' C
1'
' C


1'' C
1'' C


3040


3018


2922


2995


2930


3052


3053


3050


3015


3056


3044


3030


3247


3060


2980


2988


3023


3070


3254


3027


3034


3246


3035


2912


3257


2940


3021


3029


3048


3016


2973
2965


2971


2956


3025


2967


2939


2964


2972


3052


3031


3024


2987


3054


3045


2948


2979


3076


2911
2909


8
'' 
D
I 
1
9
9
3


8
''


D
I


1
9
8
3


8
'' 
D
I


1
9
8
8


16'' DI 1974


4'' DI 1987


4
'' 
D
I 
1
9
9
3


4
'' 
D
I 
1
9
8
6


8'' DI 1993
H3975
Elev: 1410 ft


H3976
Elev: 1407 ft


H3977
Elev: 1403 ft


H4102
Elev: 1407 ft


4'' TV2121


8'' TV2122


8'' TV2125


6'' GV9711


6'' GV9712


6'' GV9713


8'' GV9714


8'' GV9715
8'' GV9716


6'' GV9971
Station 26


4''
Stub


4''
Stub


4'' Stub


Delta Waters Rd


Br
yso


n


Wy


B
ed


fo
rd


C
ir


Adams Cir


B
ai
le
y 
A
v


This map is based on a digital database compiled by  Medford Water Commission from a
variety of sources. Medford Water Commission cannot accept responsibility for errors,
omissions, or positional accuracy. There are no warranties, expressed or implied.


Legend


Water Mains:


Urban Growth Boundary


City Limits


Tax Lots


!RReservoir


"PPump Station


Control Station;̄C


Sample Station


Air Valve


³ Fire Service


Hydrant


Reducer#


Blow Off


Plugs-Caps


Abandoned Main


Active Main


S


!#A


T"B


G


G!.


Reservoir Drain Pipe


Pressure Zone Line


Boundaries:


MWC Facilities:


Butterfly Valve


Gate Valve


Tapping Valve


&É


! (


!R


Water Valves:


Water Meters:
Active Meter


On Well


Unknown


Vacant


!4


!4


!4


!4


±
Water Facility Map
City of Medford


Planning Application:
LDP-20-016 ZC-20-017
(371W16BB15800)


Feb 26, 2020


Scale:
0 50 10025


Feet


1:1,200


Date: 2/13/2020
Path: \\medfordwater.org\public\File Shares\Departments\GIS\Mapping\Projects\LD Map Maker\LD
Map Maker.aprx








Reviewed By: Kleinberg, Greg Review Date: 2/18/2020
Meeting Date: 2/26/2020


LD File #: LDP20016 Associated File
#1:


ZC20017


Planner: Liz Conner


Applicant: Richard Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.


Site Name: N/A


Project Location: The property is located at 2939 Bailey Avenue approximately 300 feet south of Delta Waters Road.


ProjectDescription: Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot land partition of a single parcel
totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a change of zone from SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four
dwelling units per gross acre) to SFR-6 (Single Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre).


Conditions
Reference Description


Approved Approved as submitted with no additional conditions or requirements.


Development shall comply with access and water supply requirements in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code in affect at
the time of development submittal. Fire apparatus access roads are required to be installed prior to the time of construction.
The approved water supply for fire protection (fire hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when
combustible material arrives at the site.


Specific fire protection systems may be required in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code.
This plan review shall not prevent the correction of errors or violations that are found to exist during construction. This plan
review is based on information provided only.


Design and installation shall meet the Oregon requirements of the International Fire, Building, Mechanicial Codes and
applicable NFPA Standards.


Medford Fire-Rescue Land Development Report


Review/Project Information


Specific Development Requirements for Access & Water Supply


Construction General Information/Requirements


Medford Fire-Rescue, 200 S Ivy St. Rm 180, Medford OR 97501 541-774-2300


www.medfordfirerescue.org


Page 1 of 1          








 
 


 


City of Medford 200 South Ivy, Medford, OR 97501 541-774-2350 cityofmedford.org 


MEMORANDUM 


 


To:  Liz Conner, Planning Department 


From:  Mary Montague, Building Department 


CC:  Richard Krebs, Applicant; Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc., Agent 


Date:  February 26, 2020 


Subject: LDP-20-016_ZC-20-017_2939 Bailey Ave_Krebs Partition Zone Change 


 


BUILDING DEPARTMENT:  
Please Note: This is not a plan review. These are general notes based on general 


information provided. Plans need to be submitted and will be reviewed by a residential 


plans examiner to determine if there are any other requirements for this occupancy type. 


Please contact the front counter for fees. 


General Comments: 


1. For list of applicable Building Codes, please visit the City of Medford website: 


www.ci.medford.or.us  Click on “City Departments” at top of screen; click on “Building”; click 


on “Design Criteria” on left side of screen and select the appropriate design criteria. 


2. All plans are to be submitted electronically. Information on the website: 


www.ci.medford.or.us      Go to “City Departments” at top of screen; click on “Building”; click 


on “ELECTRONIC PLAN REVIEW (ePlans)” for information. 


3. Site Excavation permit required to develop, install utilities. 


4. Demo Permit is required for any buildings being demolished. 


Comments: 


5. Provide a letter to the building official per Section R401.4 indicating if expansive soils are 


present or not. If expansive soils are present then a site specific soils geotech report is 


required by a Geotech Engineer prior to foundation inspections. The report must contain 


information per Section 403.1.10 and on how you will prepare the lot for building and a 


report confirming the lot was prepared per their recommendations. 



http://www.ci.medford.or.us/

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/











1


Kelly Evans


From: THOMPSON Seth <Seth.THOMPSON@aviation.state.or.us>
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2020 3:26 PM
To: Liz A. Conner
Subject: ODA No Comment: LDP-20-016/ZC-20-017


 
 
Thank you for providing the opportunity for the Oregon Department of Aviation to comment on LDP‐20‐016/ZC‐20‐017.
The ODA has no comment.  
Best regards, 
Seth Thompson 
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF 
AVIATION 
AVIATION PLANNER 


 


OFFICE 503‐378‐2529 CELL 503‐507‐
6965 
EMAIL 
seth.thompson@aviation.state.or.us  
3040 25TH STREET SE, SALEM, OR 
97302 
WWW.OREGON.GOV/AVIATION 


 








1


Kelly Evans


From: Planning Department
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2020 8:23 AM
To: Liz A. Conner
Subject: FW: Krebs partition


From: regan trapp [mailto:regan06052002@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, March 11, 2020 9:28 AM 
To: Planning Department  
Subject: Re: Krebs partition 


 
 
 
Hello, 
Could you please confirm receipt of this letter and make sure it is entered into the record. Thank you! 
 
On Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 09:18:41 AM PDT, regan trapp <regan06052002@yahoo.com> wrote:  
 
 
Hello, 
I am writing in regards to the Krebs partition at 2939 Bailey Ave (LDP-20-016/ZC-20-017). Please consider denying the 
zone change to SFR-6. The density of the area is not conducive to SFR-6. I love the idea of that lot getting developed as 
the house has been an eyesore for quite some time but disagree with the density that the SFR-6 would allow. Please 
keep the lot at SFR-4 to allow for only 2 lots.  
 
Thank you for your time, 
 
Regan Trapp 
2940 Bailey Ave 
Medford, OR 97504 
 








1


Kelly Evans


From: Kelly Evans
Sent: Wednesday, March 18, 2020 4:24 PM
To: Liz A. Conner
Subject: FW: Krebs Partition


 
 
 
Kelly Evans | Assistant Planning Director 
City of Medford, Oregon | Planning Department 
Mailing address: 411 W 8th Street, Medford, Oregon 97501 
Office location: 200 S Ivy Street, Second Floor 
Ph: 541-774-2380 | F: 541-618-1708 
 
From: regan trapp [mailto:regan06052002@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, March 18, 2020 4:14 PM 
To: Kelly Evans <Kelly.Evans@cityofmedford.org> 
Subject: Re: Krebs Partition 


 
<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**> 
 
Thank you Kelly!  I spoke with Gail Gibson, who is living in the house at that address.  I no longer have concerns as she 
stated there will only be a single family home on each lot.  Thank you and totally understood that you are shutting down 
public meetings.  We are doing that here at City of Ashland. We have closed our building to the public as well.   
 
Thank you! 
 
On Wednesday, March 18, 2020, 04:10:19 PM PDT, Kelly Evans <kelly.evans@cityofmedford.org> wrote:  
 
 


Hi there, Regan – 


  


First, thank you for your comments on the Krebs partition. They will be entered into the record and you will have standing 
to appeal should you choose to do so. 


  


I wanted to let you know that we are canceling the March 26 Planning Commission meeting because of COVID-19. We 
will move this item, likely to the April 23 meeting. We will be sending out a new public hearing notice when the date has 
been confirmed. 


  


You do not need to re-send your comments unless you have something new to add. Please let Liz or me know if you have
any questions.  


  







2


Thanks! 


  


Kelly Evans 


  


Kelly Evans | Assistant Planning Director 


City of Medford, Oregon | Planning Department 


Mailing address: 411 W 8th Street, Medford, Oregon 97501 


Office location: 200 S Ivy Street, Second Floor 


Ph: 541-774-2380 | F: 541-618-1708 


  








File No.


SQ FT 6969.6 Planner


AC 0.16 0 Date


Tax Lot Numbers Large Lots for Existing Development AC Zoning District SFR-4


371W16BB15800 0.53            AC Reserved Acreage AC Density Range


AC Other
1


Minimum 2.5


AC AC Maximum 4


AC AC


AC AC No. DU Proposed 


AC AC No. DU Permitted Min. 2            


Existing  ROW to Centerline 0.09            AC AC No. DU Permitted Max. 2            


Minimum 1.54      2            


Gross Acres 0.62            AC Subtracted Acres -             AC Maximum 2.46      2            


Effective Acres (Gross - Subtracted) 0.62 Percentage of Maximum 0.00%


Street Name LF Width SF Acreage


Bailey Ave 150.00        25.00                                              3,750.00      0.09                              


-             -                               


-             -                               


-                                                  -             -                               


3,750.00   0.09                              


EXISTING R-O-W CALCULATION


DENSITY CALCULATION FORM
For all residential LDP, LDS, PUD, and AC Application Files


SUBTRACTED ACREAGEGROSS ACREAGE 


LDP-20-016 ZC-20-017


Liz Conner


March 13, 2020


DENSITY RANGE


1
 Such as future ROW dedication, resource protection areas, common open space, other dedication areas, etc. 5/06








File No.


SQ FT 6969.6 Planner


AC 0.16 0 Date


Tax Lot Numbers Large Lots for Existing Development AC Zoning District SFR-6


371W16BB15800 0.53            AC Reserved Acreage AC Density Range


AC Other
1


Minimum 4


AC AC Maximum 6


AC AC


AC AC No. DU Proposed 


AC AC No. DU Permitted Min. 2            


Existing  ROW to Centerline 0.09            AC AC No. DU Permitted Max. 4            


Minimum 2.46      2            


Gross Acres 0.62            AC Subtracted Acres -             AC Maximum 3.70      4            


Effective Acres (Gross - Subtracted) 0.62 Percentage of Maximum 0.00%


Street Name LF Width SF Acreage


Bailey Ave 150.00        25.00                                              3,750.00      0.09                              


-             -                               


-             -                               


-                                                  -             -                               


3,750.00   0.09                              


EXISTING R-O-W CALCULATION


DENSITY CALCULATION FORM
For all residential LDP, LDS, PUD, and AC Application Files


SUBTRACTED ACREAGEGROSS ACREAGE 


LDP-20-016 ZC-20-017


Liz Conner


March 13, 2020


DENSITY RANGE


1
 Such as future ROW dedication, resource protection areas, common open space, other dedication areas, etc. 5/06








2939 Bailey Avenue
Krebs Partition &
         Zone Change


1/24/2020


Project Name:


Map/Taxlot:


Ba
rcl


ay
Ct


Ed
m


on
dW


a y


Sa
nd


be
rg


Ct


Bryson
Way


Hayden
Pl


Stacie Way


Montego
Pl


Prescott
Ct


Mica
h Cir


Jenero Ct


Timothy Ave
No


me
C t B edfor d Cir


Ald
ers


ga
te 


Rd


Jantzer C t


Ba
ile


y A
ve


Le
vi 


Ci
r


Ha
wa


iia
n A


ve


Barclay Rd


Leonard Ave


Clairmont Ct


Pa
ul 


Ci
r


He
ar


tw
oo


d C
t


Mi
lho


an
 D


r


Rosewood St


SheratonCt


Stonebrook Dr


Adams Cir


Wa
te


rfo
r d


Ct


Gary Dr


Delta Waters Rd


Mc
lou


gh
lin


 D
r


4


3


2


1


LDP20-016
ZC20-017


Vicinity
Map


File Number:


Subject Area


0 510255 Feet


Legend
Subject Area
Tax Lots s371W16BB TL 15800







